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PROPERTIES (as of December 31, 2006)

Number Net Rentable Number Net Rentable
Location of Properties(1) Square Feet Location of Properties(1) Square Feet
UNITED STATES UNITED STATES (cont.)
Alabama 22 890,000 Ohio 30 1,860,000
Arizona 37 2,259,000 Oklahoma 8 428,000
California 368 23,244,000 Oregon 38 1,955,000
Colorado 60 3,810,000 Pennsylvania 28 1,867,000
Connecticut 14 869,000 Rhode Island 2 64,000
Delaware 5 288,000 South Carolina 40 2,131,000
Florida 191 12,452,000 Tennessee 33 1,883,000
Georgia 90 5,835,000 Texas 235 15,375,000
Hawaii 7 475,000 Utah 7 440,000
Hlinois 123 7,800,000 Virginia 78 4,407,000
Indiana 31 1,880,000 Washington 21 5,954,000
Kansas 22 1,310,000 Wisconsin 16 1,030,000
Ej;‘l‘s‘::'z ; zgg:ggg Totals 2,003 125,430,000
Maryland 55 3,085,000 EUROPE
Massachusetts i9 1,179,000 Belgium 21 1,219,000
Michigan 43 2,755,000 Denmark 8 410,000
Minnesota 44 2,990,000 France 50 2,606,000
Mississippi 1 63,000 Germany 11 550,000
Missouri 38 2,144,000 Netherlands 32 1,664,000
Nebraska 1 46,000 Sweden 25 1,335,000
Nevada 22 1,404,000 United Kingdom 19 905,000
New Hampshire 2 132,000
New Jersey 56 3,492,000 Totals 166 8,689,000
New York 61 3,921,000 Grand Totals 2,169 134,119,000
North Carolina 69 4,775,000

(1) Storage and properties combining self-storage and commercial space.




SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Revenues: R : _
Rental incomé a.nd ancdlary operauons

-Interest and other income | |

Total Revenues

. Expenses:
. Costof operations
Dcprecmuon and dmortization ~
General and administrative ~ ¢
Intcres‘t expense

.

. Incomc from contmumg operatlons beforé

- equuy in earnmgs of real estaté-entities, -
. minority interest in’ incomie and other , o
Equlry in; earnmgs of real estatc’entities -+

Other ~

Mlnorlty mte‘rest., in income

Income from continuing operations

Cumutative effect of change iti accountmg
principle "

stcontmued operatlons (2)

Net i income

Net income allocable to commeon shareholders

Per Common Share: e

.- Distributions

Net'incomme - diluted

" Weighted average common shares - diluted

Balance Sheet Data:
" Total assets

Total debt

Minority interest (other partnership interests)
" Minority interest (preferred partnership mtertsts)
Sharcholdcrs equity

Other Data.

Ner cash provndcd by operating activities
Net cash used in mvcstmg activities

Net cash used 1n fi nancmg activities

.

For the yea‘r‘ ended December 31,

20060 | 20059 @ 20040 . . 20030 20020
(Arnounis in thousands, except per share data)

$ 1,349,856 | $ 1,043,600 § 952,766.% 890,350 $ 845273
31,799 16,447 5,391 2,537 5,210

[ 1,381,655| 1,060,047 - 958157 ° 892,887 850,483
500,560 | 378,301 361,944 340,871 309,491
437,984 | -7 7196,232 182,890 183,863 ' 175,524
84,661 21,115 18,813 17,127 15,619
33,062 . 8216 760 1,121 3,809

| 1,056,267 | . 603,864 564,407 542,982 504,443
.+ 325388 -7456,183 393,750 349,905 346,040
©11,895) - 24,883 22,564 . .24,966 29,888

. 64391 . 1,182 67. . 1,007 . (2,541)
(31,883)] (32.651)  (49.913)  (43,703) (44,087
311,839 . 449,597 366,468 . 332,175 - 329,300

" 578 R R PR —
1609 | - . 6796 - (255) 4,478  (10,562)

$ 314026|$ 456,393 '$ 366,213 '$ 336,653 $ 318,738
[$  46,891|% 254395 $ 178,063 $ 161,836 $ 141,423 -
$ 2001% . 190 $ 1.80 % 1.80 $ 1.80
$ 0.331$ 1.97 $ 138 §  1.28 $ 1.14
143,715 128,819 - 128,681 - 126,517 124,571
$11,198,473 | $5,552,486 $ 5,204,790 $4,968,069 $4,843,662
$ 1,848542($ 149,647 $ 145614 $ 76,030 $ 115,867
$ 181,030(% 28,970 $ 118,903 $ 141,137 $ 154,499
$ 325000)%.225000 $ 310,000 $ 285,000.$ 285,000
$ 8,208,045} $4,817,009 $4,429,967 $4,219,799 $4,158,969
$. 791,700 |$ 692,048 $ 616,664 $ 571,387 $ 591,283
|$ (487,496)] $ (443,656) $(157,638) $ (205,133). $ (325,786)
§ (244,395) .s (121,146) $ (297,604) $ (264,545) $ (211,720)

T Durmg 2006, 2005, 2004 2003 and 2002, we camp[rred stu:ml ngmﬁmnt astet acquisitions, business combinations and eqm{y

fransactions. -See our canmlxdated ﬁnanaal statemenss and notes thereto.

(2)

Cammmarzg janmzry 1, 2002 we adopred and modxf ed a-business plan that included the closure or consolidation of certain non-

strategic containerized storage facilities. We sold two commercial properties—one in 2002, the other in 2004, During 2003, we

* sold five self-storage facilities. The historical operations of these facilities are classified as discontinued operations, with the rental

income, cost of aperations, depreciation expense and gain or loss on disposition of these facilities for current and prior periods

included in the line item “Disconsinued Operations” on the consolidated income statement.
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.ofour busmess segments oy

integration went as smoothl),r as possnble

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS R eI

« '

ur net income declined in 2006 as compared to 2005, principally as a result of ‘cur merger
with Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc. (“Shurgard”). Our intrinsic or business value, however,
did just the opposite and increased, also as a result of the merger and 1mprovements in all

.. N

- First lers review the merger.

: Shurgard Merger

After nearly a decade of trying o combine the two companies, on August 23 we consummated the merger
with Shurgard This was just over a year after announcing our “unsolicited offer” to merge.

. Shurgard, like Public Storage, started in 1972 and grew in a similar fashion. Both companies raised capital
" in the 1980’s through limited partnerships and continued to expand in the 1990’ as Real Estate Investment

Trusts (REITs). We competed for many of the same development sites and Aacquisition propertie_s and

- created what was considered by many to be the two best franchises in the self-storage industry. While both

companies thought they had the “best brand, best properties and best people, both orgarumrlons respected
and mimicked each otlier and consndered the other “number two.” ; '

o

~ When we approached Shurgard about merging, we ldenrlﬁed three areas of opportunlty

Frrst, significant general and administrative costs could be ¢liminated as a ‘result of combmmg corporate
and executive functions and migrating Shurgard’s domesrrc portfolio onto Public Storages centralized *
operating system, WebChamp

Second, there, was an opportunity to eliminate redundant property operating costs such as duplicaté’
Yellow Pages, back office suppott funcrions and call centers. There was also an opportunity to use
Public Storage’s marketing and pricing. programs to achicve higher revenues in Shurgard’s domestrc
portfolio, which had historically operated at about 500 to 600 basis points lower occupancy than

: _Publrc Storages properues T _ . : L

-~ - L

Third, Public Storage had the financial strength to consummate the merger, retire a srgmﬁcant amount
of Shurgard’s debt, absorb the operating losses from Europe and provnde capital to grow both the domestic

" .and European platforms. ~.

. The Shurgard directors recognized the benefits of the merger and in March 2006 we 51gned a definitive

merger agreement which was approved by both companies’ shareholders in August. From srgmng until
closing, the Shurgard and Public Storage management teams worked hard to make sure the merger

.‘(;g 13 '

. At closmg, Public Storage paid about $5.3 billion for the ‘second best domestic portfolro and by far the
" best portfolio and operating organization in Europe. Wie issued 39 million shares of common: srock and

assumed $2 billion of debt. In the U.S., we acquired 487 properties consisting of 32 million net rentable
square feer. We are now larger than our next four largest competitors COMBINED‘ In Europe, we are
also the largest owner and operator with 103 properties consisting of 5.6 million net rentable square feet
and j joint venture interest with another 63 properties, with 3.1 million net rentable square feet. |

-




Intrinsic Value . S o '

In undertakmg and structuring a merger, it.is as important to understand what you are buying as what

you,are giving up. In the case of an all cash transaction, it is’easy to understand what you are paying. But
in the case of a stock-merger, such as with Shurgard, we in effect “sold” part of our company, about 23%,

‘to the Shurgard shareholders in return for 100%. of their company ard the assumption of debr.

Accordingly, we needed to understand our intrinsic_or énterprise value and make some assessments of
Shurgard’s intrinsic value. Thls is exactly what we did. P

To understand lntrmSlc va]ue there is no better source than Warren Buffett. His definition goes

‘ somethmg like this: .

[ . . o

~Intrinsic value is the discounted value of the cash that can be taken out of a business during its lifetime.
- Calculating intrinsic value is typically highly subjective that varies both as estimates of future cash flows

are revised and’ as.interest rates move. Intrinsic value is the only logical way to evaluate the relarive
attractiveness of investments and businesses. Understandmg intrinsic value is as important for managers
as it is for owners. - When managers make capital allocation decrswns, such as a merger or acquisition, it
is vical that decisions are made to increase intrinsic value rather than clestroy it. Many managers tend to
focus on whether a transaction is immediately ‘dilutive or anti-dilutive to earnings per share rather than
evaluate its impact-on’intrinsic value. Over time, the'skill with which managers allocate capital will have
an enormous impact on a company’s intrinsic value.”

"In assessing a'merger with Shurgard, we evaluared the cash flows of both'businesses. Here is a snapshot

of both companies at the end of 2005 using-Funds from'Operarion (see below for explanation):

*

)

Companson of FFO per Common Share in 2005
(Amounts in mtl[mm, except per share)
) Shurgard _ . Dublic Storage .‘ ' ]

SHU reported FFQ«. * - . $ 68 - PSA reported FFO . <o % 465

Merger costs. 14 - Hurricane casualty losses © 3

Real estate development costs 13 7 Gain on sale of non-real estate assets ‘ (1)

G&A costs . ,.35 . EITF D-42 charges 9

European losses IR o . 18 L : '

FFO after adjustments - $ 148 FFO after adjustments $ 476 l
| Shares issued ., .39 Shares outstanding |, - 129 l
| FFO per share after adjustmentss ~ $3.79 - FFO per'"share after adjustments © ~ $3.69 ]

- . . e ) ~‘.' .. Lo s _.‘ 4
So ad]ustmg for‘ specral charges, one time items. or costs that we did not think would be recurring, the
-transaction was immediately FFO positive for Public Storage shareholders However, we would not have
pursued the merger for a few cents of earnings accretion. The real vaJue lies in the opportunity to achieve

lower costs and hlgher revenues in Shurgard’s domestic and European properties and lower the operating

~ costs'of Public Storages‘domestlc portfolio through economies of scale)

T e o e




The three “Same Store” portfolios performed like this during 2005:

Public Storage . Shurgard - U.S. Shugard - Europe

Realized rent per avg sq. ft. $11.61 $12.13 $22.19
Average occupancy 7 91% , 86% 78%

Gross profit margin 66.8% 59.5% 44.2%

What should be clear is that the Shurgard properties have significant “upside” both_in terms of
occupancies and operating margins. So often these “potential benefits” are paid to the seller in
mergers through premiums above “intrinsic value.” "As you can see, the benefits will be shared 23%
to the former Shurgard shareholders who are now Publlc Storage shareholders and 77% to the Public
Storage shareholders. '

Lets review how we are achieving these “potential benefits” and improving our intrinsic value.

Domestic Operations ‘ :
With respect to our domestic operations, we had four objectives at the time the merger closed.

First, combine our corporate offices and reduce G&A costs. Shurgard’s corporate staff has been reduced
from about 150 at the time of the merger to about 20 today. The remaining corporate staff is expected
to terminate by April 30th. We expect to add less than ten people to the Public Storage corporate staff

as a result of the merger. Overall, we should have well over $30 million in annual savings.

Lo

Second, we wanted to rebrand and migfate the Shurgard properties onto our operating platform.
Immediately after consummating the merger in late August, the Shurgard properties were converted to
our centralized operating system, WebChamp. We promptly started selling space through our three
distribution channels'and using our pricing and media programs to improve occupancies. Public Storage
signage has been installed at all but a handful of Shurgard properues We w1ll continue to improve “Public
Storage branding” ar all facilities in 2007. -

The third objective was to reduce operating costs and eliminate redundancies. Although we hired about
1,100 Shurgard field employees, over the last five months approximately 600 have left the company. We
were prepared for this turnover and quickly accelerated our recruiting efforts, hiring new employees at our
lower wage rates. We also implemented a single compensation and benefit plan for all field personnel,
effective January 1. We expect annual savings in employee costs in excess of $5 million. By combining
Yellow Page advertising and terminating Shurgard’s marketing programs, we expect to save $5 million per
year in our marketing costs, exclusive of medla and internet advertlsmg

-

The fourth objective was to drive Shurga:d propcrty occupancies to the 91% level hlstoncally experienced
by Public Storage’s properties. Our’ marketmg and pricing programs have Begun to have a positive effect
of improving the occupancy of Shurgard Same Store properucs Since the closc of the merger | in August

occupancy and rental rates have both 1mpr0ved !
b

The combined domestic operations present a significant opportunity. Durmg the fourth quarter, our

combined domestic business generared about $1.5 billion in annualized revenues with an average




occupancy of about 87%. This is well below our historical level of 91% annual occupancy. However,
revenue growth will take longer to realize than the expense reductions. Generally, when we are trying to
accelerate customer volumes, we are aggressive with pricing, promotional discounts and marketing. In the
. short term, it is often difficult to scc the benefits of these programs as promotional discounts and marketing
expense adversely aﬁect earnings in the month the customer moves in. In addition, since about 30% of our
customers move in and out within 90 days, it takes time to achieve a stabilized customer base. My best
guess is that it will take us most of the 2007 rental season to achieve a stabilized customer base in the U.S.
. P

European Operanons :

- Our objectives with the European Opcratlons were to bring the cost structure in line with the current size
of the operaring platform and to drive occupancy and revenue growth by sharing the marketing and
pricing strategles used int our domestic business.

The European support sr.aﬂ" which consists of all operations management and support functions, real estate
. and corporate staff, has been reduced from about 185 at the beginning of 2006 to about 135 today. We have
also eliminated or modified certam property level incentive plans, resultmg in lower property level payroll.

Marketing costs are expected o be lower as a result of centralrzauon of all programs and the elimination
of ineffective projects. In addition, media purchasmg has been centralized with the same vendor that we
use for our domesrlc programs. ‘

In aggregate, we expect the annual savings from these. programs will be in thc $4 to $6 million range.

With respect to revenues, European | Same Store property occupancies were 89% durmg the fourth quarter,

the highest in their history. ‘Going into 2007, occupancies are 8% higher than last year with just over 4%
higher in place rents. Europe has achieved this with modest promotional discounts and better marketing
and pricing programs.

In summary, the “ mregratron is nearly complete, and we believe we are well on our way to realizing the
potential benefits from rhe merger. '

'
-

This was not a “free lunch We incurred “transaction costs’ (prlmanly severence, attorneys, investment
bankers and others) of about $48 million which have been allocated to the costs of assets acquired. We have
also incurred “integration costs” of $56 million, which have been expensed in our 2006 financial results.

Fmancral Results in 2006 - . :

The merger had a profound impact on our reported operatrng results. For 2000, revenues grew by over
30%, or $300- million, to about $1.4 billion.*” About” $200 million relates to the acquired Shurgard
properties for the period we owned them. Next year’ 1 revenues should exceed $1.6 billion attributable
prrmarrly to ownmg the Shurgard propemes fora full year. -

- Net income o common, shareholders declined by 82% to $47 mllllOl‘l As a result, earninigs per share
decreased by, 83% to $0:33; per share, from $1:97.per share in'2005. Earnings were impacted by two
major items assoc1ared with the Shurgard merger: amortization of acquired intangible assets (the ascribed
value to thie Customers occupymg ‘units at the close of the merger) and integration costs. The amortization
was $176 rmlllon in, 2006 and will be about $243 million in 2007.and $71 million in 2008. “The merger
integration costs were $56 million and consisted of severance and additional compensation associated with




the merger, as well as terminating a significant number of development projects that were in the
“planning” stage. Merger integration costs should be less than $5-million in 2007. -

The amortization of intangible assets has no impact on another measure that we typlcally report, funds
from' operations, which is basically net income before depreciation and amortizatiod, excluding gains on
sales of real estate. FFO is not reduced by the ongoing capltal investment” required to maintain- the
competitive nature of our properties. For Public Storage, this is approxxmately $40 million per year or

AL

about $0.30 per rentable square foor.

Our FFO per share declined by 1. 1% to $3.57 in 2006 from $3.61 in 2005." Excludmg the items i
associated with the Shurgard merger integration costs and -other non cash charges, we had a pretry good |
year, with per share amounts increasing by 13% to $4.17 per share in 2006 from $3 69 per share in 2005.
These comparisons are reflected in the table: ¥

Year ended December 31, I
| | 2006 2005 |
FFO per common share prior to adjustments for the )
following items $4.17 $3.69
Shurgard merger integration co.sts (0.30) . —_
Termination of contract and development projects (0.09) —
EITF Topic D-42 chargcs {(0.23) : {0.07)
Other _ 0.02 (0.01)

FFO per common share, as reported $3.57 $3.61

The 13% growth can be primarily attributed to the continued growth in our domestic Same Store
operations along with improvement in our newly developed and acquired properties. Excluding
“integration costs,” the Shurgard portfolio had very lirtle impact on our 2006 operating results. Let’s
review how each aspect of our business performed in 2006. )

Net Operating Income by Category
{Dollar amounts in thousands) ' 2006 2005 2004
Same Store properties - §575,152 $ 547,048 $ 508,998
Development properties 25,739 19,620 - 11,336
Expansion properties ' 48,921 41,202 37,877
Acquisition properties 39,798 22,911 3,099
Shurgard’s U.S. properties 80,769 — —
Shurgard’s European properties 29,279 — —
- Net operating income before depreciation 799,658 630,781 561,310
Depreciation and amortization expense (434,646) (191,102) . . {176,230) .
Total earnings from self-storage $365,012 $ 439:679 .. $385,080

ot - . - Y




Same Store Operations - S S

g .
The :Same Store” portfolio comprlses 1, 266 propertles and represents about 56% of the net renrab[e L
‘square feet of our entire portfolro Net operating income (before depr;:crauon) generated from thrs_ o

" group’ mcreased by 5% in.2006 to $575 million. Revenues rose by 5.1% drlven prrrnarrly by hrgher

t

remamed abour the same for both 2006 and 2005. TR

réntal rates and administrative fees offset by a 5% growth in o eratm exi enses O erating’ margins
Y B g i

During 2006, rental rates grew by 5.3% and occupancy levels remained stable at 91%: -Revenue per.
available square feet, or “REVPAE” which rakes into account rental rates, promotional discounts and

occupancy, grew by 5%. Our December 2006 in ..place rents are approximately 3.6% hlgher than
December 2005.

Cost of operations for the Same Store properties increased by 5%,-or approximately $13 million in
2006 as compared to 2005. Payroll ;expense, our, largest expense category,.increased 5%, .or about
$4 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The higher expenses were due principally to higher wage rates

required for some of our jOb classifications and a- lower amount of workers compensatron beneﬁt

compared to last year.

.

Advertising and promotron is comprlsed principally of media (telewsron and radlo) Yellow Pages ‘and
internet advertising, Adverusmg and promotion costs increased- 5. 6%, or approxrmately $1.3 mllllon
to $25 million in 2006 compared to 2005. We significantly expanded our media-programs to improve
incremental move-in volumes throughout the entire domestic portfoho, principally due to the
Shurgard acquisition. ) o e

Development and Expanswn Properties

Qur recently developed-and expanded properties ¢ continted o lease: up with hrgher revenues generating
improving yields. During 2006, this group of 123 fac111tles (10.5 million net rentable square feet of space)
generated $75 million of net operating income {before depreciation of $28 mllllon) These facrlmes

*,-should continue to produce above average income growth as they reach stabilized occupancy levels and

artain greater p['lClIlg power.
b

During 2006, we completed five new development propemes at a total cost of $115 mlllron, addmg

440,000 ner rentable square feet, and 17 expansion pro]ects ata [otal cost of $46 mrlllon, addmg 520, 000 )

net rentable square feet to our portfoho . . W
’ T 435 b

Our fiture development and expansion activities should continde to provrde growth ‘At year erid 2006, .

we had 48 projects which could add approxrmately 2:3 million net rentable square’ feet” over the next
_couple of years ar an esumated cost of $188 million. o ‘_-"': e

. ‘_i
: e
4 it

.Acqmsmon Propertles ' R -

y A i
While our activity this year was slowed due to the Shurgard merger, we contmue o look for rhlrd-party

¢ owned properties with the potential . to provide attractive long-term returns on_invested capital and”

-

a -




complement our existing franchise. Since 2004, we have invested $618 million to acquire 89 facilities
with approximately 6.4 million net rentable square feer. During 2006, these facilities generated
" $40 million of net dpcrétihg income (before depreciation) for a yield of 6.3%. As with our development
properties, we cipect these returns to improve as we are able to increase rental rates from promotional

lease-up rates and achieve stabilized occupancies.

Ancillary Business Operations
Qur ancillary businesses — including tenant reinsurance, merchandise sales (locks and boxes), consumer
truck renral {(both our own and as-an agent of Penske), commercial property and third-party property

management operations — collectively continue to contribute to our operating results.

In 2006, net operating income of our ancillary businesses imptroved by $7 million to $37 million,
benefiting from a larger group of properties. The earnings contribution from these businesses is expected
. to increase as the number of self-storage facilities we operate continues to grow and we have a full year’s

ownership of the Shurgard properties.

: 'Percc'ntage
(Dollar amounts in thousands) ‘ © 2006 2005 Change
Revenues : $ 93,453 $75,733 23%
Operating expenses i 56,030 44,826 25%
Net o $ 37,423 $30,907 21%

Financing .

During 20006, we raised ai total of $1.4 billion in capital from four series of preferred stock and a preferred
. partnership unit securrry ata blended annual rate of 7.1%. The net proceeds from this acrivity along with
cash on hand were used to rcdeem five series of preferred stock totaling $1.1 billion, with a blended annual
“rate of 8%, along with funding the cash requirements of the Shurgard merger. Immedlately upon the
close of the Shurgard- merger, we repaid Shurgard’s outstanding borrowings on its.bank credit facility and
certain variable, rate mortgagc notes totaling $671 million. In addition, all Shurgard’s outstanding
preferred stock was redeemed.

Overall, the total $3.2 billion of prefcrred securities outstanding at year end 2006 has an average annual
© rate of 6.9%, 120 basis pomts lower than in 2003

L4




(Dollar amounts in millions) . 2006 2005 2004 2003

Outstanding preferred seéuri:ties“’ $ 3,180 $ 2,723 $2,412 $2,152
Weighted average cost of \
preferred at period end ‘ 6.9% . 7.1% 7.4% 8.1%

(1) Excludes amounts called for redemption prior to December 31 bur not redeemed until tHe following year.

We also repaid all of the notes, $433 million (325 'millio'n“euros) thac encumbered 102 of our wholly-
owned European facilities in January 2007, To fund the repaymént of these notes, we borrowed
$360 million under our domestic credit facilities. In connection with the repayment of the debt, we also -

terminated the related European currency and interest rate hedges.
. . * :

We own a 20% interest in two consolidated joint ventures which collectively own 63 European propérties
with 3.1 million net rentable square fect. The two ventures collectively had approximately $290 miltion *
of outstanding debt at December 31, 2006, which is included in our consolidated financial statements.
In January 2007, we submitted to arbitration our notice to terminate the joint venturés after lbeing unable

to reach a satisfactory resolution with our joint venture partner for their dissolution.

In carly January 2007, we raised $500 million in capital through the issuance of preferféd stock at an
annual rate of 6.625%. We used the proceeds to redeém two series of preferred: securities and paydown

the domestic credir facilities. B

For the remainder of 2007, we have an opporrunity to redeem one prcferred lssuc of approxnmately

" $173 million, with an annual rate of 7.5%.

During 2006, we received an upgrade in our credit rating from Moody's, to an A3 on our senior Linsecured

debt. With our Standard and Poor’s rating of A-, we are the only REIT with this level of dual ratmg ‘Few
real estate compamcs or businesses have the financial strength of Publlc Storagc We have the lowest debt

relative to size and the hlghcst retamed cash levels of any REIT m the U.S. We are prcparcd for the
“unexpected” to take advantage of uncxpectcd opportunities.”

Investment in PS Business Parks . S
At year end, PS Business Parks’ (PSB) equity market capitalization was over $2 billion and our
44% investment in PSB was valued at approximately $900 million. More importantly, PSB performed

well relative to its competition and was able to grow its “Same Park” portfollo net operatmg income’

by 2.9%.




than in 2004 . . ) o

The customer env1ronment for PSB improved dramaucally in 2006, and the outlook for 2007 is even
better. The higher Same Pack net operating income was driven by a 3.7% increasé in revenues primarily
due to0 a 2.5% increase in annual realized rents o $14.09 per square foot. Operating margin and,
occupancy remained stablé’at 70% and 93%, respectlvely '

PSB took advantage of the favorable interest rate environment and completed two preferred

. issuances totaling $239 million at a blended rate of 7%. Overall, the total $799 million of

preferred stock outstandmg ar year end has a blended annual rate of 7.2%, 60 basis points lower

ks

(Dollar amounts in thousands) . - 2006, 2005 2004

Qutstanding preferred-securities | - $.799,000 $ 729,100 $ 638,600

Weighted average cost of

e,

.preferred at pe_riod end .‘ : ' ’ ' 7.2% _7'.7% 7.8%

Tty

(1) Includes the issuance'of $144 million of S;:ries P and the redemption of $50 million of Series F, both in January 2007 -

'y "‘ i

PSB’s operations should continue to improve in 2007 as its cost of capital declines and occupancies and

rental- rate growth ‘return to historical levels.. Improving market conditions should drive h1gher

occuparicies and revenue per square foor.

A.Co'nc'lu'sion and Qutlook _
.2006 was 2 challengmg year. Our 5,000 employces worked hard to produce solid results in all our_

busmesses and successfully integrate Shurgard. The results of our hard work in 2006 should become more
rransparem in 2007.

We wrll contmue fo relentlessly focus on the three drivers of our business — People, Product and l’rlcmg
In the long fun, if we continue to improve upon our competmve advantages lower our costs of capital
and deploy incremental caplral at reasonable rates of return, our dwners should beneﬁt from sustamed
growth in intrinsic value. “ : T )

L4 ':'1

i " : . [N

'Ronald L ‘Havner ]r .

President and Chref Execunve Oﬂ’icer
March 23, 2007 - ’
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Computation of Funds from Ope.rations (unandited)

Funds from operations (“FFO”} is a term defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“NAREIT”). FFO is a supplemental non-GAAP financial disclosure, and it is generally defined
as net income before depreciation and gains and losses on real estate assets. FFQ is presented because
management and many analysts consider FFO to be one measure of the performance of real estate
companies and because we believe that FFQ is helpful to investors as an additional measure of the
performance of a REIT. FFO computations do not consider scheduled principal payments on debt,
capital improvements, distribution and other obligations of the Company. FFO is not a substitute for
our cash flow or net income as a measure of our liquidity or operating performance or our ability to pay
dividends. Other REITs may not compute FFO in the same manner; accordingly, FFO may not be
comparable among REIT:.

For the year ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004 7
Net income: $314,026 $456,393 $366,213
Depreciation and amortization . 437,984 196,232 183,063
Depreciation and amortization included in
discontinued operations 234 253 1,282
Less - depreciation with respect to non-real estate assets (225) (1,789) (4,252}
Depreciation from unconsolidated real estate investments 38,890 35,425 33,720
Gain on sale of real estate assets (4,547) (8,279) (2,288)
Less - our share of gain on sale of real estate included
in equity of earnings of real estate entities (1,047) (7,858) (6,715)
Minority interest share of income 31,883 32,651 49,913
Net cash provided by operating activities 817,198 703,028 620,936
FFO to minority interest - common (17,312)  (18,782)  (23,473)
FFO to minority interest - preferred (19,055) (17,021)  (32,486)
Funds from operations ’ 780,831 667,225 564,977
Less: allocations to preferred and eqmty stock shareholders: :
Senior Preferred (245,711) (180,555) (166,649)
Equity Stock, Series A (21,424) (21,443)  (21,501)
FFQ allocable to our common shareholders $513,696 $465,227 $376,827
Weighted average shares outstanding: :
Common shares 142,760 128,159 127,836
Stock option dilution 955 660 845
Weighted average common shares for purposes of
computing fully-diluted FFO per common share 143,715 128,819 128,681
FFO per common share $ 357 $ 361 $§ 293
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ITEM1.. . Business

Forward Looking Statements

All statements in this document, other than statements of historical fact; are forward-looking statements
which may be identified by the use of the words "expects,” "believes," "anticipates,” "should,” “estimates" and
similar expressions. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which
may cause: Public Storage’s actual results and performance to be materially different from those expressed or
implied in the forward-looking statements. Factors and risks that may impact future results and performance are
described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors”. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following: risks related to the
merger with Shurgard including difficulties that may be encountered in integrating Public Storage and Shurgard,
loss of personnel as a result of the merger, and the impact of the merger on occupancy and rental rates, the inability
to realize or delays in realizing expected results from the merger, unanticipated operating costs resulting from the
merger, and risks associated with international operations; changes in general economic conditions and in the
markets in which Public Storage operates; the impact of competition from new and existing storage and commercial
facilities and other storage alternatives, which could impact rents and occupancy levels at our facilities; difficulties
in Public Storage's ability to evaluate, finance and integrate acquired and developed properties into its existing
operations and to fill up those properties, which could adversely affect our profitability; the impact of the
regulatory environment as well as national, state, and local laws and regulations. including, without limitation,
those governing Real Estate Investment Trusts,  which could increase our expenses and reduce cash available for
distribution; consumers' failure to accept the containerized storage concept; difficulties in raising capital at
reasonable rates, which would impede our' ability to grow; delays in the development process; economic
uncertainty due to the impact of war or terrorism. We disclaim any obligation to update publicly or otherwise revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new,information, new estimates, or other factors, events or
circumstances after the date of this document, except where expressly required by law.

General

Public Storage, Inc. (the "Company” or “we” or “our”) is an equity real estate investment trust ("REIT")
organized as a corporation under the laws of California: on July 10, 1980. We are a fully integrated, self-
administered and self-managed REIT that acquires, develops, owns and operates self-storage facilities, We are the
largest owner and operator of self-storage space in the United States. Our common stock is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol “PSA”. On August 22, 2006, the Company merged with Shurgard Storage
Centers, Inc., (“Shurgard™), a REIT which had an interest in 487 self-storage facilities located in the United States
(“U.8.”) and had an interest in 160 self-storage facilities in Europe. See Note 3 to our consolidated financiai
statements included elsewhere in this report for further discussion of our merger with Shurgard,

‘
-

At December 31, 2006, we had direct and indirect equity interests in 2,003 self-storage facilities located in
38 states within the U.S. operating under the “Public Storage” name containing approximately 125 million net
rentable square feet of space, and 166 self-storage facilities located in seven Western European countries which
operate under the “Shurgard Storage Centers” name contaixiing approximately 8.7 million net rentable square feet of
space. We also have direct and indirect equity interests in approximately 20 million net rentable square feet of
commercial space located in 11 states in the U.S. operated under the “PS Business Parks” and Public Storage, Inc.
brands. ”

We currently operate within three reportable segments: self-storage — Domestic operations, self-storage —
European operations and domestic ancillary operations. These segments are organized generally based upon their
operating characteristics. The self-storage — Domestic segment comprises the direct ownership, development, and
operation of traditional storage facilities in the U.S., and the ownership of equity interests in entities that own
storage properties in the U.S. The self-storage — European segment comprises the direct ownership, development,
and operation of storage facilities in Europe that we acquired in the merger with Shurgard. The ancillary operations
segment includes the following sources of operating income: (i) containerized storage, (ii) commercial property




operations, which reflects our interest in the ownership, operation, and management of commercial properties (iii)
the reinsurance of policies against losses to goods stored by tenants in our self-storage facilities, (iv) sale of
merchandise at our self-storage facilities, (v) truck rentals at our self-storage facilities and (vi) management of
facilities owned by third-party owners and facilities owned by entities in which we have an interest, but are not
consolidated. The vast majority of the commercial property operations are conducted through PS Business Parks,
Inc. (“PSB”), and to a much lesser extent the Company and certain of its unconsolidated subsidiaries own
commercial space, managed by PSB, within facilities that combine storage and commercial space for rent.. See Note
15 to our eonsohdated ﬁnaneml statements for further discussion of our. reportable segments

We also have a 44% ownershxp interest in PSB wh:ch as of December 31 2006 owned and operated
commercial propemes containing approximately 18.7 million net rentable.square feet of commercial space. PS
Business Parks, Inc. is a pubhcly traded REIT whose common stock trades on the Amencan Stock Exchange under
thesymbol“PSB” “o e R , S

S,

We have elected 10 be taxed as a REIT under the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended. To- the
extent that we continue to qualify as a REIT, we will not be subjeet to tax with certain limited excepnons on the
taxable income that is dlstnbuted to our shareholders o LR i

We have reported annually to the Secuntles and Exchange Comrmssmn (“SEC”) on Form 10 K, which
includes financial statements certified by independent public accountants.. We- have also reported quarterly to the
SEC on Form 10-Q, which mcluded unaudited financial statements w1th such filmgs We expect to continue such
reporting. ' . > . o

i Our website is www.publicstorage.com, and we make available free 'of charge on our website our reports
on Forms 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K, and all amendments to those Teports as soon as- reasonably practleable after the
reports and amendments are electromcally ﬁled with or furmshed to the SEC.. . S

Management

Ronald L. Havner, Jr. (49) has been Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company
since November 7, 2002 and President since July 1, 2005. Mr. Havner joined Public Storage, Inc. in 1986 and has
held a variety of positions; including Chairman of the Board of D1rectors for the Company s affiliate, PS Businéss
Parks, Inc., a pos1tlon he has held since Ma:ch 1998, S :

5 * . -

B. Wayne Hughes (73) is Chamnan of the Board of Dlrectors, a posmon he has held since 1991 Mr,
Hughes established the Pubhc Storage orgamzatlon m 1972 and has managed the Company through several market
cycles. u' :

Our executive management team and their years of experience with the Company are as follows: John
Reyes (46), Senior Vice President - Chief Financial Officer, 16 years; John 8. Baumann (46), Senior Vice President
- Chief Legal Officer, who joinéd the Company in'June 2003; John E: Graul (55),-Senior Vice President and
President, Self-Storage Operations, who joined the Company in February 2004; Candace N. Krol (45), Senior Vice
President of Human-Resources, who joined the Company in September 2005 and David F. Doll (48), Senior Vice
President and President, Real Estate Group, who joined thie-Company in February 2005.

Cur senior mahagement has- a-significant ownership position in the Company-with executive officers;
directors and their families owning approximately 45.6 million shares or 27% of the common stock as of
February 28, 2007.

Ty

Investment Oblectlv
Our primary objective is to increase the: intrinsic value of the Company through internal growth (by
increasing net income, funds from operations and cash available for distribution) and acquisitions of additional real




estate investments and development of real estate facilities. We believe: that our access to capital, geographic
diversification and operating efficiencies resulting from our size will enhance our ability to achieve this objective.

Competition

Competition in the market areas in which we operate is significant and affects the occupancy levels, rental
rates and operating expenses of our facilities. Development of new self-storage facilities has intensified the
competition among storage operators in many market areas in which we operate. - : Co

In seeking investments, we compete with a wide variety of institutions and other investors. The increase in
the amount of funds available for real estate investments has increased competition for ownersh1p interests in
facilities and may reduce ylelds on acquisitions.

We beheve that the significant operating and financial experience of our executive officers and directors,
combined with the Company's conservative capital structure, national investment scope, geographic diversity,
economies of scale and the "Public Storage” brand name, should-enable us to compete effectively with other entities.

In recent years consolidation has occurred in the fragmented self-storage industry. In addition to the
Company, there are other publicly traded REITs and numerous private regional and local operators operating in the
self-storage industry. We believe that we are well positioned to capitalize on tl'us consolidation trend due to our
demonstrated access to capital and national presence. ! . Caen '

Business Attributes

We believe that the Company possesses several primary business attributes that' permit us to compete
effectively:

Comprehensive distribution system and national telephone reservation system: Qur facilities are part of a
comprehensive distribution system encompassing standardized procedures, integrated reporting and information
networks and centralized marketing. During 2004, we implemented an upgraded information system platform,
which has enabled us to more quickly adapt our pricing and marketing efforts to changing market conditions. ‘This
distribution system, among other benefits, is designed to maximize revenue and occupancy levels through automated
pricing.

A significant component of our distribution system is our national telephone reservation center, which
provides added customer service and helps to-maximize utilization of available .self-storage space. Customers
calling either the toll-free -telephone referral system, (800} 44-STORE, or a storage facility, are directed to the
national reservation system. A representative discusses with the customer, space requirements, price and location
preferences and also informs the customer of other products and services provided by the Company and its
subsidiaries.. We believe that the national telephone reservation system enhances our ability to market storage space.

Economies of scale: We are the largest provider of self-storage space in the industry. - As of December 31,
2006, we operated 2,169 storage facilities in which we had an interest and managed 29 self-storage facilities for
third parties.” These facilities are in markets within 38 states in the U.S. and seven Western Eurapean countries. At
December 31, 2006, we had over 1,102,000 spaces rented. The size and scope of our operations have ¢nabled us to
achieve a high level of profit margins and low level of administrative costs relative to revenues.

Our size in many markets has enabled us to market efficiently using television as a-media source. We
believe the high cost of television makes it impractical for our competltors to use tlus form of media without the
high concentration of facllmes in markets. -

Brand name recognition: Our operations are conducted under the “Public Storage” brand naime, which we

believe is the most recognized and established name in the self-storage industry in the U.S. Our storage operations
within the U.S. are conducted in 38 states, giving us national recognition and prominence. We focus our operations




within those states in the major metropolitan markets. This concentration establishes us as one of the largest
providers .of self-storage space in virtually all markets that we operate in and enables us-to use a variety of
promotional activities, such as television advertising as well as targeted discounting and referrals which are
generally not economically viable for most of our competitors. :

The self-storage industry in Europe is still relatively new as compared to the U.S. Customer awareness of
the product in Europe is emerging. All of our facilities in' Europe are operating under the “Shurgard” brand name.
While competition in Europe has been increasing, we believe we are the single largest self-storage operators in
Europc as of December 31, 2006.

Retad operanons Through a taxable REIT.‘subsidiary, we sell retail items associated with the storage
business and rent trucks at our storage facilities. In order to supplement and strengthen the existing self-storage
business by further meeting the needs of storage customers, we continue to expand our retail activities.

In addition, full-service retail stores have been retrofitted to some existing storage facility rental offices or
“built-in” as part of the development of new storage facilities, both in high traffic, high visibility locations. The
strategic objective of these retail stores is to provide a retail environment to (i) rent spaces for the attached storage
facility, (ii) rent spaces for the other Public' Storage facilities in adjacent neighborhoods;, (iii) sell locks ‘boxes and
packing materials and (iv) rent trucks and other moving equipment.

Tenanr insurance pragram: Th:ough a taxable REIT subsidiary, PS Insurance Company Ltd. (“PSIC”), we
reinsure policies issued to our tenants against fost or damaged goods stored by tenants in our storage facilities. This
subsidiary receives the premiums and bears the risks associated with the re-insurance. We believe that this
insurance operation further supplements and strengthens the existing self-storage busmcss and prowdes an
additional source of eamnings for the Company.

Growth and Investment Strategies

- '

. Our growth strategies consist of: (i) improving the operating performance of our existing self-storage
properties, (ii) acquiring interests in properties that are owned or operated by others, (iii) expanding and repackaging
existing real estate facilities, (iv) developing properties in selected markets and (v) participating in the growth of
commercial facilities owned primarily by PSB. These strategies are described as follows: :

Improve the operating performance of existing properties: We seck to increase the net cash flow
generated by our existing self-storage properties by a) regularly evaluating our call volume, reservation activity, and
move-in/move-out rates for each of our properties relative to our marketing activities, b) evaluating market supply
and demand factors and, based upon these analyses, adjusting our marketing activities and rental rates, ¢) attempting
to maximize revenues through evaluating the appropriate balance between occupancy, rental rates, and promotional
discounting and d) controlling expense levels. We believe that our property management personnel and systems, -
combined with the national telephone reservation system, will continue to enhance our ability to meet these goals.

In connection with the merger with Shurgard, we acquired 487 self-storage facilities-located in the United
States. Substantially all of these facilities are located in the same markets that we currently operate in. We believe
that the.merger will provide us with additional economies of scale with respect to certain operating costs that will
ultimately improve operating margins. In addition, on August 31,2006, the average occupancy level of the 487 self-
storage facilities was approximately 84.4% as compared to our existing portfolio’s 89.7%. We believe that we will
be able to increase the average occupancy level of the acquired portfolio to those experienced by our own. These
potential benefits will take time to develop and there can be no assurance that we will be able to such benefits.

Acquire properties owned or operated by others: We believe our presence in and knowledge of
substantially all of the major markets in the United States enhances our ability to identify attractive acquisition
opportunities and capitalize on the overall fragmentation in the self-storage industry.- We maintain local market
information on rates, cccupancy and competition in each of the markets in which we operate.




Expand and repackage existing real estate facilities: We have a substantial number of facilities that were
developed and constructed 20 or more years ago based upon local competitive and demographic conditions in place
at that time. Since such conditions may have changed, there are opportunities to expand and further invest into our
existing self-storage locations, either by improving their visual and structural appeal, or by expanding these facilities
at a per square foot cost that is typically less than the cost incurred in developing 2 new location, In addition, there
are opportunities to convert existing vacant space previously used by our containerized storage facilities into
traditional self-storage space. At December 31, 2006, we have identified 48 such projects to expand or repackage
our existing facilities in the United States, for an aggregate cost of approximately $187.6 million, which will add an
aggregate of approximately 2,256,000 net rentable square feet.  Completion of these projects is subject to
contingencies, including obtaining governmental agency approvals. We continue to evaluate our existing real estate
portfolio to identify additional expansion and repackaging opportunities.

Develop properties in selected market: Since 1995, the Company and its joint venture partnerships
(described below in “Financing of the Company’s Growth Strategies™) have opened a total of 151 facilities in the
United States. During 2006, these facilities contributed significantly to the growth in our earnings as they continued
to gain occupancy and grow their revenues. We expect that these facilities will continue to provide growth to our
earnings into 2007. As of December 31, 2006, we have no new. self-storage facilities in the development “pipeline”
in the U.S. As of December 31, 2006, our development “pipeline” in Europe is comprised of eight new self-storage
facilities with an aggregate estimated cost of approximately $78.5 million, and an aggregate of 389,000 net rentable
square feet. In 2005 and 2006, our rate of development of new self-storage facilities has declined due to increases in
construction cost, increases in competition with retail, condominium, and apartment operators for quality self-
storage sites in urban locations, and more difficult zoning and perrmtung requirements. However, we will continue
to seek favorable sites and markets for development.

Participate in the growth of commercial facilities primarily through our ownership in PS Business

Parks, Inc.: We own a 44% common equity interest in PSB and its operating partnership (PS Businéss Parks Inc.
and the related operating partnership are hereinafter referred to collectively as “PSB™) which, December 31, 2006,
consisted of 5,418,273 shares of common stock and 7,305,355 limited partnership units in the Operating Partnership.
The limited partmership units are convertible at our option, subject to certain conditions, on a one-for-one basis into
PSB common stock. At December 31, 2006, PSB owned and operated approximately 18.7 million net rentable
square feet of commercial space located in elght states. .
Acquire additional partnerships interests in affiliated entities: The acquisition of interests.in facilities that
we have an ownership interest in and operate has historically comprised a significant component of our growth.
However, the pool of such available acquisitions has continued to decrease as we have acquired such remaining
interests over the years. The potential remaining acquisition opportunities principally include the remaining 78%
that we do not own in the 22 properties owned by the “Other Investments” described in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 as well as the. “Other Consolidated Parm::rshlps”.and
Shurgard Joint Ventures described in Note 11 to the consolidated finanmal statements for the year ended December
31, 2006. Accordingly, we do not expect such acquisitions to comprise a significant component of our growth going
forward. - . ,
Policies with respect to investing activities: Following are our policies with respect to, certain other-

investing strategies, each of which may be entered into without a vote of shareholders: . _
e  Making loans to other entities: We have; made loans in connection with the sale of properties, have
made short-term loans to PSB, in the last three years and may make loans to third parties as part of our

. investment objectives. However, we do not expect such items to be a significant part of our investing.

activities. : ! . : B

o Investing in the securities of other issuers for the purpose of exercising control: There have been two
instances in the past six years where we invested in the securities of another publicly-held REIT, one
which resulted in control of that REIT (the merger with Storage Trust, Inc. in 1999), and one that did
not, resulting in the sale of these securities on the open market. We may engage in these activities in




the future as a component of our real estate acquisition sirategy. We also own partnership interests in
various consolidated and unconsolidated partnerships. See “Investments in Real Estate and Real Estate
Entities.” .

*  Underwriting securities of"other issuers: We have not engaged in this actlvny in the last three years,

and do not intend to in the future. .
e 'Shorn-term investing: We have not engaged in investments in real estate or real estate entities on a
short-term basis in the last three years with the exception of the aforementioned investments in the
securities of other REITs. Instead, historically, we have acquired real estate assets and held them for
an extended period of time. We do not anticipate any such short-term investments.

o' Repurchasing or reacquiring our common shares or other securities: The Board of Directors has

authorized the repurchase from time to time of up to 25,000,000 shares of our common stock on the
open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Cumulatively through February 28, 2007, we
repurchased a total of 22,201,720 shares of common stock under this authorization. Cumulatively
through February 28, 2007, we have called for redemption or repurchased $2.5 billion of our senior
preferred stock and $165 million of our preferred partnership units for cash, representing a refinancing
of these securities into lower-coupon preferred securities. * Any future repurchases of our common
stock will depend primarily upon the attractiveness of repurchases compared to our other investment
alternatives. Future redemptions or 'repurchases of our preferred securities, which will become
available for redemption or repurchase on their respective call dates, will be dependent upon the spread
between market rates and the coupon rates of these securities. -

Fingnciitg of the Company’s Growth Strategies-

'Overview of financing strategy: Over the past three years we have funded substantially all of the cash
portion (represented by our acquisition cost less debt assumed, as described below) of our acquisitions, excluding
the merger with Shurgard, for which we issued 0.82 shares of our common stock for each share of Shurgard
common stock owned by Shurgard shareholders, with permanent capital (predominantly retained cash flow and the
net proceeds from the issuance of preferred securities). We have elected to use preferred securities as a form of
leverage despite the fact that the dividend rates of our preferred securities exceed the prevailing market interest
rates on conventional debt, because of certain benefits described in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operanons-quuldlty and Capital Resources »* Our present intent is to continue
to ﬁna.uce substantlally all our growth with permanent capital. !

¥

Borrowings: We have in the past used our $200 million revolving line of credit described below under
“Borrowings” as temporary “bridge” financing, and repaid those amounts with permanent capital. In 2006, in
connection with the merger with Shurgard, we assumed i) Shurgard’s domestic and European notes payable and
capital leases with a fair value on the date of acquisition of approximately $1,396,777,000 of which $67,275,000
was repaid following the merger and ii) Shurgard’s line of credit totaling $603,772,000, which was repaid following
the merger. On December 27, 2006, we entered into a $300 million unsecured short-term credit agreement with a
commercial bank. Pursuant to the credit agreement, we borrowed $300 million. On January 10, 2007, borrowings
under this facility were repaid in full and at such time the credit facility was terminated. During 2004, we assumed
long-term secured mortgage notes of $94.7 million in connection with property acquisitions. Prior to 2004, we
incurred long-term debt during the merger with Storage Trust in 1999 wherein we assumed $100 million in senior
unsecured notes, We were unable to prepay these debt balances either because of the nature of the loan terms or
because it was not economically advantageous to do so. While it is not our present intention to issue additional debt
as a long-term financing strategy, we have broad powers to borrow in furtherance of our objectives without a vote of
our shareholders. These powers are subject to a limitation on unsecured borrowings in our By]aws described in

“Limitations on Borrowmgs below. '
- Issuance af senior securities: We have in the last three years, and expect to continue, to issue additional
series of preferred stock that are senior to our Common Stock and Equity Stock. At December 31, 2006, we had




approximately $2.9 billion of preferred stock outstanding, excluding two series.that were called for redemption in
December 2006 and subsequently redeemed on January 18, 2007 and February 20, 2007, respectively, and prior to
issuing an additional $500 million of preferred stock in January 2007. -The preferred stock, which was issued in
series, has general preference rights with respect to liquidation and quarterly dlstnbunons We intend to continue
to issue preferred securities without a vote of our common shareholders

Issuance of securities in exchange for property: We have issued both common and preferred equity in
exchange for real estate and other investments in the last three years. On October 12, 2004, we issued $25 million
in preferred units in conjunction with the acquisition of a self-storage business. Future issuances will be dependent
upon market conditions at the time,-including the market prices of our equity securities. '

Joint Venture financing: We entered into two separate development joint venture partnerships since 1997
in order to provide development financing, “The first development joint venture partnershlp was formed in 1997
and completed in 2001 .- ’

In November 1999, we formed PSAC Development Partners, L.P., (the “Consolidated Development Joint
Venture”) with a joint venture partner (“PSAC Storage Investors, LLC”) whose partners include a third party
institutional investor, owning approximately 35%, and Mr. Hughes, owning approximately 65%, to develop
approximately $100 million of storage facilities. The Consolidated Development Joint Venture completed
construction on 22 storage facilities with a total cost of approximately $108.6 million. On August 5, 2005 we
acquired the third party institutional investor’s partnership interest in PSAC Storage lavestors, LLC for
approximately $41.4 million in cash, and on November 17, 2005 we acquired Mr. Hughes’ interest for an aggregate
of $64.5 million in cash.

In January 2004, we entered into a joint venture partnership with an institutional investor for the purpose
of acquiring up to $125.0 million of existing' self-storage properties in the United States from third parties (the
“Acquisition Joint Venture”). The venture is funded entirely with equity consisting of 30% from the Company and
70% from the institutiona) investor. For a six-month period beginning 54 months after formation, we have the right
to acquire our joint venture partner’s interest based upon the market value of the properties. If we do not exercise
our opnon, our joint venture partner can elect to purchase our interest in the properties during a six-month period
commencing upon expiration of our six-month option period. If our joint venture partner fails to exercise its
option, the partmership will be liquidated and the proceeds will be distributed to the partners according to the joint
venture agreement. As of December 31, 2006, the Acquisition Joint Venture owned interests in a total of 12 self-
storage facilities. See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2006 for further discussion
of the accounting for the Acquisition Joint Venture. We do not expect the Acquisition Joint Venture to acquire any
additional facilities.

We may continue to form additional joint ventures to facilitate the funding of future developments or
acquisitions.

Disposition of properties: We historically have disposed of self-storage facilities only because of
condemnation proceedings, which compel us to sell. We do not presently expect to sell any 51gmﬁcant number of
self-storage facilities in the future, though there can be no assurance that we will not

Investments in Real Estate and Real Estate Entities

Investment Policies and Practices with respect to our investments: Following are our investment practices
and'policies which, though we do not anticipate any significant alteration, can be changed by the Board of Directors
w1thout a shareholder vote: ¢ :

. Our-iuvcstments primarily consist of direct ownership of self-storage properties (the nature of our self-
storage properties is described in Item 2, “Properties™), as well as partial-interests in entities that own
self-storage properties, which are primarily located in the United States.



2006:

2006:

. . Our mvestments are acqulred both for income and for capital gain.’

*  Our partial ownership interests pnmanly reflect general and lnmted partnershjp interests in ennues that
own self-storage facilities that are managed by us under the “Public Storage” brand name.

»  Additional acguired interests in real estate (other than the acqmsmon properties from third pames) will
include common eqmty interests in entities in which we already have an interest.

¢ To a lesser extent, we have mterests in ex1st1ng commercnal propemes (descnbed in-Item 2,
“Properties”), containing commercial and industrial rental space, primarily through our investment in
PSB.

* Wehavea “pipéli.ne” of 56 development i)rojects, ihcluding 48 expansiclms of real estate facilities, for a
total estimated cost of approximately $266 million. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

" The following table outlines our ownership interest in self-storage facilities in the U.S. at December 31,

Net Rentable Square

Footage of Storage
Number of Space

Storage Facilities (in thousands)

Consolidated self-storage facilities;
" Wholly-owned by the Company ..........ccoovensiven - 1,490 95,005
. Other consolidated facilities..............coccerennes - © 491 L 28,998
1981 124,003

Facilities owned by unconsolidated entitics ......... .22 1,427
Total self-storage facilities in which the ‘ '

Company has an ownership interest ................. 2,003 . 125,430

The following table outlines our ownership interest in self-storage facilities in Europe at December 31,

Net Rentable Square
Footage of Storage

Number of Space
Storage Facilities (in thousands)
Consolidated self-storage facilities:
Wholly-owned by the Company...........ccoreeeee 103 . 5,581
. Other consolidated facilities........ooovvvreeecerncne. 63 ' 3,108
Total self-storage facilities in which the : g
Company has an ownership interest ................. 166 8,689

In addition to'our inierest in self-storage facilities noted above, we own six commercial facilities with an

aggregate of 520,000 net rentable square feet, three industrial facilities with an aggregate of 244,000 net rentable
square feet used by the continuing containerized storage operations, and have 1,041,000 net rentable square feet of
commercial space at certain of the self-storage facilities. The Company and the entities it controls also have a 44%
common interest in PSB, which at December 31, 2006 owned and operated approxunately 18.7 million net rentable
square feet of commercial space.
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Facilities Owned by Controlled Entities ) I ' L

In addition to our dlrect ownershlp of 1 ,490 self-storage facilities at December 31, 2006, we had controlling
ownership interests in 52 entities owmng an aggregate of 491 storage facilities in the U.S. and 63 in Europe.
Because of our controlhng interest .in each of these entities, we consolidate the assets, hablhnes and results of

operations of these entities on our financial statements. L o

Through the merger w1t11 Shurgard, we acqmred two joint venture entities: First’ Shurgard SPRI (First
Shurgard) formed in January 2003 and Second Shurgard SPRL (Second Shurgard) formed in May 2004. These joint
ventures were expected to develop or acquire up to approximately 75 storage facilities in Europe. Shurgard Europe
has a 20% interest in each of these ventures. We have determined that First Shurgard and Second Shurgard are each
Variable Interest Entities (See Note 2 to our December 31, 2006 consolidated financial statements), and that we are
the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, First Shurgard and Second Shurgard have been consolidated in our
consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report for further discussion of the joint ventures acquired in the merger thh Shurgard

. N

On September 5, 2006, we informed the joint venture partners of First Shurgard and Second Shurgard of
our intention to purchase theu' interests in First Shurgard and Second Shurgard, pursuant to an “exit procedure” that
we believe is provided for in the respective agreements. Our joint venture partners currently contest whether we
have the right to purchase their interests under this procedure and, accordingly, it is uncertain as to whether we will
acquire their interests pursuant to these provisions. On January 17, 2007, we filed an arbltratmn request to compel
arbitration of the matter. e . . S

Following the merger with Shurgard, we acqu1red the minority interests in certam of Shurgard’s joint
ventures, for an aggregate of approximately $62,300,000 in cash. As a result of these transactnons we obtamed the
remaining interest in a total of 68 facilities located in the U.S. -

) . A
[ b s
T .

Facilities Owned by Unconsolidated Entities

At December 31, 2006, we had ownership interests in PSB and five lumted partnershjps (collectwely the
“Unconsolidated Entities”). Our ownership interest in these entities is less than 50%. i

' Due to our limited ownership interest and limited control of these entities, we do not consolidate the
accounts of these entities for financial reporting purposes and we account for such investmenits using the equ1ty
method. PSB, which files financial statements with the Securities and Exchange Comm:ss:on has ‘debt and other
obligations that are not included in our consolidated financial statements. The five limited pannerslups do not have
any significant amounts of debt or other obligations. See Note 6 to our consolidated ﬁnancm] statements for the
year ended December 31, 2006 for further disclosure regarding the assets and Labilities. of the Unconsohdated
Entities. . N '

The followmg chart sets forth, as of December 31 2006 the entities in which we have a contro]lmg interest

and the entities in which we have a minority interest:
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Carson Storage Ventures

Connecticut Storage Fund

Del Amo Storage Partners, Ltd.
Downey Storage Partners, Ltd, (1)
Huntington Beach Storage Partners, Lid.
Monterey Park Properties, Ltd. (2)

PS Orangeco Parmerships, Inc, -~

PS Partners, Lid.

PS Partners VIIL, Lid,

PS Texas Hoidings, 11, Ltd.

Public Storage Properties IV, Ltd. (3)'
Public Storage Properties V, Ltd.(4)
PSA Institutional Partners, L.P.

PS HKBF, LLC .
Public Storage Euro Fund 111, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund IV, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund V, Ltd. (5}
Public Storage Euro Fund VI, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund V11, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Eure Fund VIII, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund IX, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund X, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund XI, Lid. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund XII, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Euro Fund XIII, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage German Fund 11, Ltd. (5)
Public Storage Institutional Fund
Public Storage Institutional Fund III
Public Storage Pariners, Ltd. (6)
Public Storage Partners II, Ltd. (7)
Public Storage Properties, Ltd. (8)
Secure Mini-Storage . :
Shurgard/Canyon Park Self Storage, Ltd.
Shurgard-Freeman Franklin/Rivergate JV
Shurgard-Freeman Hermitage JV
Shurgard-Freeman Hickory Hollow JV
Shurgard-Freeman Medical Center JV
Shurgard-Freeman Memphis LLC
Shurgard-Freeman South Main JV
Shurgard-Freeman Stones River JV
Shurgard Resco LLC , , N
Shurgard Resco II, LLC

Shurgard Resco I1I, LLC

Shurgard TRC Self Storage Development LLC
STOR-Re Mutual Insurance Company, Inc.
Storage Trust Properties, L.P.

Van Nuys Storage Partners, Ltd. (9)

Whittier Storage Partners, Ltd.

First Shurgard SPRI

Second Shurgard SPRL

Subsidiaries (Controlled Entities) Entities in which we have =~
of the Company a Minority Interest (Unconsolidated Entities)
Capital Hill Partners, A Limited Partnership Publi¢ Storage Alameda, Lid. (5)
Carson Storage Parmers, Ltd. ’ Public Storage Glendale Freeway, Lid. (10) '

Metropublic Storage Fund (11)- .
PS Business Parks, Inc. (12): = . .
Public Storage Crescent Fund, Ltd. (13)

PSAF Acquisition Partners, Ltd.

s o 2

(1) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately 2.8% of the limited partnership interest of this entity.
(2) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately 4.4% of the limited partnership interest of this entity.

{3) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general pariner interests and 15.5% of the limited parmership interests of this entity.
(4) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general partner interests and 11.4% of the limited partnership interests of this entity.
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. (5) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately-20% of the general partner interest of these entities. . e 2
(6) . The Hughes Family owns approximately 24.3% of the limited partnership interest of this entity.
(7) 'The Hughes Family owns approximately 11.9% of the limited partnership interest of this entity.
(8) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general partner interests and 30.5% of the limited partnership mterests of this entity.
(9) B. Wayne Hughes owns approxrmately 17.4% of the limited partnership interest of this entity.
(10) B. Wayne Hughes is a genera! partner in this entity and owns 2 0.02% equlty interest.
{11) B. Wayne Hughes is a general partner of this entity, and has no economic interest. .
{12) B. Wayne Hugh&c owns approximately 0.5% of the common ‘shares of PS Business Parks, Inc.
{13) B. Wayne Hughes owns approxiinately l? 9% of the-general parmershlp interest 'of this crmty
. ’ ' i

r .. . - +
L . 3 . Th . . [

P.rohibited Investments and Activities

Our Bylaws prohibit us from purchasing properties in which the Company's officers or directors have an
interest, or from selling properties to such persons, unless the transactions are approved by a majority of the
independent directors and are fair to the Company based on an indeépendent appraisal. This Bylaw provision may be
changed with shareholder approval.: See "Limitations:on Debt" below for other restrictions in the Bylaws.

f ' . .
. . [

Borrowings . . - : : "

We have a $200 million revolving line of credit (the “Credit Agreement”) that has a maturity date of
April 1, 2007 and bears an annual interest rate ranging from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus
0:50% to LIBOR plus 1.20% depending on our credit ratings (LIBOR plus 0.50% as of December 31, 2006). In
addition, we are required to pay a quarterly commitment fee ranging from 0.15% per annum to 0.30% per annum
depending on our credit ratings (the fee was 0.15% per annum as of December 31, 2006). At December 31, 2006,
we had $45 million in-outstanding borrowings under our $200 million bank line of cred.lt At February 28, 2007, we
had $80 million in cutstanding borrowmgs on our line ‘of credit.

The Credit Agreement mcludes various covenants, the more srgmﬁcant of which require us to (i) maintain a
balarice sheet leverage ratio of less ‘than 0.55 to 1.00, (i) maintain certain quarterly interest and fixed-charge
coverage ratios (as defined) of not less than 2.25 to 1.0 and 1.5 to 1.0, respectively, and (iii) maintain a minimum
total shareholders’ equity (as defined). In addition, we are limited in our ability to incur additional borrowings'(we
are required to maintain unencumbered assets with an aggregate book value equal to or greater than 1.5 times our
unsecured recourse debt). We were in compliance with all the covenants of the Credit Agreement at December 31,
2006. This credit facility expires on April 10, 2007. We are currently in the process of obtaining a new credit
facility which we anticipate will have $300 million of available borrowing capacity, as well as improved financing
spreads and covenants. We cxpect the new .credit facility to be in place- pnor to the expiration of the existing
facmty . L, N ' .

1 T

On December 27, 2006, we entered into a $300 million unsecured short-term credit agreement with a
commercial bank. Pursuant to the credit agreement, we borrowed $300 million and had this amount outstandmg at
December 31, 2006. .

At.December 31, 2006, in addition to borrowings under our credit facilities. we had (i} $475.4 million of
unsecured notes payable, (ii) $266.7 million of mortgage notes secured by facilities in the U.S., (tii) $717.7 million
of notes payable secured by facilities located-in Europe and (iv) other mlscellancous debt totalmg $43.9 million.

Our debt level is much higher than we are accustomed to and is a result of $1.3 blllmn of debt we have at

December 31, 2006 that we assumed in our merger with Shurgard.
et B . : LI ‘ . :

Our goal is to continue to reduce the level of debt outstanding to a level that is acceptable to us. In this
regard, on January 2, 2007 we retired approximately $429 million of notes payable that was secured by 102 of our
facilities located in Europe. In addition, on January 10, 2007, we retired $300.0 million of borrowings on a bank
credit facility and subsequently terminated the facility. We financed the repayments with the net proceeds from the
issuance of preferred stock that was issued in early January 2007 combined with additional cash on hand.
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Subject to a limitation'on unsecured borrowings in our Bylaws (described below), we havé broad powers to
borrow in support of our objectives. We have incurred in the past, and may incur’in the future, both short-term and
long-term indebtedness to mcrcase our funds avallable for mvcstment in real estate, capital expendxtures and
distributions. P " 1

Limitations on Debt -

The Bylaws provide that the Board-of Directors shall not authorize or permit the incurrence of any
obligation by the Company, which would cause our "Asset Coverage" of our unsecured indebtedness to become less
than 300%. Asset Coverage is defined in the Bylaws as the ratio (expressed as a percentage) by which the value of
the total assets (as defined in the Bylaws) of the Company less the Company's liabilities .(except Habilities for
unsecured borrowings) bears to the aggregate amount of all unsecured borrowings of the Company This Bylaw
provision may be changed only upon a sharcho]der vote. .. - . ,

Our Bylaws proh1b1t us from issuing debt securities in.a public offering unless our cash flow" (which for
this purpose means net income, exclusive of extraordinary'items, plus depreciation) for the most recent 12 months.
for which financial statements are available, adjusted to give effect to the anticipated use of the proceeds from the
proposed sale of debt securities, would be sufficient to pay the interest on such securities. This Bylaw provision
may be ch.anged only upon a shareholder vote.

;. . . . S,

Wlthout the consent-of. holders of the various series of Senior Preferred Stock, we.may not take any action
that would result in a ratio of "Debt" to "Assets" (the "Debt-Ratio™} in:excess of 50%.' As of December 31, 20086, the
Debt Ratio was approximately 16%. "Debt" means the liabilities (other than "accrued and.other liabilities” and
"minority interest") that should, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, be
reflected on our consolidated balance sheet.at the time of determination. "Assets" means our total assets before a
reduction for accumulated depreciation and amortization™ that should, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting pnnmples be reﬂected on the consohdatcd balance sheet at the time of determmanon
Our bank and senior unsecured debt agreements contam various fmancml covenants including limitations
on the level of indebtedness .of 30% of total capitalization (as defined) and the prohlbmon of the payment of
dividends upon the occurrence of an event of default (as defined). . '

‘. P .
" e ; . . R K e

Emploxees . B !

- We have approximately 6,000 employees in the United States and Europe at December 31, 2006 who
render services on behalf of the Company, primarily personnel engaged in property operations. .None of our
employees in the U.S. are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Two countries in Europe have employees
represented through an internal collective bargammg council. We believe that our relations with our employees are
gencrally good. : . :

Federal Income Tax

We believé that we have operated, and intend to continue to operate, in such a manner as to qualify as a
REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of: 1986, but no assurance can.be given that we will at all times so qualify.
To the extent that we continue to qualify as a REIT, we will not be taxed, with certain limited exceptions, on the
taxable income (including gains from the sale of securities and properties) that we distribute to our shareholders
Our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be taxed on their taxable income. .

For Federal tax purposes, our distributions to our shareholdcrs are treated by the shareholders as ordinary
income, capital gains, return of capital or a combination thereof. Ordinary income dividends to our shareholders
will not generally be eligible for the lower tax rates that apply to “qualified dividend income.” -

s
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Insurance

We believe our properties are adequately insured. Our facilities have historically carried comprehensive
insurance, including property, earthquake, general liability and workers compensation, through nationally
recognized insurance carriers and through our captive insurance programs (described below). Our captive insurance
programs also insure affiliates of the Company.

For losses incurred prior to April 1, 2004, our captive insurance activities were conducted through STOR-
Re Mutual Insurance Company, Inc. (“STOR-Re”), an association 'captive insurance company owned by the
Company, the Consolidated Entities, and the Unconsolidated Entities. For losses incurred after March 31, 2004,
these activities were conducted by an entity wholly owned by the Company, PS Insurance Company Hawaii, Ltd.
(“PSIC-H™}. -

The Company, STOR-Re, PSIC-H and its affiliates’ maximum aggrégate annual exposure for losses that
are below the deductibles set forth in the third-party insurance contracts, assuming multiple significant events occur,
is approximately $35 million. In addition, if losses exhaust the 'third-party insurers’ limit of coverage of $125
million for property coverage (a maximum of $80 million with respect to earthquake coverage) and $102 million for
general liability, our exposure could be greater. These limits are higher than estimates of maximum probable losses
that could occur from individua! catastrophic events (i.e. earthquake and wind damage) determined in recent
engineering and actuarial studies.

Our tenant insurance program reinsures policies against claims for losses to goods stored by tenants at our
self-storage facilities. Throughout 2004 and 2005, we had third-party insurance coverage for claims paid exceeding
$500,000 resulting from any individual event, to a limit of $10,000,000. Effective January 1, 2006, such coverage
was revised to cover claims paid exceeding $1,500,000 resulting from any individual event, to a limit of $9,000,000.
At December 31, 2006, we had approximately 403,000 reinsured policies outstanding representing aggregate
coverage of approximately $1.0 billion. ‘

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in our Form 10-K, you should consider-the following factors in
evaluating the Company:

We are subject to additional risks as a result of the Shurgard merger.

In addition to the general risks related to real estate -described below  which may also adversely impact
Shurgard’s operations, we are also subject to the following risks in .connection with the Shurgard merger and
integrating Shurgard into our operations, including without limitation the following:

. difficulties in completing the integration of opemtibné, technologies and personn'el of Shurggrd;
"« inability to realize or delays in realizing expected synergies; « *

. unanticipated. operating costs; . - -

»  diversion of our management’s attention away from other business concerns; -

+  exposure to any undisclosed or unknown potential liabilities of Shurgard and;

»  risks related to real estate markets in Europe which are new markets for us.

We have never undertaken to integrate a company as large as Shurgard or one with overseas operations. The
success of the merger will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated cost savings from combining the
businesses of Public Storage and Shurgard. However, to realize the anticipated benefits from the merger, we must
successfully compare the combination of the businesses of Public Storage and Shurgard in a manner that permits
those cost savings to be realized. If we are not able to successfully achieve these objectives, the anticipated benefits
of the merger may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer or cost more to realize than expected. It is
possible that the integration process could result in a decline in occupancy and/or rental rates, the disruption of each
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company’s ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures, practices, policies: and
compensation arrangements that adversely affect our ability to maintain relationships with tenants and employees or
to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger. Further, the size of the transaction may make completing the
integration of Public Storage and Shurgard difficult, expensive and disruptive, adversely affecting the combined
company’s revenues and earnings, and implementation of merger integration efforts may divert management’s
attention from other strategic priorities. In addition, the merger was structured so that it should have been a taxable
transaction for U.S. Federal income tax purposes. As a result, the combined company shouid have the benefit of a
step-up in tax basis in Shurgard’s assets. It is possible that the IRS may challenge the step-up in basis. If such
chalienge were sustained, we would not achieve this benefit, which would reduce our depreciation deductions and
our ability to retain cash flow. _ . . .

We also acquired Shurgard’s international operations in Europe, which consist principally of facilities that
have been completed in the last few years and are in various stages of fill-up, Shurgard’s international operations
have not been profitable, and there is no assurance they will ultimately be profitable. Also, Shurgard had a number
of non-stabilized properties and construction activity, and delays in construction and fill-up could result in additional
costs. We have limited experience in European operations, which may adversely impact our ability to operate
profitably in Europe. In addition, these operations have specific inherent risks, including without lumtamn the
following:

*  currency risks, including currency fluctuations and risks related to foreign currency hedging activities;
« unexpected changes in legislative and regulatory requirements;
»  potentially adverse tax burdens;

» . burdens of complying with dlfferent perrmttmg standa:ds enwronmental and labor laws and a wide
variety of foreign laws; :

"¢ obstacles to the repatriation of earilings and cash;
»  regional, national and local political uncertainty;
« economic slowdown and/or downturn in foreign markets;
«  difficulties in staffing and managing international operations;
» reduced protection for intellectual property in some countries; and

+»  inability to effectively control less than wholly owned partnerships and joint ventures.

Shurgard also held many of its properties through interests in joint ventures that we acquired and which have
addmonal risks, including risks related to the financial strength, common business goals and strategies and
cooperation of the venture partner, as well as the inability to take some actions that may require approval by-the
venture partner. In addition, Shurgard held substantially all of its real estate investments in Europe indirectly
through partnerships and joint venture arrangements. If we are unable to effectively control these indirect
investments, there is a risk that our ownership of the joint ventures could cause us to lose our REIT status. These
investments also carry the risks that we may not control the legal entity that has title to the real estate, that the
enterprise in which we invested may have liabilities that weren’t disclosed at the time of the investment, and the risk
that these investments may not be easily sold or readily accepted as collateral by our lenders.

As a share of total operations, particularly in Europe, Shurgard had more-recently developed properties whose
occupancies have not stabilized and had more construction activity than Public Storage, which increase costs.
Delays in construgtion and fill-up could result in additional cos.

Some of the facilities we acquired in the Shurgard merger will be subject to property tax reappraisat that could
increase property tax expense and adversely affect our profitability, Up to 17% of the domestic properties we
acquired in the merger are located in jurisdictions that may provide for property tax reappraisal upon a change of
ownership and so may face such a reassessment.
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We have assumed, based on public filings, that:Shurgard qualified as a real estate investment trust for
United States federal income tax purposes, referred to hereinafter as a REIT, and that we would be able to continue

to qualify as a REIT following the Shurgard merger. However, if Shurgard failed to qualify as a REIT, we generally

would have succeeded to or incurred significant tax liabilities (including the significant tax-liability that would have
resulted from the deemed sale of assets by Shurgard pursuant to the merger) and we could possibly lose our REIT
status should disqualifying activities continue after the Shurgard merger. - : : T

The Shurgard debt agreements we assumed also have covenants that could limit our activities. Failure to
comply with such covenants could cause a default under the applicable debt agreement, which could allow the
lenders or other debt holders to declare all borrowings outstanding to be due and payable. -

Public Storage shareholders incurred immediate dilution ‘follo_win;g éompietion of the Shurgard merger.

~ Public Storage ‘shareholders incurred immediate dilution in connection with the merger. During 2005, Public
Storage shareholders would have incurred a loss of $0.80 per share (diluted) on a pro forma basis compared to
éarnings of $1.97 per share ‘(diluted) on a historical basis primarily as'a result of an increase in depreciation and
amortization expense. ‘ ) o : S T

The Hughes family could control us and take actions adverse to other shareholders,

At December 31, 2006, B.. Wayne Hughes,. Chairman of the Board-and his family (the “Hughes family”)
owned approximately 26.7% of our aggregate outstanding shares of common stock. Consequently, the Hughes
family could control matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders, including electing directors, amending our
organizational documents, ‘dissolving and approving other extraordinary transactions, such as a takeover attempt,
even though such actions may not be favorable to the other common shareholders. ‘ : C

Provisions in our organizational documents may prevent changes in control. - - '

. » -

Restrictions in our organizational documents may further limit changes in control, Unless our Board ‘of
Directors waives these limitations, no shareholder may own more than (1) 2.0% of our outstanding shares of our
common stock or (2) 9.9% of the outstanding shares of each class or series of .our preferred or.equity stock. Our
organizational documents in effect provide, however, that the Hughes family may continue to own the shares of our
common stock held by them at the time of the 1995 reorganization. Our Board has aithorized the Hughes family to
acquire additional shares.of our common stock to maintain their pre-merger holding percentage. These limitations
are designed, to the extent possible, to avoid a concentration of ownership that. might jeopardize our ability to
qualify as a real estate investment trust or REIT. These limitations, however, also may make a change of control
significantly more difficult (if not impossible) even if it would be favorable to the interests of our public
shareholders. Thése provisions will prevent future takeover attempts not approved by our board of directors even if a
majority of our public shareholders deem it to be in their best interests because they would receive a premium for
their shares over the shares’ then market value or for other reasons. .

We would incrur‘adverse tax consequences if we or Shurgard failed to qualify as a REIT.

We have assumed, based on public filings, that Shurgard qualified as a real estate investment trust for United
States federal income tax purposes, referred to hereinafter as a REIT, and that we will be able to continue to qualify
as a REIT following the Shurgard merger. However, if Shurgard failed to qualify as a REIT, we generally would
have succeeded to or incurred significant tax liabilities (including the significant tax liability that would have
resulted from the deemed sale of assets by Shurgard pursuant to the merger) and we could possibly lose our REIT
status should disqualifying activities continue after the Shurgard merger.

Investors are also subject to the risk that we may not qualify as a REIT. REITs are subject-to a range of
complex organizational and operational requirements. As a REIT, we must distribute with respect to each year at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our shareholders. Other restrictions apply to our income and assets. Qur
REIT status is also dependent upon the ongoing qualification of our affiliate, PS Business Parks, Inc., as a REIT, as
a result of our substantial ownership interest in that company. :
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For any taxable .year that we fail to qualify as a REIT and are unable to avail ourselves of certain savings
provisions set forth in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, we would be subject to federal income tax at the regular
corporate rates on ali of our taxable income, whether or not we make any distributions to our shareholders. Those
taxes would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our shareholders or for reinvestment and would
adversely affect,our earnings. As a result, our failure to qualify as a REIT during any taxable year could have a
material adverse effect upon us and our shareholders. Furthermore, unless certain relief provisions apply, we would
not be eligible to elect REIT status again until the fifth taxable year that begins after the first year for which we fail
to qualify. : ‘

We may pay some taxes, reducing cash available for shareholders. . . .

Even lf we quahfy as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we are required to pay some federal, state and
tocal taxes on our income and property. Several corporate subsidiaries of the Company have elected to be treated as
“taxable REIT subsidiaries” of the Company for federal income tax purposes since January 1, 2001. A taxable REIT
subsidiary is taxable as a regular corporation and is limited in its ability to deduct interest payments made to us in
excess of a certain amount. In addition, if we receive certain payments and the economic arrangements among our
taxable REIT subsidiaries and us are not comparable to similar arrangements among unrelated parties we will be
subject to a 100% penalty tax on those payments. To the extent that the Company or any taxable REIT subsidiary is
required to pay federal, state or local taxes, we will have less cash available for distribution to shareholders.

We have become 1ncreasmgly dependent upon automated processes and the Internet and are faced with
security system nsks. : . . ’

. We have become increasingly centra.llzed and dependent upon automated mformatlon technology processes.
As a result, we could be severely impacted by a catastrophic occurrence, such as a natural disaster or a terrorist
attack. In addition, a portion of our business operations are conducted over the Internet, increasing the risk of viruses
that could cause system failures and disruptions of operations. Experienced computer programmers may be able to
penetrate our network seeunty and misappropriate our confidential mformauon, create system disruptions or cause
shutdowms.

Certain secunnes have a hqmdatlon preference over our common stock and eqmty stock, Series A.

. If we. l:qu1dated holclers of our preferred securities would be entitled to receive liquidating dlsmbutlons
plus any accrued and unpaid distributions, before any distribution of assets to the holders of cur common stock and
equity stock, series A. Holders of preferred securities are entitled to receive, when declared by our boa:d of
dn-eetors cash distributions in preference to holders of our common stock and equity stock, Series A.

Smee our busmess consists primarily of acqumng and operating real estate, we are sub;eet to real estate
operating risks. . : . .

The value of our investments may be reduced by general risks of real estate ownership. Since we derive
substantially all of our income from real estate operations, we are subject to the general risks of owning real estate-
related assets, including:

. lack of demand for rental spaces or units in a locale;
. changes in general economic or lecal condmons, '
-+ natural d;sasters such as earthquakes, .
»  potential terrorist attacks;
.+ .+ changes in supply of or demand for similar or competing facilities in an area;
"+ the impact of environmental protection laws; » - o

s * changes in interest rates and availability of permanent mortgage -funds wlnch may render the sale or
financing of a property difficult or unattractive; :
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+  changes in tax, real estate and zoning laws; and

«  tenant claims.

In addition; we self-insure certain of our property loss, liability, and workers compensation risks for which
other real estate companies may use third-party insurers. This results in a higher risk of losses that are not covered
by third-party insurance contracts, as described in Note 17 under “Insurance and Loss Exposure” to our consolidated
financial statements at December 31, 2006.

There is significant competition among self-storage facilities ana‘ Jrom other storage ‘alternatives. Most of
our properties are self-storage facilities, which generated most of our revenue for the year ended December 31,
2006. Local market conditions will play a significant part in how competition will affect us. Competition in the
market areas in which many of our properties are located from other self-storage facilities and other storage
alternatives is significant and has affected the occupancy levels, rental rates and operating expenses of some of our
properties. Any increase in availability of funds for investment in real estate may accelerate competition, Further
development of self-storage facilities may intensify competition among operators of self- -storage faculmes m the
market areas in which we operate.

v

We may incur significant environmental costs and liabilities. As an owner and operator of real properties,
under various federal, state and local environmental laws, we are required to clean up spills or other releases of
hazardous or toxic substances on or from our properties. Certain environmental laws impose liability whether or not
the owner knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of the hazardous or toxic substances. In sore cases, liability
may not be limited to the value of the property. The presence of these substances, or the failure to properly
remediate -any resulting contamination, whether from environmental or microbial issues, also may adversely affect
the owner’s or operator’s ability to sell, lease or operate its property or to borrow using its property as collateral.

We have conducted preliminary environmental assessments of most of our properties {and intend to conduct
these assessments in connection with property acquisitions) to evaluate the environmental condition of, and potential
environmental liabilities associated with, our properties. These assessments generally consist of an investigation of
environmental conditions at the property (not including soil or groundwater sampling or analysis), as well as a
review of available information regarding the site and publicly available data regarding conditions at other sites in
the vicinity. In connection with these property assessments, our operations and recent property acqu:smons we have,
become aware that prior operations -or activities at some facilities or from nearby locations have or, may have
resulted in contamination to the soil or groundwater at these facilities. In this regard, some of our facilities are or
may be the subject of federal or state environment investigations or ‘remedial actions, We have obtained, with
respect to recent acquisitions, and intend to obtain with respect to pending or future acquisitions, appropriate
purchase price adjustments or indemnifications that we believe are sufficient to cover any related potential liability.
Although we cannot provide any assurance, based on the preliminary environmental assessments, we believe we
have funds available to cover any liability from environmental contamination or potential contamination and we are
not aware of any environmental contamination of our facilities material to our overall business, ﬁnanc1al condition
or results of operation. \ :

There has been an increasing number of claims and litigation against owners and managers of rental propcrtles_

relating to moisture infiltration, which can result in mold or other property damage. When we réceive a complaint
concerning moisture infiltration, condensation or mold problems and/or become aware that an air quality concern
exists, we implement corrective measures in accordance with guidelines and protocols we have developed with the
assistance of outside experts. We seck to work proactively with our tenants to resolve moisture infiltration and
mold-related issues, subject to our contractual limitations on liability for such claims. However, we can make no
assurance that material legal claims relating to moisture infiltration and the presence of,-or exposure to, mold will
not arise in the future.

Delays in development and fill-up of our properties would reduce our profitability. Since January 1, 2002,
through December 31, 2006, we have opened 46 newly developed self-storage facilities. In addmon, our
development “pipeline” in the United States and Furope at December 31, 2006 consist of 56 projects with total
estimated costs of $266 million. We anticipate the development of these 56 projects to be completed in the next two
years. Construction delays due to weather, unforeseen site conditions, personnel problems, and other factors, as well
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as cost overruns, would adversely affect our profitability. Delays in the rent-up of newly developed facilities as a
result of competition or other factors would also adversely impact our profitability,

Property taxes can increase and cause a decline in yields on investments. Each of our properties is subject to
real property taxes. These real property-taxes may increase in the future as property tax rates change and as our
properties are assessed or reassessed by tax authorities. Such increases could adversely impact our profitability.

We must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and fire and safety regulations, which can reguire
significant expenditures.  All our properties must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and with related
regulations (the “ADA”). The ADA has separate compliance requirements for “public accommodations” and
“commercial facilities,” but generally requires that buildings be made accessibie to persons with disabilities. Various
state laws impose similar requirements. A failure to comply with the ADA or similar state laws could result in
government imposed fines on us and could award damages to individuals affected by the failure. In addition, we
must operate our properties in compliance with numerous local fire and safety regulations, building codes, and other
land use regulations. Compliance with these requirements can require us to spend substantial amounts of money,
which would reduce cash otherwise available for distribution to shareholders. Failure to comply with these
requirements could also affect the marketability of our real estate facilities.

Any failure by us to manage acquisitions and other significant transactions successfully could negatively
impact our financial results.  As an increasing part of our business, we acquire other self-storage facilities. We also
evalvate from time t© time other significant fransactions. If these facilities are not properly integrated into our
system, our financial results may suffer.

We incur liability from employment related claims. From time to time we must resolve employment related
claims by corporate tevel and field personnel. o

We. h.av'e no interest in Canadia'n self-storége facilities owned by the Hughes family.

The Hughes Family has ownership interests in, and operates, approximately 44 self-storage facilities in
Canada under the name “Public Storage.” We currently do not own any interests in these facilities nor do we own
any facilities in Canada. We have a right of first refusal to acquire the stock or assets of the corporation engaged in
the operation of the self-storage facilities in Canada if the Hughes family or the corporation agrees to sell them.
However, we have no ownership interest in the operations of this corporation, have no right to acquire their stock or
assets unless the Hughes family decides to sell, and receive no benefit from the profits and increases m value of the
Canadian self-storage facilities.

Prior to December 31, 2003, Company personnel were engaged in the supervision and the operation of thése
properties and provided certain administrative services for the Canadian owners, and certain other services,
primarily tax services, with respect to certain other Hughes Family interests. The Hughes Family and the Canadian
owners reimbursed us at cost for these services in the amount of $542,499 with respect to the Canadian operations
and $151,063 for other services during 2003 (in United States dollars). There were conflicts of interest in allocating
time of our personnel between Company properties, the Canadian properties, and certain other Hughes Family
interests. The sharing of Company personnel with the Canadian entities was substantially eliminated by
December 31, 2003

Through our subsxdlanes we continue to reinsure risks relating to loss of goods stored by tenants in the self-
storage facilities in Canada. We acquired the tenant insurance business on December 31, 2001 through our
acquisition of PSIC. For each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, PSIC received $989,000 and
$1,052,000 respectively, in reinsurance premiums attributable to the Canadian Facilities. Since PSIC’s right to
provide tenant reinsurance to the Canadian Facilities may be qualified, there i1s no assurance that these premiums
will continue.

Increases in interest rates may adversely affect the price of our common stock.

One of the factors that influences the market price of our common stock and our other securities is the annual
rate of distributions that we pay on the securities, as compared with interest rates. An increase in interest rates may
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lead purchasers of REIT shares to demand higher annual distribution rates, which could adversely affect the market
price of our common stock and other securities.

Terrorist attacks and the possnblhty of wuler armed conflict may have an adverse 1mpact on our business and
operating results and could decredse the value of our assets.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of Violerice or war, such as those that took place on September 11, 2001, could
have a material adverse impact on our business and operating results. There can be no assurance that there will not
be further terrorist attacks against the United States or its businesses or interests. Attacks or armed conflicts that
directly impact one or more of our properties could significantly affect our ability to operate those properties and
thereby impair our operating results. Further, we may not have insurance coverage for losses caused by a terrorist
attack. Such insurance may not be available, or if it is available and we decide to obtain such terrorist coverage, the
cost for the insurance may be significant in relationship to the risk overall. In addition, the adverse effects that such
violent acts and threats of future attacks could have on the United States economy could similarly have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Finally, further terrorist acts could cause the United States
to enter into a wider armed conflict, which could further impact our business and operating results.

Developments in California may have an adverse impact on our business.

We are headquartered in, and approximately one-fifth of our properties in the United States are located in,
California. California is facing budgetary problems. Action that may be taken in response to these problems, such as
an increase in property taxes on commercial properties, could adversely impact our business and results of
operations. In addition, we could be adversely impacted by efforts to reenact legislation mandating medical
insurance for employees of California businesses and members of their families.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.




ITEM 2. Praperties -

At December 31, 2006, we had direct and indirect ownership mterests in 2,003 ancl 166 storage facilities
located in 38 states within the U.S. and'seven Western European nations, respect:vely !

At December 31, 2006
Number of Storage ~ Net Rentable Square Feet

Facilities (a) * ' ({inthousands)
United States:
California: :
198 -~ - Y 13,399
170 . 9,845
. 235 Ce 15,375
- 191 - . 12,452
123 . - 7,800
91 5,954
90 . 5,835,
69 4,775
R /. o 4,407
61 ' . 3,921
60 . 3,810
56 ) 3,492
55 " . 3,085
44 2,990
43 2,755
37 2,259
38 e 2,144 . -
40 2,131
18 1,955
13 1,883
31 1,880
28 1,867
30 1,860
22 1,404
22 1,310
19 1,179
16 1,030
Other states (12 states)............. 85 4,633
Total — U.S. .o irianne 2,003 125,430
Europe:
France.......coovvieemevceeeeveessen 50 2,606
Netherlands 32 1,664
Sweden .......cccceeennne 25 1,335
Belgium 21 1,219
United Kingdom....... 19 905
Germany 11 550
Denmark 8 410
Total - Europe................... 166 8,689
Grand Total .........ooveeeeenee 2,169 134,119

(a) Includes 2,147 self-storage facilities owned by the Company and entities consolidated with the Company. The
remaining 22 facilities are self-storage facilities owned by entities in which the Company has an interest; however, the
Company does not consolidate such entities. See Schedule III: Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation in the
Company’s 2006 financials, for a complete list of properties consolidated by the Company.
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Our facilities are generally operated.to maximize cash flow through the regular review and, when
warranted by market conditions, adjustment of rents charged to our tenants. For the year ended December 31, 2006,
the weighted average occupancy level and the average total rental income per rentable square foot for our self-
storage facilities were approximately 89% and $12.39, respectively in the U.S. and 76% and $23.30, respectwely in
Europe Included in the 2,169 storage facilities are 46 newly developed facilities opened since January 1,2002.

At December 31 2006 263 of our fac111t1es were encumbered by an‘aggregate of $984.3 million in
mortgage notes payable.: .’ .

- We have no specific pohcy as to the maximum size of any one particular self-storage facﬂlty However,
none of our facilities involves, or is expected to involve, 1% or more of our total assets, gross revenues or net
income.

| . . C . .

: Description of Self-Storage “Facilities: Self-storage facilities, which comprise the majority of our
investments, are designed to offer accessible storage space for personal and business use-at a relatively low cost.. A

- user.rents a fully enclosed space, which is for the user's exclusive use and to which only the user has access on an-

unrestricted basis during business hours. On-site operation is the responsibility of property managers who are
supervised by -district managers. Some self-storage facilities also include rentable uncovered parking areas for
vehicle storage, as well as spacé for portable storage containers. Leases for storage facility space may be on a long-
term or short-term basis, although typically spaces are .rented on a month-to-month basis. "Rental rates vary
according to the location of the property, the size of the storage space and length of stay. All of our self-storage
facilities in the United States are operated under thé “Public Storage" brand name, while our facilities in Europe are
operated under the “Shurgard” brand name. '

Users of space in self-storage facilities include mdmduals and busmesses ‘Individuals usually obtain this
space for storage of furniture, household appliances, personal belongings, motor vehicles, ‘boats, ‘campers,
motorcycles and other household goods. Businesses normally employ this space for storage of excess mventory,
business records, seasonal goods, equipment and fixtures. ' Tt

Our self-storage facilities generally consist of three to seven buildings containing an aggregate of berween
350 to 750 storage spaces, most of which have between 25 and 400 square feet and an interior height of
approxmlately 8to 12 feet

We experience minor seasonal fluctuations in the occupancy levels of self-storage facilities with
occupancies generally higher in the summer months than in the winter months: We believe that these fluctuations
result in part from increased movmg activity dunng the summer months. - o

Our self-storage factlmes are geographlcally diversified and are located primarily in or near major
metropolitan markets in 38 states in the United States and seven Western European nations. Generally our self-
storage facilities are located in heavily populated areas and close to concentrations of apartment complexes, single
family residences and commercial developments. . However, there may be circumstances in which it may be
appropriate to own a property in a less populated area, for example, in an ‘area that is highly visible from a major
thoroughfare and close to, although not in, a heavily populated area. Moreover, in certain populatxon centers, land
costs and zoning restncttons may create a demand for space in nearby less populated areas.

Competmon from other self- storage facilitics as well as other forms of storage in the market areas. in which
many of our properties are located is significant and has aﬁ'ected the occupancy levels rental rates, and operating
expenses of many of our properties.

Sinceour investments are primarily self-storage facilities, our ability to preserve our investments and
achieve our objectives is dependent in large part upon success in this field. Historically, upon stabilization after an
initial fill-up period, our self-storage facility interests have generally shown a high degree of consistency in
generating cash flows,  despite changing economic-conditions. We believe that our self-storage facilities, upon

. t - . .
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stabilization, have attractive characteristics. consisting of high profit margms a broad tenant base and low levels of
capital expenditures to maintain their condition and appearance S : Sl
P La .

Commercial Properties: In addmon to our-interests in 2,169. self-storage facilities,"we have an interest'in
PSB, which, as of December 31, 2006, owns and operates approximately 18.7 million net rentable square feet in
eipht states. At December 31, 2006, our investment in PSB represents 2.5% of our total assets based upon book
value of $283.7 million. The market value of our investment in PSB at December 31, 2006 of approximately $899.7
million represents 8.0% of the book value of our total assets at December 31, 2006 of approximately $11.2 billion.
We aiso directly own six commercial properties with 520,000 net rentable square feet, have 1,041,000 net rentable
square feet of commercial space that is located at certain of the self-storage -facilities, and own three industrial
facilities with an aggregate of 244,000 net rentable square feet that are being used by the continuing containerized
storage operations.

The commercial properties owned by PSB consist of flex space, office space and industrial space. Flex
space is defined as buildings that-are configured with a combination of part warehouse space and part office space
and can be designed 1o fit a wide variety of uses. The warehouse component of the flex space has a‘variety of uses
including light manufacturing and assembly, storage and warehousing, showroom, laboratory, distribution and
research and development activities. The office component of flex space is complementary to the warehouse
component by enabling businesses to accommodate management and production staff in the same facility. PSB also
owns low-rise suburban office space; generally either in business parks that combine office and flex-space or in
desirable submarkets where the economics of the market demand an office build-out. PSB also owns mdusmal
space that has charactenshcs similar to the warehouse component of the flex space 1 o :

Environmental Matters: Our policy is to accrue environmental assessments and estimated remediation
cost when it is probable that such efforts will be required and the related costs can be. reasonably estimated. Qur
current practice is to conduct environmental investigations in connection. with property acquisitions. Although there
can be no assurance; we are not aware of any environmental contamination of any of our facilities, which
individuaily or in the aggregate would be material to our overall business, financial condition; or results of
operations.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings .

Serrao v, Public Storag Inc. {filed April 2003) ( Sunenor Court of California — Qrange Countﬂ

The plaintiff in this case ﬁled a suit against the Company on behalf of a putatlve class of renters who rented
self-storage units from the Company. Plaintiff alleges that the Company misrepresented the size of its storage.units,
has brought claims under California statutory and common law relating to consumer protection, fraud, unfair
competition, and negligent mxsrcpresentanon, and is seeking monetary damages resmutlon, and declaratory and
injunctive relief, . Coor KEN .

The claim in this case is substantially similar to those in Henriquez v. Pubhc Storage, Inc., which was
disclosed in prior reports. In Janvary 2003 tbe plaintiff caused the Henriquez action to be dismissed.

Based upon the uncertainty inherent i1_1 any putétive class action, we cannot presentiy'determine the
potential damages, if any, or the ultimate -outcome of this litigation. On November 3, 2003, the court granted our
motion to strike the plaintiff’s nationwide class al]egahons and to limit any putative class to California residents
only. In August 2005, we filed a motion to remove the case to federal court, but the casé has been remanded to the
Superior Court. We are vigorously contesting’ the claims’ upon which this lawsuit is based, including class
certification efforts.

. Drake v. Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc. (filed September 2002) (Superior Court of California — Orange
Couﬂ!!! . e . .- : L e, o ) .

This is a companion case to the Serrao matter discussed above. The plaintiff alleges the same set of
operative facts and seeks the same relief as in Serrao against Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc. (“Shurgard”), whose
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liability Public Storage assumed following the merger of Public Storage and Shurgard on'August 22, 2006. There is
currently pending a motion for class certification, which has yet to be ruled on. We cannot presently determine the
potential total damages, if any, or the ultimate outcome of the litigation, ‘We vigorously contested the motion for
class certification and will vigorously defend this action. 3 Y

Potter, et al v. Hughes, et al (filed December 2004) (United States District Court — Central District of
California)

In November 2002, a shareholder of the Company made a demand on the Board of Directors challenging
the fairness of the Company’s acquisition of PS Insurance Company, Ltd. (“PSIC”) and related matters. PSIC was
previously owned by the Hughes Family. In June 2003, foliowing the filing by the Hughes Family of a complaint
for declaratory relief asking the court to find that the acquisition of PSIC and related matters were fair to the
Company, it was ruled that the PSIC transaction was just and reasonable as to the Company and holding that the
Hughes Family was not required to make any payment to the Company.

At the end of December 2004, the same shareholder referred to above and a second shareholder filed this
shareholder’s derivative complaint naming as defendants the Company’s directors (and two former directors) and
certain officers of the Company. The matters alleged in this complaint relate to PSIC, the Hughes Family’s
Canadian self-storage operations and the Company’s 1995 reorganization. In July 2006, the Court granted the
defendants’ motion to dismiss the amended Complaint without leave to amend. In August 2006, Plaintiffs filed a
notice of appeal of the Court’s decision. The appeal is currently pending. We believe the litigation will not have
any financially adverse effect on the Company (other than the costs and other expenses relating to the lawsuit).

Brinkley v. Public Storage, Inc. (filed April 2005) (Superior Court of California — Los Angeles County)

The plaintiff sued the Company on behalf of a purported class of California non-exempt employees based
on various California wage and hour laws and seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief. In May 2006, a
motion for class certification was filed seeking to certify five subclasses. Plaintiff sought certification for alleged
meal period violations, rest period violations, failure to pay for travel time, failure to pay for mileage
reimbursement, and for wage statement violations. In October 2006, the Court declined to certify three out of the
five subclasses. The Court did, however, certify subclasses based on alleged meal period and wage statement
violations. The maximum potential liability cannot presently be estimated. We intend to vigorously contest the
substantive merits of the two remaining subclasses that were certified.

Simas v, Public Storage, Inc. {filed Jan 2006) (Superior Court of California — Orange Coun

The plaintiff brings this action against the Company on behalf of a purported class who bought insurance
coverage at Company’s facilities alleging that the Company does not have a license to offer, sell and/or transact
storage insurance. The action was originally brought under California Business and Professions Code Section
17200 and seeks retention, monetary damages and injunctive relief. The Company filed a demurrer to the
complaint. While the demurrer was pending, Plaintiff amended the complaint to allege a national class and claims
for unfair business practices, unjust enrichment, money had and received, and negligent and intentional
misrepresentation. Ultimately all claims except for unmjust enrichment were dismissed. There is currently a
demurrer pending on Plaintiff's amended allegations as to unjust enrichment. We are vigorously contesting the
claims upon which this lawsuit is based, including any efforts for class certification.

Other Items
We are a party to various claims, complaints, and other legal actions that have arisen in the normal course
of business from time to time that are not described above. We believe that it is unlikely that the outcome of these

other pending legal proceedings including employment and tenant claims, in the aggregate, will have a material
adverse impact upon our operations or financial position.
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ITEM 4, ’ Submlsswn of Matters to 8 Vote of Secung Holder o

'
4

We did not submit any matter to a vote of secunty holders in the fourth quarter of the ﬁscal year ended
December 31, 2006. -

) . f ol
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PART 11

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Relatéd Stockholder Matters and Issuer -
Purchases of Equity Securities

a. . MarketPrice of the Reglstrant s Common Equlty '

Our Common Stock (NYSE: PSA) has been 11sted on the New York Stock Exchange since
October 19, 1984. Our Depositary Shares each representing 1/1,000 of a share of Equity Stock, Series A

(NYSE:PSAA) (see section c. below) have been listed on the New York Stock Exchange since February

14, 2000.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales pricés of Common Stock on the New York
Stock Exchange composite tapes for the applicable periods.

Range

Year Quarter - High Low .
2005 1% $ 59.490 £ 51.500

™ - 64.500 55.300

3¢ 70.450 . 59700

4* 72.020 61.360 .
2006 1® 84.620 67.720-

2 81.400 70.260

3 89.250 T 75440

4t 98.050 85.170°

-The following table sets forth-the high and low sales prices of Deposnary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of 2 Share of Equity Stock, Senes A on the New York Stock Exchange composite
tapes for the applicable periods.

Range

Year Quarter High. Low
2005 19 - $ 29.950 $ 27.800
204 29.000 27.210
3¢ 28.900 27.610
4t : 28.650 . 27.380
2006 ® 27.760 : 26.200 :
2™ . 27250 . 25.600
39 : 28.080 26350
4 27.700 26.180

As of February 15, 2007, there were approximately 25,258 holders of record of Common Stock
and approximately 10,786 holders of Deposnary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a share of Equity
Stock, Series A.

b. Dividends
We have paid quarterly distributions to our shareholders since 1981, our first full year of
operations. Overall distributions on Common Stock for 2006 amounted to $298.2 million or $2.00 per
share of Common Stock.
Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive distributions when and if déc]aréd by our Board

of Directors out of any funds legally available for that purpose. In order to maintain our REIT status for
federal income tax purposes, we are generally required to pay dividends at least equal to 950% of our real
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estate investment trust taxable income for the taxable year (for this purpose, certain dividends paid in the
subsequent year may be taken mto account). We mtend to pay dlstnbuuons sufﬁcwnt to permJt us to
maintain our REIT -status.. S e S o

For Federal income tax purposes, distributions to shareholders are treated as ordinary income,
capital gains, return of capital or a combination thereof. . For 2006, the dividends paid to the common
shareholders ($2.00 per share), on all the various classes of preferred stock, and on our Equity Stock, Series
A were classified as follows: - » ;

T _ 1" Quarter 20 Quzmer 3'% Quaner 4" Quarter
Ordinary Income. ................ 100.0000%  100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000%
Long-term Capital Gain...... 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000%

Total .............. hasesereneennaes . 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% , .100.0000%

For 2005, the dividends paid to the common shareholders ($1.90 per share), on all the various
classes of prcferred stock, and on our Equ\ty Stock, Series A were classified as follows:

- 1% Quarter 2™ Quarter 3% Quarter 4" Quarter
Ordinary Income................ 98.5488% 99.3947% 99.9589% 100.0000%
Long-term Capita! Gain...... 1.4512% 0.6053% 0.0411% 0.0000%
Total ..ovierverionneaan T 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000%

A percentage of the long-term capxtal gain is unrecaptured Section 1250 gain for each quarter of
2005 as follows:

- L 1% Quarter 2™ Quarter 39 Quarter . 4" Quarter
Unrecaptured §1250 Gain.. , . 7.3110% 0.0000% - =  8.0542% ~0.0000%

For the corporate shareholders a portion of the long-term capital gain is required to be recaptured
as ordinary income. For each quarter of 2005 the percentage is as follows:

e - ~-1¥ Quarter 2 Quarter -3 Quarter -- - - 4™ Quarter
IRC §291 Recapmre ........... 1:4621% 0.0000% 1.6121% 0.0000%

The Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003 introduced a new rule that reduces
the tax rate for “qualified dividend income.” Generally, qualified dividend income is dividend income
received from a’corporation that has 'been taxed on the dividends distributed to its shareholders. Public
Storage, Inc, as a REIT, is generally not-taxed on dividends it distributes annually to its shareholders, and
therefore the dividends shareholders receive are not qualified dividend income subject to the lower rates.

_ Equity Stoclf . L
“ The Company is authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of Eq'uity. Stock. ' ‘The Articles of
Incorporation provide that the Equity Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series and
gives the Board of Directors broad authority to fix the dividend and distribution rights, conversmn and
voting rights, redemption provisions and liquidation rights of each series of Equity Stock. -

v In Apnl 2001, we completed a public oﬁ'enng of 2,210,500 deposxtary shares each representing
"1/1,000 of a share of Equity Stock, Series A, (“Equity’ Stock A™) raising net proceeds of apprommately
$51,836,000. In May 2001, we completed a direct placement of 830,000 deposnary shares, raising net

_proceeds of approxunately $20 294,000, In November 2001, we completed a direct placement of 100,000
_depositary shares, raising net proceeds of approxunately $2,690,000. In January 2000, we issued
4,300,555 depositary shares (2, 200 555 shares as'part'of a specml distribution declared ‘on Novcmber 15,
© 1999 and 2,100 ,000 shares in a separatc public offering). In addition, in the second quarter of 2000, we
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issued 52,547 depositary shares to a related party in connection with the acquisition of real estate facilities.

In December 2000, we issued 1,282,500 depositary shares in a public offering. All of the issuances of the
depositary shares descnbed in this paragraph were registered under the Securities Act at the time of
issuance.

. At December 31, 2006, we had 8,744,193 depositary shares outstanding, each representing
1/1,000 of a share of Equity Stock A: The Equity Stock A ranks on a parity with common stock and junior
to the Senior Prefeired Stock with respect to distributions and liquidation and has a liquidation amount
which cannot exceed $24.50 per share. Distributions with respect to each depositary share shall be the
lesser of: a) five times the per share dividend on the Common Stock or b) $2.45 per annum. Except in
order to preserve the Company’s Federal income tax status as a REIT, we may not redeem the depositary
shares before March 31, 2010. On or after March 31, 2010, we may, at our option, redeem the depositary
shares at $24.50 per depositary share.” If the Company fails to preserve its Federal income tax status as a
REIT, ‘each depositary share will be convertible into 0.956 shares of our common stock. The depositary
shares are otherwise not convertible into common stock. Holders of depositary shares vote as a single class
with our holders of common stock on shareholder matters, but the depositary shares have the equivalent of
one-tenth of a vote per depositary share. We have no obligation to pay dlsl:nbutlons on the depositary
shares if no distributions are paid to common shareholders. :

In November 1999, we sold $100,000,000 (4,289,544 shares) of Equity Stock, Series AAA
(“Equity Stock AAA™) to a newly formed joint venture. The Equity ‘Stock AAA ranks on a parity with
common stock and junior to the Senior Preferred Stock with respect to general prcference rights, and has
liquidation amount equal to 120% of the -amount distributed to each common share. Annual distributions
per share are equal to the lesser of (i) five times the amount paid per common share or (ii) $2.1564. We
have no obligation to pay distributions if no distributions are paid to common shareholders.
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ITEM6. Selected Financial Data

o

1

* - For the year ended December 31,
e 2006 (1) 2005 (1) © 2004 (1) 2003 (1) 2002 (1)
{Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues: _ ‘
Rental income and ancillary operations............. . 81,349,856 $1,043,600 $952,766 $890,350 $845,273
Interest and other INCOME .....comrereecrecmivrsrseveeens 31,799 . 16,447 5,391 2,537 5,210
o ' " 1,381,655 1,060,047 058,157 892,887 850,483
Expenses: e '
Cost of opérations (exc]udmg deprecmtlon) ....... ol * 500,560 378,301 361,944 340,871 309,491
Depreciation and amortization ... fverieen - 437984 . 196,232 182,890 183,863 - 175,524
General and-administrative. .. weeanre - 84,661 21,115 18,813 17,127 15,619
INterest EXPense. ..ooviierereeee e scraciesre e reennes eereiens - 33,062 8216 760 t,121 3,809
' - oo - 1,056,267 . 603,864 564,407 . 542,982 504,443
Income from continuing operations before equity in o :
earmings of rea] estate entities, gain (loss} on . P
disposition of real estate investments and casualty . | R .
loss and minority interest in income...........ccocereeeenn. - 325,388 456,183 393 750, 349,905 346,040
Equity in earnings of real estate entities..........ccoeeveneee. 11,895 24,883 22,564 24,966 29,888
Gain(loss) on disposition of real estate investments .
and casualty 108S........oeeereiasieecerrenserrsieseessesnes v 2,177 - 1,182 67 1,007 (2,541)
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) - 336 - - - -
_ Income from derivatives, net ST "+ 3,926 - - . - -
Minority interest in income (3)....... e e+ ~{31,883) (32,651) (49,913) (43,703) (44,087)
Income from continuifig operations.... 311,839 449 597 366,468 332,175 329,300
Cumulative effect of change.in accounting principle -.+ 578 : - : - - -
_ Discontinued operations (2) ..o esrisnininn, 1,609 6,796 (255) 4478 {10,562
NEt IMCOME. c.ovteoreirrirerisstenc e cesesasratssssrassssssenrassesnnas $314,026 $456,393 $366,213 $336,653 $318,738
Per Common Share;
DASIBUONS ......oveerrracrceercsenceres s rre s as s sreas e ne s $2.00 $1.90 $1.80 $1.830 $1.80
Net income — BasiC...ovoiuveicceverenenaneas $0.33 $1.98 $1.39 $1.29 $1.15
Net income — Diluted $0.33 $1.97 $1.38 £1.28 $1.14
Weighted average common shares — Basic......c.......... 142,760 128,159 127,836 125,181 123,005
Weighted average common shares — Diluted.............. 143,715 128,819 128,681 126,517 124,571
' Balance Sheet Data:
TOtal @SSELS .......cocevviveietemee et et e $11,198,473 $5,552,486 $5,204,790 $4,968,069 $4,843,662
Total bl $1,848,542 $149,647 $145,614 $76,030 $115,867
Minority interest (other partnership interests)............. $181,030 $28,970 $118,903 $141,137 $154,499
Minority interest (preferred partmership interests)....... $325,000 $225,000 $£310,000 $285,000 $285,000
Shareholders’ eqQUItY ....oocvuerimrrcreeercr e rerisssieneens $8,208,045 $4,817,009 34,429,967 $4,219,799 $4,158,969
Other Data;
Net cash provided by operating activities ........c..ovv.n.. $791,700 $692,048 $616,664 $571,387 $591,283
Net cash used in investing activities .........c....ccceurrrins $(487,496) $(443,656) $(157,638) $(205,133) $(325,786)
Net cash used in financing activities.......c........ceeerera $(244,395) $(121,146) $(297,604) $(264,545) $(211,720)

(1) During 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we completed several significant asset acquisitions, business combinations and_equity
transactions.- See our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto,

(2) Commencing January 1, 2002, we adopted and modified a business plan that included the closure or consolidation of certain non-
strategic containerized storage facilities. We sold two commercial properties — one in 2002, the other in 2004. During 2003 we sold
five self-storage facilities. The historical operations of these facilities are classified as discontinued operations, with the rental
income, cost of operations, depreciation expense and gain or loss on disposition of these facilities for current and prior periods
included in the line-item “Discontinued Operations” on the consolidated income statement.
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(3) During 2004, holders of $200,000,000 of our Series N preferred partnership units agreed to a restructuring which included reducing
their distribution rate from 9.5% to 6.4% in exchange for a special distribution of $8,000,000.. This special distribution, combined
with $2,063,000 in costs incurred at the time the units were originally issued that were charged against income in accordance with the

Securities and Exchange Commission’s clanﬁcatlon of EITF Topic D-42, are mcluded in minority 1nte|est in 1ncome

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial'Coilditiori and Resu]ts of Ogeratiohs

The following dlSCllSSlOIl and analysis should be read in conjunctlon wnh our consohdated ﬁnanmal
statements and notes thereto

- L] B ‘.
-

Forward Looking Statements: All statements in this documer;t,'other' than statements of historical fact,
are forward-looking statements which may be identified by the use of the words "expects," "believes,"
“anticipates,” "should," "estimates" and similar expressions. These forward-lookmg statements involve known
and unknown ‘risks and uncertainties, which may cause Public Storage’s actual results and performance to be
materially different from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking: statements. Factors and risks that may
impact future results and performance are described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors” in Part 1 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. These risks include; but are not limitéd to, the following: risks related to the merger with Shurgard
including difficulties that may be encountered in integrating Public Storage and Shurgard loss of personnel as a
result of the merger, and the impact of the merger on occupancy and renta] rates, the inability to realize or delays in
realizing expected results from the merger; unanticipated operating’ costs resulting from the merger, and risks
associated with mtemanonal operations; changes in general economic conditions and in the markéts in which Public
Storage operates; the impact of competmon from new and existing storage ‘and commerelal facilities and other
storage alternatives, which could impact rents and occupancy Jevels at our facilities; difficulties in Public Storage's
ability to evaluate, finance and integrate acquired and developed propertles into its exlstmg operattons and to fill up
those properties, which could adversely affect our profitability; the impact of the regulatory environment as
well as national, state, and local laws and regulations including, without limitation, those governing Real Estate
Investment Trusts which could increase our expenses and reduce cash avanlab]e for dlstnbutlon consumers’
failure to acéépt the containerized storage concept; difficulties in raJsmg capital at reasonable rates, ‘which would
impede our ability to grow; delays in the development process; economic uncertainty due to the impact of war or
terrorism. We disclaim any obhganon to update publicly or otherwise revise .any forward-looking statements,
whether as a résult of new infotmation, new estimates; or other factors, events or cirdumstances aﬁer the date of this
document, except where: expressly required by law. c -

Overview -

LN : . P L

s ! i

"In the United States, the self-storage mdustry is highly fragmented and is composed predonunant]y of
numerous local and regional operators. Competition in the markets in' which we operate is sngmﬁcant and has
increased over the past several years due to additional development of self-storage facilities as well as the expansion
of the containerized storage business by competitors. We believe that the increase in competition has had a negative
impact on our occupancy levels and rental rates in many markets. "However, we believe that we possess several
d:stmgmshmg charactenstlcs that enable us to compete effectwely with otl_ler owners and operatprs

We are the largest owner and operator of self-storage facilities i in the United Statés with direct and indirect
ownership interests as of December 31, 2006 in 2,003 self-storage facilities’ contammg appro:umately 125 miltion
net rentable square feet. ‘All of our facilities in the United States are operated under the “Public Storage” brand
name, which'we believe is the most recognized and established name in the self-storage industry. Located in the
major metropolitan markets of 38 states, our self-storage facilities are geographically diverse, giviig us national

Wmu—recogmtlon and prominence. This conceiitration establishes us as one of the dominant providers of self-storage

space in most markets in which' we operate and enablés us to use a vanety of promotional activities, such as
television advertising as well as targeted discounting and referrals, which are generally not économically viable to
most of our competltors In addition, we believe that the geographic diversity of the portfoho reduces the impact
from regional economlc downtums and prowdes a greater degree of revenue stablhty

v "

- On August 22, 2006, wé merged with Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc. (“Shurgar ). As a result of the
merger, we acquired 487 self-storage facilities located in the United States and 166 facilities located in seven
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countries in Western Europe. This marks the first time we have owned self-storage facilities outside of the United
States. The self-storage industry in Europe is still relatively néw as compared to the United States where it is a
mature industry. Customer awareness of the product in Europe is emerging. All of our facilities in Europe are
operating under the “Shurgard” brand name. While competition in Europe has been increasing, we believe we are

the single largest self-storage operator in Europe as of December 31, 2006.

We will continue to focus our growth strategies on: (i) improving the operating performance of our existing
self-storage properties, (ii) acquiring s¢lf-storage propertics owned and operated by others, (iii) expanding and
repackaging our existing self-storage facilities, (iv) developing new self-storage locations, and (v} participating in
the growth of PS Business Parks, Inc. (“"PSB”). Major elements of these strategies are as follows:

We will focus on enhancing the operating performance of our self-storage properties, primarily
through increases in revenues achieved through the telephone reservatron center and associated
marketing efforts as well as management of expense growth.

As indicated above, in connection w1th the merger with Shurgard, we acqulred 487 self-storage
facilities located in the United States. Substantially all of these facilities are located in the same
markets that we currently operate in. We believe that the merger will provide us with additional
economies of scale with respect to certain operating costs that wﬂl ultimately improve operating
margins. In addition, at August '31, 2006, the average occupancy level of the 487 self-storage
facilities was approxunate]y 84.4% as compared to our existing portfolio’s 89.7%. We believe that we
will be able to increase the average occupancy level of the acquired portfolio to those experienced by
our own. These potent]al benefits will take time to develop and there can be no assurance that we will

.be able to such beneﬁ

In Europe, we believe there is opportunity to enhance the operating performance. Since the merger
closed, our European management has upgraded systems, reduce overhead costs, and improve revenue
growth by both improving occupancy levels and rental rates.

. We will acquire facilities from third parties. Aside from the Shu:gard merger, durmg 2004, 2005 and

2006, we acquired interests in 89 self-storage facilities from third parties at an aggregate cost of
approximately $618 million. We believe that our national telephone reservation system and our
marketing and promotional activities present an opportunity to increase revenues at these facilities
through higher occupancies, as well as cost efficiencies through greater critical mass. Durmg 2006,
our acquisition activities slowed down significantly, primarily because we focused our attention on the

"merger with Shurgard. Notwithstanding, finding high quality self-storage facilities, in desirable

markets, at attractive prices is becoming more difficult.

We will look to expand and further invest into our existing self-storage locations by (i) improving their
visual and structural appeal, (i) expanding our facilities’ density, at a per-square foot cost that is
favorable compared to a ground-up development, to take advantage of increases in local demand since
the facilities were developed, and (iii) converting existing vacant space previously used by our
containerized storage operatlons into traditional self-storage space. At December 31, 2006, we have a
plpelme of 48 such projects in the United States to expand or repackage our existing facilities, and to

_convert substantially all of the remaining vacant space previously used by our containerized storage

operations, for an aggregate of approximately $188 million, which will add approximately 2,256,000
net rentable square feet. Completion of these projects.is subject to contingencies, including obtaining -
governmental agency approvals. We continue fo evaluate our existing real estate portfolio to ldentlfy‘

' additional expansion and repackagmg opportunities._

In 2005 and 2006, our rate of development of new se1f~storage facilities has declined due to increases
in construction cost, increases in competition with retail, condominium, and apartment operators for
quality seif-storage sites in urban locations, and more difficult zoning and permitting requirements.
We will, however, continue to seek favorable sites and markets for development.
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‘e Through our investment in PSB, we will contimie to participate in the potential growth of this
company’s investment in approximately 18.7 million net rentable square feet of commercial space at
December 31, 2006. = - . o R

Critical Accountmg Policies
f N [ ot ! . - e '

* Management’s D:scussmn and Analysis of Fmanc:al Condition and Results of Operations discusses our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The preparation of our financial statements and related disclosures in
conformity with GAAP-and our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations requires
management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Note 2 to-our consolidated financial statements in Item 8§ of this Form
10-K summarizes the significant accounting pollcxes and’ methods usecl in the preparatlon of our consohdated

financial statements and related disclosures.

Management believes the following are critical accounting policies whose application has 4 material impact
on the Company’s financial presentation. -That is, they are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition
and results, and they requu'e management to make Judgmems and estimates about matters that are inherently
uncertain. . -

Quabf cation as a REIT — Income Tax Expense: We bclleve that we have becn orgamzcd and’ operated
and we intend to continue to operate, as a qualifying Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT™) under the Internal
Revenue Code and applicable state laws. We also believe that Shurgard qualified as a REIT. "A.qualifying REIT

generally does not pay. corporate level income takes on its taxable income that is distributed to its shareholders, and

accordmgly, we do not pay income tax on the share of our taxable income that is distributed to our shareholders. -

We therefore do not estimate or accrue any federal income tax expense. This estimate could be incorrect,
because due to the complex nature of the REIT qualification requirements, the ongoing importance of factual
determinations ‘and. the possibility of future changes in our circumstances, we cannot be assured that we actually
have satisfied or will satisfy the requirements for taxation as a REIT for any particular taxable year. For any taxable
year that we fail or have failed to qualify as a REIT and applicable relief provisions did not.apply, we would be
taxed at the regular corporate rates on all of our taxable income, whether or not we made or make any distributions
to our shareholders, " Any resulting requirement to pay corporate income tax, including any applicable penalties or
interest, could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations. Unless entitled to
relief under specific statutory provisions, we also would be disqualified from taxation as a REIT for the four taxable
years following the year during which qualification was lost. There can be no assurance that we would be entitled to
any statutory relief. In addition, if Shurgard failed to qualify as a R.EIT we gcnerally would have succeeded to or
incurred significant tax liabilities. 1 . .

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Substantially all of our assets consist of long-lived assets, including
real estate, goodwill, and other intangible assets. We evaluate our goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, and
on a quarterly basis evaluate other long-lived assets for impairment. As described in*Note 2 to our consolidated
financial statements, the evaluation of goodwill for impairment entails valuation of the reporting unit to which
goodwill is allocated, which involves significant judgment in the area of projecting earnings, determining
appropriate price-earnings multiples, and discount rates. In addition, the evaluation of other long-lived assets for
impairment requires determining whether indicators of impairment exist, which is a subjective process. When any
indicators of impairment are found, the evaluation of such long-lived assets then entails projections of future
opcratmg cash flows, which also involves significant judgment. We identified impairment charges in the year ended
December 31, 2004 related to our plan to close and consolidate certain containerized storage facilities - see Note 4 to
our consolidated financial statements. Future events, or facts and circumstances that currently exist, that we have
not yet identified, could cause us to conclude in the future that other long-lived assets are impaired. - Any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

A . f . 1 I T .
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Estimated Useful Lives of Long-Lived Assets: Substantially all of our assets consist of depreciable, long-
lived assets. We record depreciation expense with respect to these assets based upon their estimated useful lives.
Any change in the estimated useful lives of those assets, caused by functional or economic obsolescence or other
factors, could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Estimated Level of Retained Risk and Unpaid Tenant Claim Liabilities: As described in Notes 2 and 17 to
our consolidated financial statements, we retain certain risks with respect to property perils, legal liability, and cther
such risks. In addition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company reinsures policies against claims for losses to
goods stored by tenants in our self-storage facilities. In connection with these risks, we accrue losses based upon the
estimated level of losses incurred using certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry and based
on recommendations from an independent actuary that is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries. While
we believe that the amounts of the accrued losses are adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than
the amounts recorded. At December 31, 2006, we had approximately 403,000 reinsured policies in the United States
outstanding representing aggregate coverage of approximately $1 billion. . .

- Aecruals for Contingencies: We are exposed to business and legal liability risks with respect to events that
have occurred, but in accordance with GAAP, we have not accrued for such potential liabilities because the loss is
either not probable or not estimable or because we are not aware of the event. Future events and the result of
pending litigation could result in such potential losses becoming probable and estimable, which could have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations. Some of these potential losses, of which
we are aware, are described in Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements,

 Accruals for Operating Expenses: We accrue for property tax expense and certain other operating
expenses based upon estimates and historical trends and current and anticipated local and state government rules and
regulations. If these estimates and assumptions are incorrect, our expenses could be misstated. Cost of operations,
interest expense, general and administrative expense, as well as television, yellow page, and other advertising
expenditures are expensed as incurred. .

Valuation of Derivatives: As described in our Significant Accounting Policies in Note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements, our derivative instruments are not considered effective hedges. Accordingly, any
changes in value of these derivatives are reflected as an increase or decrease in net income. The determination of
the value of derivatives is based upon significant judgment and assumptions including interest rates, currency rates,
and expected rates of return. The actual value of derivative instruments is dependent upon many factors that our
Jjudgments and assumptions may not consider, or may not consider effectively,

Valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in the merger with Shurgard: In recording the merger with
Shurgard, we have estimated the value of real estate, intangible assets, debt, and the other assets and other liabilities
of Shurgard that we acquired. In addition, we have estimaied the fair market value of the 38.9 million shares that we
issued to the Shurgard shareholders. These value estimates are based upon many assumptions, including interest
rates, market values of land and buildings in the United States and Europe,- estimated future cash flows from the
tenant base in place, and the recoverability of certain assets. While we believe that the assumptions we used are
reasonable, these assumptions are subject to a significant degree of judgment, and others could come to materially
different conclusions as to value. if these assumptions were computed differently, our depreciation and amortization
expense, interest expense, real estate, debt, and intangible assets could be materially different. Further, these
valuation estimates are preliminary, subject to further analysis, and could change.

.

Results of Operations

Net income: Net income for the year ended' December 31, 2006 was $314,026,000 compared to
$456,393,000 for the same period in 2005, represemting a decrease of $142,367,000, or 31%. This decrease is
primarily due to significait increases in depreciation and amortization expense, general and administrative expense
and interest expense. Depreciation and amortization increased by approximately $242 million due primarily to the
addition of real estate facilities and intangible assets acquired in the merger with Shurgard and the corresponding
depreciation and amortization related to such assets. General and administrative expense increased by approximately
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primarily to the issuance of shares in connection with the exercise of employee stock options.

$64. million principally from incurring approximately $44 million in integration expenses related to the Shurgard
merger.. At December 31, 2006 we have $1.3 billion of debt outstanding that was assumed in the Shurgard merger,
and, as a result, interest expense increased by approximately $25 million. -

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $456,393,000,compared to $366,213,000 for the
same period in 2004, representing an increase -of $90,180,000, or 25%. This increase is primarily due to improved
néf operating income (before depreciation) from our Same Store, newly developed and acquired self-storage
facilities, reduced minority interest in income, increased gains on the disposition of real estate assets and higher
interest income. These items were partially offset by increases in depreciation associated with acquisition and
development actmtles general and administrative e;cpense and mterest_expense LY

[ P

Allocations of income among shareholders In computing the net income" allocable to common !

. shareholders. for each penod we have deducted from- net income (i) distributions paid to the holders of the Equrty
‘Stock, Series A totalinig-$21,424,000 in'2006, $21,443, 000-in 2005 and $21,501,000 in 2004, (ii) distributions paid
_ to our preferred shareholders totaling $214,218,000 in 2006, $173,017,000 in 2005 and $157,925,000in '2004, and
. (iii) amounts allocated to preferred shareholders in connection . with preferred stock redemption actlvxtles as’
_ described below totaling $31,493,000 in 2006, $7,538, :000 in 2005 and $8,724,000 i 1n 2004. ‘The year-over-year
, increase in’ the distributions paid to our preferrcd 'shareholders is due to the issuance of additional preferred

. securities, partially offset by the redemptlon of preferred secuntles that had higher d1v1dend rates than the newly

“issued preferred securities.”

T R

Net income per share: Net income allocable to our common shareholders (after allocating net‘ income‘ to
our preferred and equity shareholders) was $46,891,000 or $0.33.per common share on a diluted basis for the year

‘ended December 31, 2006 compared to $254,395,000 or $1.97-per common share-on a diluted basis for-the same -

period in 2005, representmg a decrease of $1.64 per common share, or a decrease of 83%. The decreases in net

._income allocable to common shareholders and earmings per common diluted share are due primarily to the impact of

the factors described above, in addition to increased income allocated to preferred shareholders, ‘described below.
Weighted average diluted shares increased to 143,715,000 for year  ended December 31, 2006 from 128,819, 000 for

the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase 111 weighted average diluted shares is due primarily to the 1ssuance_ '
of approximately 38.9" million shares in the merger with Shurgard, which are mcluded in 1 our werghted averages

shares from August 22, 2006 through December 31, 2006.-

1

. . * Net income was $1.97 per, dlluted commot share for 2005 compared to $1.38 per diluted common share for | |

2004. This i mcrease was dttributable to the factors denoted above with respect to net income ' offset partially by an
increase in income allocated to preferred shareholders, as described ab_ove and an increase in diluted shares
outstanding from' 128,681,000 in 2004 to 128,819,000 in 2005: The increase in shares outstanding was due

PR Lora. PSR

As described more fully under “Liquidity and Capital Resources” - below; 'we - have approximately

$172,500,000 in higher coupon preferred stock that becomes available for redempnon during 2007. While there is

no assurance that we will be able to raise the necessary capital and at appropriate rates to redeem these securities, if

we do redeem these securities, we expect allocations to our preferred shareholders based upon distributions paid to
decreasé.” However, during 2007 there Wouid be an additional "allocation to_ the preferred shareholders of
approxrmately $5 6 rmlhon 1f these redemptlons are completed Y - . .

Real Estate Operations

. - R ' T . Lo
- P Ce ' ' LA S ' o . ¢ . -

Dormestic Self-Storage Operations: Our domestic self-storage operations are by far,the largest component,
of our operating activities, representing approximately 90% of our total revenues generated for the year ended
December- 31, 2006, Rental income with respect: to,our domestic self-storage operations has: grown “from
$951,370,000 in 2005 to $1,180,234,000 in 2006, representing an' increase of $228,864,000, or approximately
24.1%. The year-over-year improvements in rental income are due to improvements in: the performance of those
facilities that we owned prior to Japuary 1, 2004, (our “Same Store” facilities), and the addition of new facilities to
our portfolio, either through our acquisition or development activities.
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To enhance year-over-year comparisons; the following table summarizes, and the - ensumg discussion
describes the operating results of these.three groups our Sa.me Store group, acqulsmon facilities and devclopmcut
facilities. )

Domestic seif - storage operations summary; . ° ) o
B - - o Year Ended Decembe\' 31,. " YearEnded Decerber 31,

" SRR T ' : * Percentage C 't Percentage
LS ) . 2006 : 2005 © + Change 2005 2004 < Change
S R P o {Dollar amounts in thousands) .
Rental income: o . ‘. I : .
Same Store Facilities .....cocccoveevicrenrmrnnmrsrmersnenesnins $ 859,776 § 818,378 51% § 818,378 § 779,259 5.0%
Acquired Facilities....... 207,746 39,691 423.4% 39,691 4,705 743.6%
Development Fac:lmos 112,712 093301 208% 93301 77,701 20.1%
Total rental i 1nc0me‘ 1,180,234 951,370 L 241% .- 951,370 861,665 10.4%
Cost of operations before depreciation and. . .
amortization (a): . . : : '
Same Store Faciliies .....ocvvvevevnverreeevsmsrcsesisessenas 284,624 271,330 0 T 49% 271,330 270,261 04%
Acquired Facilities....... ! V76,084 16,780 - -3534% 16,780 1,606 ° ° 944.8%
Development Facilities: 38,052 32479 - 172% 32479 28,488 14.0%
Total cost Of OPETALIONS ......curveersiorrererrerenions 398,760 - 320,589 " - 24.4% 320,589 300,355 © 6%
Net operating income before depreciation and : o )
amortization(a): '
Same Store Facilities .. 575,152 547,048 5.1% - 547,048- 508,998 7.5%
Acquired Facilities... 131,662 22911 .- 474.7% 22911 3,099 639.3%
Development Facﬂmcs ...... sersz e ree s v anerenes .. 74660 .60,822 22.7% - 60,822 . - 49,213 23.6%
Total net operating i income beforc depreclatmn .. T e R
and amortization (a)............_ ................ e - 181,474 . . 630,781 239% . 630,781 561,310 12.4%
Deprecmtlon and amortmtlon expense e L . . ) L .
Same Store Fac:lmm .I. . (150,487). .- . (156,832) v (4.0)% (156,832) . (153,405) 2.2%
Acquired Facilities........ (196, 393) - (10,120  1,840.6% (10,120) (892) 1,034.5%
Development Facilities.. y W (27,963 (24,150 158% . (24,150} - (21,933) 10.1%
Total deprccmnon and amortlzatlon cxpense ........ s (374,843) (191,102) . 962%  (191,102) (176,230) ., 84%
Net operating income (loss); . ' o
Same Store Facilities ......coovovvecinccrnrencincesecncsnns 424,665 390,216 8.8% 390,216 355,593 9.7%
Acquired Facilities.... S (84731 0 12,7910 (606.1)% 12,791 -3, 207 479.6%
Developinent Facilities.... el 46697 - 36672 213% ' 36672 ¢ 27280 ' 34.4%
Total net operating income ...’ : $406,631 ' $439679 (7.5)% 'f $439,679 $385,030 14.2%
A . r . e - ..;, - 4. “{ N N ey .- m ‘-
Weighted average for the fiscal year......' ..... — 88.6% 89.6% {(1.17% 89.9% 90.0% (0.10%
Number of self-storage facilities (at end of period)... 1,081, 1,461 35.6% 1461 . . 1423 2.7%
Net rentable square feet (in thousands, at end of . L , , i o
period): ..o _....: ..... PSS 124 003 89,023 . . 393% 89,023 85,149 . 4.5%

i

(a) Total net operatmg ificome before deprecaatmn and amortlzatlcm which is 2 non—GAAP measure, for our self-storage
segment is presented in Note 15 to our December 31, 2006 consolidated financial statements, “Segment Information,” which
includes a reconciliation of net operating income before depreciation and amortization for this segment to our consolidated
net income.

In the above table, the significant changes in various operating metrics in 2006 as compared to 2005, is
primarily due to-the acquisition of self-storage facilities in connection with the merger with Shurgard which was
completed on August 22, 2006 (sec-Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements). As a result of the merger, we
acquired-interests in 487 self-storage facilities (32.3 million net rentable square feet) located in the United States,
including 459 wholly-owned facilities and 28 facilities owned by joint ventures in- which we have an interest. The
operating results of all of the facilities-acquired in the merger and located in the United States are included in our
financial statements and in'the above table for the period from the close of the merger through December 31, 2006.-
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- Immediately preceding the close of the merger, all of the acquired facilities in the United States were
integrated into our property management systems, centralized pricing systems, national call center, and website.
Temporary signage, re-branding the facilities from “Shurgard” to “Public Storage”, was also put into place
immediately after the close of the merger. Over the past féw months, we have been replacing the temporary srgnage
with permanent srgnage and we anticipate that thls process will be completed by March 31, 2007

In the field .our property management personnel worked diligently to absorb this large acquisition of
facilities. Training and hiring new property managers were key elements for the successful integration process. New
employees needed to be trained on how to use our property management systems and follow our operating policies
and procedures. As expected in a merger of this nature, immediately following the close.of the merger turnover at
the property manager level was higher than we normally experience. In anticipation of such turnover, we hired

additional “bench” property managers to fill openings when turnover occurred. Although this strategy was effective -

. at keeping properties opened for business, it dld result in incurring additionat payroll costs in the fourth Quarter of
2006 due to the additional head count.

+ +

As a result of the merger the amount of vacant space mcreased significantly in our system. The acqulred_

Shurgard portfolio of 487 facilities in the United States had in aggregate average square foot occupancy of 84.4% at
August 31, 2006 as compared to 89.7% for the existing, Pubhc Storage portfolio. - Average rental rates 'were

approximately the same 'for each of the portfolios. One of our goals is to improve rental income gencrated by the -
Shurgard portfolio by improving its overall occupancy level to the occupancy level experienced by our existing

portfolio. In order to increase move-in volumes and ultimately increase occupancy levels as quickly as possible, we
began to be much more aggressive with our pricing, promotional discounts and marketing programs during the
fourth quarter of 2006 and into the 2007. This strategy has put some pressure on occupancies and rental rate growth
on the Public Storage Same Store facilities (as discussed below) as we shift demand to the other properties and as
we adjust the level of discounts and monthly rents. Compounding the difficulties in improving the occupancy levels
of the Shurgard portfolio is that the fourth quarter is seasonally the. lowest with respect to demand for storage space.

It is often difficult to see the benefits of these programs in the short-term as promotional discounts and
marketing ‘expense adversely affect earnings in the month the customer moves in. -Our strategy will be to continue
with aggressive pricing, promotional discounts and marketing to improve overall occupancy levels.

We continue to believe that the acquisition of the' Shurgard portfolio will provide operational efficiencies,
specifically in the areas of marketing, national call center, and indirect overhead costs that support the operations of
the facilities. Such efficiencies have yet to be realized due to the recent integration, increased property manager
head count and increased marketing costs, as noted above. R

In the discussion that follows, we present realized annual rent per occupied square foot, which is computed
by dividing rental income, before late charges and administrative fees, by the weighted average occupied square
footage for the period. We also present annualized rental income per available square foot (“REVPAF”), which
represents annualized rental income, before late charges and administrative fees, divided by’ total available net
rentable square feet. Late charges and administrative fees are excluded to more effcctwely measure our ongomg
level of revenue associated with-the lcasmg of the units.

Domestic - Same Store Facilities T T

The Same Store Facilities contain approximately 73.9 million ‘nét rentable square feet, representing
approximately 60% of the aggregate net rentable square feet of our consolidated domestic self-storage portfolio.
Revenues and operating expenses with respect to this group of properties are set forth in the above Self-Storage
Operations table under the caption, “Same Store Facilities.” These facilities are included in the Same Store Facilities
because they are all stabilized and owned since January., 1, 2004 and therefore provide meanmgful comparative data
for 2004, 2005 and 2006. The followmg table sets forth addmonal opcratmg data with respect to the Same Store
Facilities: :

.-
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SAME STORE FACILITIES - - e . Year Ended December 31, - Year Ended December 31,

oo . Percentage . Percentage
2006 _ v 2005 Change . 2005 . 2004 Change
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except weighted average amounts)
Rental income.......co.coeeeninicensiecer e et naens . $ 821,204 § 782,076 _50% 8§ 782,076 § 746,461 4.83%
Late charges and administrative fees collected.................. 38,572 36,302 6.3% 36,302 32,798 10.7%
Total rental inCOME......crovvreerirens Seereresrenisdisrnsiannssenanns 859,776 818,378 . 5.1% 818,378 779,259 5.0%
Cost of operations before: deprcmatlon and amortization: - : ’ - Co et |
Payroll eXpense ...l icmns i enssasenes . 86,919 82468 : ° 54% .. 82,468 83,984 (1.8)%,
Property taxes.........c.ecvene. . 78,152 - 74,931 4.3% 74,931 72,986 2.7%.
Repairs and maintenance......... . 27980 *+ 20,237 - 6.6% 26,237 26,294 (0.2)%
Advertising and promotion.........ceeeeeeereeeciierecnnas 25,194 23,862  56% 23,862 22,338 6.8%
Utilities......conurnnienins . 18,822, 17,426 8.0% 17,426 16,168 7.8%
Property iNSUTANCE. .......covcvmsnvricrmnererinsssssloeesenessenes © 8,937 " 8,125 10.0% 8,125 9,090 (10.6)%;
Telephone reservation CENter.......ccooenreviercneericenncnnes 7,932 7,960 (0.4)% T 7,960 - 10,699 (25.6)%
Other cost of management..........cocoveviinnnrrinenns 30,688 30,321 1.2% 30,321 28,702 5.6%
Total cost of operations..................... SR S - 284,624 271,330 * 4.9% 271,330 270,261 0.4%
Net operating income before depreciation and . ) Voo . e ‘ C oo .
AmMOrtZAtION (€. veeuvereereemracrereecemecnae S 575,152 547,048 5.1% 547,048 508,998 7.5%
Depreciation and amortization............ sreennreneeans eernnaaes e (150,487) (156,832) (4.00% ~ (156,832) (153,405) 22%
Net Operatmg moome.............‘...' .............................. e "% 424665 § 390216 88%  § 390,216 § 355,593 9.7%
Gross margin (before depreciation and amortization}........ T 66.9% 66.8% - . 0.1% 66.8% - 653% 2.3%
Weighted average for the fiscal year: B - o C .
Square foot 0ccuPAnCy (2) ...l BT SO ©90.9% 91.1% 02)% " 91.1%- - 91.0% - 0.1%
Realized annual rent per occupled square foot () . $12.22 $1161: .7 53% . $1lsl $11.09° 4.7%
REVPAF (€] .ttt essisscss st ssssssssssas - ~ $ILIL e B10.58 50% - $10.58 . . $10.09 4.9%
Weighted average at December 31: ‘
Square oot OCCUPRNCY .0 . i ercererserrenesrieresdiarnerennnas P 894% -89.8% - (0.4)% -+ 89.8%. 90.1% (0.3)%
In place annual rent per occupied square foot (d) ......... oo 81332 $12.86 3.6% . $12.86 - $12.21 5.3%
Total net rentable square feet (in thousands) ........ 5., 73,946 73946 . - 73,946 73,946
(a) Square foot occupancies represent weighted average occupancy levels over the entire period.
(b} Realized annual rent per occupiei'l square foot is 'computed by dividing rental income, prior.to late charges and
. administrative fees, by the weighted average occupied square footage for the period.. Realized annual rent per occupied
square foot takes into consideration promotional discounts, credit card fees and other costs that reduce rental income
from the contractual amounts due.
{¢) Annualized rerital income per-available square foot (“REVPAF”) represents a.nnuahzed rental income,’ prior to late
© . charges and administrative fees, divided by total available net rentable square feet. .~ e .
(d) In place a.nnua] rent per occupied square foot represents annualized contractual rents per occupied” square foot without
reductions for promotlona] discounts, a.nd exchides late charges and admmlstratlve fees.
(e) Total net operating income before dcpreclatlon and amortization, which is a ‘non- GAAP measure, for our Same Store

facilities represents a portion of our total self-storage segment’s net operating income before deprecmtlon and
amortization, and is reconciled to the segment total in the table “self—storage operations summary” above. A
reconciliation of our total self-storage segment’s net operating income before depreciation and amortization to
consolidated net income is mcluded in Note 15 to our December 31, 2006 consohdated ﬁnancxal statements, “Segment
Informatlon

-

* Rental income increaséd approximately 5.1% in 2006 as compared to’ 2005 This increase was primarily

attributable to higher average realized annual rentai rates per occupied square foot; which were 5.3% higher in 2006
as compared to 2005, 'offset partially by slightly lower occupancy levels. Rental income increased approximately
5.0% in 2005 as compared to 2004. This increase was primarily attributable'to higher average realized annual rental
rates per occupied square foot, which were 4.7% higher in 2005 as compared to 2004. Our occupancy-levels
remained flat on a year-over-year basis at approximately 91% for each period.
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1In 2005, the quarterly year-over-year growth in rental income was consistent for-each quarter: 5.1% for the
quarter ended March 31, 2005, 4.9% for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, 5.0% for the quarter ended September 30,
2005 and 5.1% for the quarter ended December 31, 2005. These trends continued into 2006, as rental income
growth was 5.1% for the quarter ended March 31, 2006, and started accelerating to 5.7%.for the quarter ended June
30, 2006 and 6.1% for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.. For the quarter ended December 31, 2006, the year-
over-year growth in rental income slowed to 3.4%. This reduction in growth was the result of lower occupancy
levels combined with a reduction in year-ovcr-year growth in realized rents.

Tt is difficult for us to pin point the exact causes for this slow down and to the degrec that such causes have
negatively affected the growth in rental income. We believe, however, that the reduction.was due to a number of

" factors including; (i) the increased number of vacant spaces added to our overall system as a result of the Shurgard

merger, (i) hurricane activity that created unusual demand for storage space. in our Florida markets in 2005 and
2004, making year-over-year trends in 2006 less favorable, (iii) general economic conditions, specifically the slow.
down in housing sales and moving act1v1ty, and (1v) increased competition. Many of these factors are beyond our
control. . : . . . .

- !

As indicated above, it is-our objective to close the occupancy gap between the acquired Shurgard properties
versus the Public Storage existing portfolio. We believe, at least in the short term, this strategy will put pressure on
occupancies and rental rate growth on our, existing Same Store facilities as demand appears to.have shifted
somewhat to the acquired Shurgard facilities as we adjust the level of discounts and monthly rents at the acquired
Shurgard facilities to accelerate occupancy growth. Notwithstanding, it is important for us to maintain our
occupancy levels in our Same Store portfolio, accordingly, we have adjusted rental rates and the level of
promotional discounts offered to new tenants as a means to expand move-in volumes throughout the entire portfolio.

It has been, and will continue to be, challenging in the near term to maintain occupancy levels at our Same Store.

group of facilities, while at the same time trying to rapidly improve the occupancy levels of the acquired Shurgard
facilities. Compounding this challenge is that the months following the close of the merger are months when
demand for storage is typically weak. We experience seasonal fluctuations in the occupancy levels of self-storage
facilities with occupancies generally higher in the symmer months than in the winter months. ,We believe that these
fluctuations result in part from increased moving activity during the summer. '

Cost of operations (excluding depreciation and amortization) increased by 4.9% in 2006 as compared to the
same period in 2005. Cost of operations increased by 0.4% in 2005 as compared to 2004.

Payroll expense has increased 5.4% in 2006 as compared to 2005, due principally to higher wage ratcs
required for some of our job classifications because of a tighter labor market in several market areas, higher

‘overtime hours required due to understaffing issues, and the absence of an adjustment to workers compensation

made in 2005. The underlying compensation to our personnel increased in 2004 and 2005, as our field organization
focused upon improving customer service and productivity. However, over the last few years we have bolstered our
safety programs and improved our workers compensation claims management skills. These efforts had a positive
impact on reducing workers compensation claims, and reduced the level of liability for future claims during 2005,
This resulted in a significant reduction in workers compensation expense in 2005 and 2004 with the adjustment
being much higher in 2005 and resulting in a decrease in overall payroll expense as compared to 2004, '

Repairs and maintenance expenditures increased 6.6% in 2006 as compared to 2005. During the second
quarter, we experienced higher repair and maintenance costs to address certain deferred maintenance issues
localized to a few markets. We expect this trend to continue in 2007, Repairs and maintenance includes snow
removal costs, which decreased $769,000 or 37% in 2006 as compared to 2005. Snow removal costs had increased
in 2005 as compared to 2004, however, overall repairs and maintenance costs were flat.

Advertising and promotion is comprised principally of media (television and radio), yellow page, and
internet advertising. Advertising and promotion costs increased 5.6% in 2006 as compared to 2005 as we
significantly expanded our media programs to advertise our aggressive pricing and promotional discount programs
in order to improve incremental move-in volumes throughout the domestic portfolio. - Advertising and promotion
costs increased 6.8% in 2005 as compared to 2004, Yellow page advertising has stayed relatively stable in each of
the periods. Media advertising, principally television, has increased from $10,458,000 in 2004 to $10,998,000 in
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2005 and $11,275,000 in 2006. Our internet advertising expense has continued to increase as a percentage of our
overall expenditures, increasing from $704,000 in 2004 to $1,984,000 in 2005 and $2,779,000 in 2006. ‘We expect
that internet advertising will continue to grow as that marketing .channel becomes a more important source of new
tenants, and that yellow page advertising will remain relatively stable. Future media advertising expenditures are
not determinable- at this time, and will be driven in part by demand for our self-storage spaces as well as our
evaluation of the most effective mix of yellow page, media, and internet advernsmg =

" As described below under “Shurgard Domestic Same-Store Facilities,” certain cost savings in the area of
yvellow page advertising, payroll, and call center expenses will benefit the same-store facﬂmes a3 these benefits are
allocated among all.the fac:lltles in our portfolio. - .

Utility expenses increased 7.8% in 2005 and 8.0% in 2006 due prmcnpal]y to hlgher energy costs. These
levels of increases are expectcd to persist dunng 2007,

Insurance expense increased 10.0% in 2006 as compared to 2005 reflecting significant increases in property
insurance resulting primarily from the hurricanes experienced in 2005. These rate increases became effective with
our policy year starting April 1, 2006. We expect to realize certain economies due to the merger with Shurgard and,
accordingly, expect the increases to moderate in the first quarter of 2007. In 20035, insurance expense-declined
10.6% as compared to 2004 due to improved cost controls as well -as a somewhat softer insurance market allowing
us to get improved prcrmums on our pohcles T : v :

Telephone reservation center costs were $10,699,000 in 2004, $£7,960,000 in 2005 and $7,932,000 in 2006.
During the last half of 2006, we began tc realize certain benefits from increased staffing through better conversion
ratios and lower temporary staffing costs. + We believe that the 2005 and 2006 expenses represents the stabilized
level of expenditures for our telephone reservation center gwen the current number of self-storagc facilities in our
portfolio and the related call volume e S

The following tablc summarizes selected quarterly financial data with respect to the Same Store Facilities:
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For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Entire Year
{Amounts in thousands, except for per square foot amount)
Total rental income: ‘
2006 $ 208,228 $ 214832 $ 221,386. $ 215,330 3 859,776
2005 - $ 198,059, - $- 203,302 - ~$ 208,745 § 208,272 § 818378
-2004 : S‘ 188,535 ~ - § 193,833 $ 198,754 $ 198,137 $ 779259
Total cost of operations {excluding depreciation and ot
amortization): v :
2006 £ 72,030 $, 72,749 $ TL1I5 $ 68,730 $ 284624
2005 % 69991 - % 67,736 $ 67,730 § 65873 < §$ 271,330
2004 5 68439 $ 67,057 $ 66514 $ ‘68251 $ 270261
Property tax expense: B Ce
2006 $ 20663 3 19346 ‘20,376 $ 17,767 $ 78,152
2005 o5 1993 $ 18402 "% 19,573 $ 17025 - . % -74931
2004 . % 19379 . $ 17,745 | £ 18,746 $ 17,116" $ 72986
Media advertising expense: . L 7 .
2006 : £ 3918 - $ 2611 $ Lrooz § 3684 8 275
2005 - % 358 - $ 2955 £ 2314, - $ 2141 $ 10998
2004 $ 3377 £ 1972 $ 2019 $ 3,09 $ 10458
REVPAF; ' . . _ _ )
.- 2006 $ .1077. £ 1110 L§50 1143 § 1112 § 11
2005 .o 8 1025 $ 1052 $ 1077 . $ 1076 § 1058
2004 I [ $ .1005 $ -1031 $ 1027 $ 1009
Weighted average realized annual rent per occupied square foot: ; et
- 2006 F 1194 $ 1205 T8 1250 $ 1239 £ 1222
2005 } N4l $ 1142 $ 1175 £ 1189 $- 1161
2004 $ 1088 - $ 1098 £ 1121 $ 1131 $ 1109
Weighted average occupancy levels for the period: * R -
2006 902% 92.1% 91.4% - - - 89.8% 90.9%
2005 . 89.9% ) 92.1% 91.7% - - 90.5% 91.1%
91.9% 91.0%

2004 89.7% 91.5%
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Analysis of Regional Trends = . ‘ L

*

The foflowing table sets forth régibnai‘ trends in our Same Store Facilities:  +

oot e

L o o Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31, -
o Joo U 2006 . 2005 Change 2005 2004 Change _
' (Amounts in thousands, except for weighted average data)
Same Store Facilities Operating ‘ I o ..
Trends by Region
Rental income: - N . . v :
Southern California (126 facilities)... $ 140,578 § 134,303 - 47% $ 134,303 .S 126,016 6.6%
Northern California (127 facilities)... . 104,103, | 93,758 o 5.4% 98,758 ., 95,095 3.9%
Texas (149 facilities}........cccueivenenee. 75,7187 71,986 5.3% 71,986 70,213 2.5%
Florida (130 facilities).... . 89414 83,473 7.1% 83,473 75,594 -10.4%
Illinois (91 facilities)...... 63,630 61,128 4.1%. 61,128 59,238 . 32%
Georgia (58 facilities)................ 29,688 27,507 - 1.9% 27,507 25,585 7.5%
All other states (585 facilities) .-........ . 156,576 . 341,223 ) 4.5% 341,223 327,518 4.2%
Total rental income...........ccvvivrencaricnnas 859,776 818,378 5.1% 818,378 179,259 5.0%.
Cost of operations before depreciation and amortization: Ty '
Southern California ..........cveveerirrernnns 31,381 -4 29,265 1.2% 29,265 29,786 (1.7)%
Northern California 27,078 - 25,591 * 5.8% 25,591 + 25,097 2.0%
i 33,439 . 31,030 7.8% 31,030 31,000 0.1%
29,924 28,024 6.8% 28,024 29,247 (4.2)%
27,778 24,859 11.7% 24,859 26,118 4.8)%"
10,098-° ' 9,511 6.2% 9,511 - 9,455 © 0.6%
_ ) 124,926 123,050 O 1.5% 123,050 119,558 T29%
Total cost of OPETAONS «ovveeeverieerrerieniens v 284,624 271,330 T 4.9% 271,330 270,261 0.4%
Net operating income before depreciation and amortization: S o : .
Southern_Califomia........ccovinieinncenin 109,197 105,038 . 4.0% 105,038 .96,230 o 92%
Northern California........ccocoeeeerpenee.e. 77,025 73,167 5.3% 73,167 69,998 : 4.5%
Texas..coeieririeeeircee e . 42348 40,956 3.4% 40,956 39,213 . 4.4%
Florida....oevvnnrcreiieesreceennes 59,490 55,449 7.3% 55,449 46,347 19.6%
TTHNOIS o evveveecnricnnereens s rnns e 35,852 36,269 (L.1)%. . 36,269 33,120 9.5%
GEOTEIR. . vt eveereseerersrerensersesrassnsanes 19,590 17,996 8.9% 17,996 16,130 - 11.6%
All other states........cccooeceeerenveeeeennnn. 231,650 218,173 6.2% 218,173 207,960 4.9%
Total net operating income before .. . ! : ’ ST
depreciation and amortization............ $ 575,152 $ 547,048 5.1% § 547,048 8 508,998 7.5%
Weighted average occupancy: .
Southern Califomia........ccccoveeireeeenes 91.2% 92.3% (1.2)% 92.3% 92.1% 0.2%
Northern California........ccccooeevesreeeeene, 90.2% 90.5% (0.3)% 90.5% 89.3% 1.3%
TEXAS oveerrrereeermnnrsienssersssensesssesarsnnsses 90.8% 90.0% 0.9% 90.0% 90.1% 0.1)%
FIOFAR ... vrecrerrrrecnnrearerensrierasssnsenees 92.9% 93.2% 0.3)% 93.2% 92.4% 0.9%
HHNOIS covrvcrrearereerernnrreuersrsaerseresrserennee 89.4% 89.5% 0.1%% 89.5% 89.9% (0.4)%
GEOTEIA. .. enss 92.3% 92.4% (0.1)% 92.4% 91.5% 1.0%
All other states.........cocoevneneiceeneneans 90.6% 90.8% {0.2}% 90.8% 91.2% (0.4)%
Total weighted average occupancy......... 90.9% 91.1% (0.2)% 91.1% 91.0% 0.1%
REVPAF: .
Southern California $ 1710 § 1633 47% § 1633 $ 1534 6.5%
Northem California 14.42 13.68 5.4% 13.68 13.20 31.6%
TEXAS v 7.719 742 5.0% 7.42 7.25 2.3%
Florida......oceiecerensioneriernnerenees 11.43 10.68 7.0% 10.68 9.62 11.0%
HENOIS ... 10.96 10.53 4.1% 10.53 10.25 2.7%
GOOTHIR v eeecveeere e en e e e : 8.34 7.76 7.5% 7.76 7.23 7.3%
All other states...........ccoooeecieecriceeernn 10.14 9.71 4.4% 9.71 9.35 3.9%
Total REVPAF ..o b 1111 § 1058 50% § 1058 § 10.09 4.9%
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Same Store Facilities Operating . - : e . L ‘ C oy e

Trends by Region (Continued) . Year Ended December 31, , + . . Year Ended December 31,
; 2006 2005 Change 2005 2004 Change
Realized annual rent per occupied oL e e
square foot; B
. Southern California................. orenrnns . % 1875 3 1769 . 60% § 1769 8§ 1666 . | 62%
Northern Califomia........ 1598 1512 . U s7% T 1502 © 1478 2.3%

TTEKAS v s 858 8.24° 4.1% - 824" ' 805 2.4%
Florida .....ocovvererirenieecnsienssieninssboeens + 1231 1146 T4% 1146° ' c1042 7 - 10.0%
Ilinois...... 12.26 IL77 v 42%% 11.77 14l 3.2%-
GEOTBIA cevvevarivecarvenassnrensssrsmrensessiercas 9.04 8.40 7.6% 8.40 7.90 6.3%
All other states..........occvciirecencrenenen 11.20 10.69 4.8% 1069 . ¢ 10257 r,.-43% .

Total realized rent per square foot.......... £ 1222 £ 1161 ° 5.3% $ 1161 $ 11.09 4.7%
In place annual rent per occupied square : L
foot at December 31: et
Southern California £ 2031 % 19.46 4.3% $ 1946 3§ 1826 . . 6.6% .-
Northern California " 17.38 16.73 . 39% © 1673 ~16.00. .+ 45% .
Texas.....ccremeerererearereeres 9.38 .9.06 3.6% -906. .. 872 .i38%
Florida..................... ’ 13.40 12.71 .. 5.4% 12.71 11.67 - .89%
Mlinois.....c.ccceervenc.e. 13.36 . 1290 - 3.5% 12.9¢ 1252  » -.2.9%.

© Georgia ... . 1015 - 948 - 7.0% 9.48 887 -+ 6.8%
All other states ; o122t . 1186 . o, 29% 1186 .. 1132 4.8%

T TS $ 1332 $ 12.86 36% $ 1286 $ 1221 53%

- -
e

C oAt
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The Southern California Market consists principally of the greater Los Angeles area and San Diego, and .

has historically been a source of strong growth due to its diverse economy and continued population growth. - In

addition, barriers to entry in the form of difficult permitting requucmeuts tend to reduce the potentml for mcreascd o

competition in the infill locations where we focus: our operauons =

- .

The Northem California market consists principally of San Francisco and.related peripheral areas. While-

this area has a vibrant economy and relatively strong population growth, it has been subject to general economic
conditions, prln(:lpally issues associated with the technology sector. In addition, there has been' increased
competition in the areas that we do business, principally in the peripheral areas nédar San Francisco, due to new
supply. As a result revenue growth in this area has been average relative to our other markets '

The Texas market principally includes Dallas Houston ‘and San Antonio. This market has hJStorlcally been

"subject to volatility due to minimal regulatory restraint upon- buxldmg, which results in cycles of overbmldmg and

absorptlon - For the last few years, we have been i in a penod of increased supply and compentlon in the areas we

...... 4

The Flonda market prmc1pally includes Mlaml Orlando Tampa, and West Palm Beach. These markets

have been our strongest in terms of revenue growth in 2006, due in part to increased moving and storage demand

resulting from the impact of hurricane activity in 2005 and 2004. In addition, over the longér teri we believe that
this market benefits from continued strong population growth and barriers to entry, We expect growth in revenues .°
during 2007 to moderate due primarily to the lack of hurricane activity during the 2006 season rcsuhmg in difficult ..

year-over-year COmparisons. e
The Illinois market is composed principally of Chicago. Revenue growth has been weak in Chicago due,
we believe, to increased competition from building that is comprised principally of conversions of industrial type

facilities into self-storage facilities, as well as weaker population growth.

Georgia, which includes principally Atlanta, has been benefiting from a reduction in new supply relative to
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population growth in the last few years and, as a result, revenue growth has been favorable in the last three years.
We believe that these conditions should continue and expect Atlanta to be one of our strongest marketsin 2007,

Domestic - Acquire-d Seif-Storage Facilities

During 2004, 2005 and 2006, in addition to the 487 self-storage facilities we acquired in the Shurgard
merger, we acquired a total of 89 self-storage facilities containing 6,383,000 net rentable square feet. Also,
commencing January 1, 2006, we began. consohdatmg the accounts of 16 facilities previously accounted for on the
equity method. The following table summarizes operating data with respect to these facilities.

DOMESTIC -ACQUIRED SELF-STORAGE

FACILITIES Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,

y 2006 2005 Change l2005 2004 Change

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except square foot amounts)

" Rental income:

Facilities acquired in 2006:
Facilities acquired in merger with Shurgard ....... $ 128,131 . - $ 128,131 % - $ - % -
Newly consolidated.....................s 14,610 - 14,610 . - - -
Other acquisitions ........ccc.ceeenee 6,246 - 6,246 - - -
Facilities acquired in 2005 24,549 - 9,285 15,664 9,285 .- 9,285
Facilities acquired in 2004.........c.oveereerernecreonvenionee 33,810 30,406 3,404 30,406 4,705 25,701
Total rental MCOME......crvmierversmresrisraremsersrscsiosecrrens 207,746 39,691 168,055 . 39,691 4,705 34,986
Cost of operations before depl’eclatlon and
amortization :
Facilities acquired in 2006:
Facilities acquired in merger with Shurgard ....... 47,362 . - 47,362 - - -
Newly consolidated.............. . 3,515 . - 3,515 ' - - -
Other acquisitions ............. 2,974 : - 2,974 . - - . -
Facilities acquired in 2005 9,703 4,148 5,555 4,148 - 4,148
Facilitics acquired in 2004 12,530, 12,632 (102) 12,632 . 1,606 11,026
Total cost of OPErations........cvveververcerveresesscmsonsnenses 76,084 16,780 59,304 16,780 1,606 15,174
Net operating income hefore deprecmtion and L -
amortization: ne +
Facilities acquired in 2006: '
Facilities acquired in merger with Shurgard ....... 80,769 . - .80,769 - - -
Newly consolidated...........ovcernmnrcvmnrnnnenrinins 11,095 - 11,095 - - -
Other acqUiSTHONS ...ccov e 3,272 - 3,272 - - -
Facilities acquired in 2005 15,246 5,137 10,109 5,137 - 5,137
Facilities acqulred in 2004, 21,280 17,774 3,506 17,774 3,099 14,675
Total net operating income before dcprec:atlon and ) . o : ‘
AMOTHZAHON () vreervirrarreranicorceresinsnessarsmsmesesssess ecre t 31,6620 22,911 108,751 22,911 3,099 19,812
Depreciation and amoTtzation ..........corecereeresreessenencees ’ (196,393) (10,120) (186,273) " (10,120) - (892) - (9,228)
Net operating income (1088)...c.ceereeeeererrrmerserronenenne $ (64,731) § 12,791 $ (77,522) % 12,791 § 2,207 $ 10,584
Weighted average square foot occupancy during the " . . ‘ N N
period: ] )
Facilities acquired in 2006: ‘ s
Facilities acquired in Merger........cccoeivcvsiiniannss ‘ 84.4% - - - - -
Newly consolidated.................. 88.5% - - - - -
Other acquisitions ............. 71.2% - - - - -
Facilities acquired in 2005 B4.7% 86.8% (2.4)% 86.8% . -
Facilities acquired in 2004 88.1% 87.0% 1.3% 87.0% 80.4% 8.2%
-84.8% 87.0% (2.5)% 87.0% 80.4% 8.2%
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JOMESTIC -ACQUIRED SELF-STORAGE . : - C o

'ACILITIES (continued) o _ Year Ended December 31, . Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 Change . 2005, . , 2004 - Change

Veighted average realized annual rent per occupied c . . ",
uare foot for the period: ’ ' ) o
Facilities acquired in 2006: ~ *° ' b S

Facilities acquired in mcrgcr X § 1275 - S8 " $’ -‘_'_,{_ -
Newly conisolidated.............. . 1653 . R L -

- Other 8cqUISIHONS «..coocececer e rirecnrnseeresrinesns "13.17 - ST e L, -
Self-storage facilities acquired in 2005 .................. 11.74 10.17 15.4% 10.17 - -
Self-storage facilities acquired in 2004 .................. 11.84 - 10.80 9.6% -10.80 9:51 13.6%

$§ 1265 10.65 “18.8% § 10.65 h) 9.51 12.0%
lace ied square foot at

pecember 31:  © T T : 5 ‘ .

Facilities acquired in 12006: - 0 - : L : ' <
Facilities acquired in merger .......... $ 1371 0§ - L 5 - R S -
Newly consolidated.......2........... ; ';-Zt'.L'. ....... [ 18.46 - o - e Te e -
Other 2cqUiSitions ... veveeseseesnennst 1431 . . - - T R T A R -
Self-storage facilities acquired in 2005 y : 13.25 12.00 1 10.4% - C12.00 ... U A
Self-storage facilities acquired in 2004 .................... v 12.97 . -12.14 - 6.8% . ,12.14. - 1147, - - 5.8%
. o N ' § 1376 $ 1208 139% $§ 1208 $ 1147 5.3%
1t December 31: a - : " T
Number of Facilities .............. UL TSNS U SOO -592 77 515, R i 45 32
Net rentable square feet......coovvvverevcevrceseeieenns 39,531 - 5,511 34,020 5,511 3,100 2,402
Cumulative acquisition COSt........coeererirrinenecnes $5,527,546 $514,036 $s, 013 510 $s 14,036 $259,487 $254 549

(a) Total net operating income before depreciation, which is a non-GAAP measure, for our self-storage facilities represents
a portion of our total self-storage segment’s net operating income before dcprecxauon,)and is denoted in thc :ablc aself;
storage operations summary” above. A reconciliation of our total self-storage segment’s net operating mcome before

depreciation to consolidated net income is included in Note 15 to our December 31, 2006 consohdated ﬁnancnal "

statements, “Segment Information.”

The acqmsmons were acquued at various dates throughout each period. Accordingly, rental income, cost
of operations, depreciation, net operating income, weighted average square foot occupancies and realized rents per
square foot represent the operating results for the partial period that we owned the facilities during the year acquired.
In addition, in place rents per occupied square foot at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, reflect the amounts for
those facilities we owned at each of those respccl:lve dates

.- Dunng 2004, we acquired a total of 45 self-storage fac1lmes for approx1matcly $259,487,000, containing
an aggregate of approximately 3,109,000 net rentable square feet and are located pnncnpally in the Buffalo, Dallas
Miami, Milwaukée, and Minnéapolis metropolltan areas. * ‘

During 2005, we acquil‘éd a total of 32 self- storllge facilities, principally in single-property tr'a‘n'sactio"ﬁs"" for =~

an aggregate cost of $254,549,000. These facilities contain in the aggregate approximately 2,390,000 net rentable
square feet and are located principally in the Atlanta, Chicago, Miami, and New York mch’opohtan areas. ...

a

For the year‘ ended December 31, 2006, in addition to the 487 self-storage facilih'es we acquired in the
merger with Shurgard, we acquired a total of 12 self-storage facilities, each in a single-property transaction. These
12 facilities contain in aggregate approximately 877,000 net rentable square feet and were acquired for an aggregate
cost of $103,544,000. The 12 facilities are located in California, Flonda Ilinois, New York, Virginia, New J ersey,
Delaware, Georgaa and Colorado.

Effective January 1, 2006, as described in Note 2'to our consolidated financial statemeits, we are'including

the accounts of three limited partnerships that we had previously accounted for under the €quity method of
accounting. The three limited partnerships collectively own 16 facilities and have an aggregate of 879,000 net
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rentable square feet. These facilities are substantially all mature facilities that we have managed and had an interest
in for several years. Accordingly, their futuré operating characteristics and past operating history are similar to
those of our Same Store facilities.

We believe our presence in and knowledge of substantially all of the major markets in the United States
enhances our ability to identify attractive acquisition opportunities and capitalize on the overall fragmentation in the
storage industry. Our acquisitions consist of facilities that have been operating for a number of years as well as
newly constructed facilities that were in the process of filling up to stabilized occupancy levels. In either case, we
have been able to leverage off of our operating strategies and improve the occupancy levels of the facilities, or w1th
respect to the newly developed facilities we have been able to accelerate the fill-up pace.

We expect that our acquisitions will continue to provide earnings growth during 2007 as these facilities
continue to improve their occupancy levels as well as realized rental rates.

The 487 self-storage facilities in the 1.8, acquired in the Shurgard merger are located in 23 states and
contain in aggregate 32.3 million net rentable square feet. The operating data presented in the table above reflects
the historical data from August 22, 2006 through December 31, 2006, the pericd owned and operated by Public
Storage. Many of these new acquired facilities, however, have been operating at a stabilized occupancy level for
several years under the Shurgard system and then under the Public Storage system following the merger. To provide
additional comparative operating data, the table below sets forth the operations of the 366 facilities that have been
operating at a stabilized basis (the “Shurgard Domestic Same Stores™) from August 22, 2006 through December 31,
2006, the period operated under Public Storage and consolidated in our financial statements, and then for 2004,
2005, and 2006 including the time period when the facilities were operated by Shurgard. The data presented does
not reflect the actual results included in our operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and
does not purport to project results of operations for any future date or period.

ati a_for the 366 faciliti

operated by Shurgard on a stabilized basis since

Janua 04 _(“Shurgard Domestic_Same
Store Facilities™): (a)
From August
22,2006
' through Year Ended December 31 (a) Year Ended December 31 (a)
' December Percentage Percenta
31, 2006 (b) 2006 2005 Change = 2005 2004 Chang
o (Doliar amounts in thousands, except square foot amounts}
Total rental iNCOME () ...cvrooererererrcreecereeesesiresssranns $ 107,961 $2")'3,537 $261,309 4. 7% $26i,309 $ 248,571 5.1%
Total cost of operations (excluding depreciation) (c) 40,650 103,250 101,693 1.5% 101,693 93,950 8.2%
Net operating income {excluding depreciation) (d)... $ 67,311 $170,287 $159,616 6.7% $15§,616 $ 154,621 3.2%
Gross margin (before depreciation)..........c....evreer . 623%  62.3% 61.1%  2.0% 61.1% 62.2%  (1.8)%
Weighted average for the period: ) _
SQUATE f001 OCCUPANCY (£)...evereerrrrsesesmssessssiors : 85.3%  84.6% 85.2%  (0.7)% 85.2% ' 84.7%  (0.6)%
Realized annual rent per eccupied square foot (f) £ 1454 § 1334 $12.64 5.5% f12.64 $ 1208 4.6%
REVPAF (2) (h).ceoverirerrerecrecnerccnecrcnreemnesmsins $§ 1240 $11.28 $ 1077 4.7% $10.77 § 1023 5.3%
Weighted average at December 31: ) ) : ‘
T T T T— 85.5%  85.5% 84.0%  1.8% 84.0% 85.8%  (2.1)%
Total net rentable square feet (in thovsands)........ 23,425 23,425 23,425 - 23425 . 23425 -

(a) Operating data reflects the operatlons ‘of these facilities without regard to the time period in which Public Storage
owned the facilities.
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(b) Operating data from August 22, 2006 through December 31, 2006 represents the period when the facilities were owned
by Public Storage, and these amounts are included in the Company’s operating results.

(¢) Revenues and cost of operations do not-include ancillary revenues and expenses generated at the facilities with respect
to tenant reinsurance, and retail sales and truck rentals. “Other costs of management” included in cost of operations
principally represents all the indirect costs incurred in the operations of the facilities. Indirect costs principally include

., supervisory costs and corporate overhead cost incurred to -support the operating activities of the facilities. These

-+ . amounts presented herein will not necessarily compare to amounts previously presented by Shurgard in its public
~ reporting due to differences in classification of revenues and expenses, including tenant reinsurance, retail sales and
truck rental activities which are inciuded on our income statement under, “ancillary opemtions" but were previously

. presented by Shurgard as self-storage revenue and operating expenses.

(d) Net operating income (before dcprec:atlon) or “NQOI”, is-a non-GAAP (generally accepted aeoourmng pnnc:ples)
financial measure that excludes the impact of depreciation expense. Although depreciation is an operating expense, we
believe that NOI is a meaningful measure of operating performance, because we utilize NOI in making decisions with
respect to capital allocations, in determmmg current property values, scgment performance, and companng period-to-
period and market-to-market property operating results, NOI is not a substitute for net operating income after
depreciation in evaluating our operating results. We have not presented depreciation expense for these facilities
because the depreciation expense is based upon historical cost, which is substantially different before the merger and
after.

(¢) Saquare foot occupancies represent weighted average occupancy levels over the entire period.

(f) Realized annual rent per occupied square foot is computed by annualizing the result of dividing rental income by the
weighted -average occupied square footage for the period. Realized annual rent per occupied square foot takes into
consideration promotional discounts and other costs that reduce rental income from the contractual amounts due.

(g) Annualized rental income per available square foot (“REVPAF”) represents annualized rental i income divided by total
_ available net rentable square feet. ™

(h) Late charges and administrative fees are excluded from the computation of realized annual rent per occupied square
foot and REVPAF because exclusion of these amounts provides a better measure of our ongoing level of revenue, by
excluding the volatility of late charges, which are dependent principally upon the level of tenant delinquency, and
administrative fees, which are dependent principally upon the absolute level of move-ins for a period. '

As noted above, our 1,266 Same-Store facilities had occupancies of approximately 89.4% at December 31,
2006, as compared to 85.5% for the acquired Shurgard Domestic Same Store portfolio. It is our objective to close
this occupancy gap in order to increase REVPAF. In attempting to accomplish this objective, we have significantly
expanded our domestic pricing, promotional, and media programs, and aggregate media costs increased significantly
in the fourth quarter ¢f 2006 versus the aggregate level of spending incurred in the fourth quarter of 2005. There
can be no assurance that we will meet our objectives or that any increase in occupancies will not be offset by lower
realized rent per occupied square foot either due to promotional discounts or lower monthly rent in the acquired
Shurgard facilities or the Same Store facilities. _*

On the date of the merger, we successfully installed our real—tune property operation system at-all U S.
. Shurgard locations. As a result, these facilities are integrated into our national call center, website, and management
structure. The integration of these facilities into our operations should have additional benefits and cost savings.

Beginning January.2007, all field personnel will be under a revised Public Storage compensation and
benefit plan. The cost savings from implementing the new plan along with a more efficient staffing mix are
expected to be in excess of $5 million per year.

Marketing costs, exclusive of media, will be lower as a result of combining Yellow Page advertising and
terminating Shurgard’s marketing programs. There will be approximately $5 million in savings that will phase in
over the next year as a result of eliminating yellow page expenses incurred by Shurgard, there will also be lower per-
property expenses for all of the facilities in our portfolio as costs are spread over a larger base. We expect property
tax expense to be higher than that experienced by Shurgard due to higher assessments following the merger.

Domestic — Development Self-Storage Facilities

We have a total of 123 facilities which are unstabilized due to development activities.
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. - We have 46 of these facilities that-have been developed from the ground up between 2002 and 2006, At
December 31, 2006, these newly developed facilities have an aggregate of 3,345,000 net rentable square feet of self-
storage space, and were developed at an aggregate cost of $371,741,000. These facilities are presented in the table
below based upon the year of cpening. .

. We ‘also have 7 7 facilities that were originally opened prior to 2002 that have been expanded or are in the
process of being expanded (these 77 facilities are referred to as the “Expansion Facilities” below). In addition to
entu'cly self-storage facilities, this group of facilities includes 17 facilities that were developed originally to combine
self-storage ‘ands containerized storage space, but have been substantially all converted entirely to self-storage space
at December 31, 2006. We have incurred an aggregate of $127,553,000 during the three years ended December 31,

2006 to expand repurpose, or otherwise enhance the revenue generatmg capacity of these 77 Expanswn Facilities.

§

’I‘he following table sets forth the operatmg results and selected operating data with respect to the

Developcd and Expans1on Facilities:

Wt '

DOMESTIC - DEVELOPMENT SELF-

I

STORAGE FACILITIES
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
. 2006 - 2005 ,Change 2005 - 2004 Change
el (Amaounts in thousands, except per square foot amounts and facility count)
Reng] income: .. o : ¢ . ) . oo
Facilities opened in 2006 ................................. S 1,056 b - $ 1,056 $ - 8 - 5 -
Facilities opened in 2005 7. .......oorvveeerrerenens eeerieans 2,599 464 2,135 464 - 464
Facilities opened in 2004........c.coovcomommnmenmerncrnrcncns 7431 5,336 2,095 5,336 1,234 4,102
Facilities opened in 2003 and 2002 ...........ccoeecns 27,842 24,803 3,039 . 24,803 19,049 . 5,754
Expansion facilities ........cocoeeemerenrerevmeeresicnsnnessrenns 73,784 62,698 11,086 62,698 57418 5,280
Total rental INCOME....o..ovveirrververeerrerernsessirsscranes 112,712 93,301 19411 93301 - 77,701 15,600
Cost of operations before depreciation: ' 2
Facilities opened in 2006.......c...oviomrneiericrincerenn, 959 - 959 - - -
Facilities opened in 2005 ..... rreasreraenes 1,734 568 1,166 . 568 - 568
Facilities opened iti 2004.....o...ooovoeveeeeerrreenerronne 2,277 2,068 - 209 2,068 1,149 919
Facilities opened in'2003 and 2002.. 8,219 8,347 {128) 8,347 7,797 550
Expansion factitiés .o.........il i e 24,863 21,496 3,367 21,496 19,542 1,954
Total cost of operatlons before deprectanon...'... : 38,052 32,479 - 5,573 32479 - 28,488 3,991
Net operating income before dggrecngtlon, : ' .
Facilities opened in 2006...:....v..vne veemereme et ranen 97 $ - 3 97 & - % - 3 -
Facilities opened in 2005.........c.cocennerivenccnnirnnennas 865 (104) 969 - - (104) - (104)
Facilities opened in 2008, ..o 5,154 3,268 1,886 3,268 85 3,183
Facilities opened in 2003 and 2002......... R 19,623 16,456 . 3,167 16,456 11,252 5,204
Expansion facilities ..oo.evireeesseeeesnecscnesiinei i 48,921 41,202 7,719 41,202 ., 37,876 3,326
Net operating income before depreciation (a) ....... 74,660 . 60,822 13,838 60,822 - 49,213 11,609
DEPreciation ......o.ccveriermsrerermmissronssrmsocseseasssmseesnsnss (27,963) (24,150) (3,813) (24,150) (21,933) 2,217)
Net operating income ............... eaerrones S 3 46,697 § 36,672 $ 10025 .§ 36672 § 27280 $ 9,392
Weighted average squre foof occupancy during ‘
the period: ! !
Self-storage facilities opened in 2006 28.5% - - - - _
Self-storage ficilities opened in 2005 45.7% 26.9% 1 69.9% 26.9% - -
Self-storage facilities opened in 2004 : 87.9% 74.2% 18.5% 74.2%" 35.2%. 110.8%
Self-storage facilities opened in 2003 and 2002...... .. 91.8% 90.5% 1.4% 90.5% 89.1% 1.6%
Expansion facilities ..o oo, 80.2% 77.0% 4.2% 77.0% 81.2% (5.2)%
oo 79.1% 82.8% (4.5)% 82.8% 76.3% 8.5%|
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DOMESTIC - DEVELOPMENT SELF-
STORAGE FACILITIES (Coatinued)

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005 Change ~

2005

2004

Change

Weighted average realized rent per occupied square

foot during the period (b);

Self-storage facilities opened in 2006 .............co.e.o. $14.71 - - $- $- -
Self-storage facilities opened in 2005 ..... 11.60 8.47 37.0% 8.47 - -
Self-storage facilities opened in 2004 16.19 14.12 14.7% 14.12 10.97 28.7%
Self-storage facilities opened in 2003 and 2002...... © 15.05 13.55 11.1% 13.55 12.49 8.5%
Expansion facilities ..........cocevveieneeslneecsissnanenraerennn 12.59 11.97 5.2% 11.97 - 1247 4.00%
$14.92 $13.52 10.4% $13.52 ‘$12.31 9.8%
In place annual rent per occupied square @t at !
December 31 {c}; L
Self-storage facilities opened in 2006 $22.75 $ - - £ - $- -
Self-storage facilities opened in 2005 .. 14.60 12.90 13.2% - 12.90 - -
Self-storage facilities opened in 2004 . 17.76 16.78 5.8% . -16.78 16.02 4.7%
Self-storage facilities opened in 2003 and 2002...... 1644 1528 - 1.6% . 15.28 14.16 7.9%
Expansion facilities ........cccorverneeiacrnsencrmsenicrensernsanees . 14.09 13.48 4.5% 13.48 13.68 (1.5)%
$16.85 $15.41 9.3% $15.41 $i4.53 6.0%
Number of facilities at December 31; o i
Facilities opened in 2006............ SO L5, - 5 , - - -
Facilities opened in 2005........ocoovveemevneccrinseasscsinnes 6 6 - 6 - 6
Facilities opened in 2004................occoeeeeirievnviivennne ' 7 7 - 7 : "7 ! -
Facilities opened in 2003 and 2002..............c..... 128 28 - 28 28 -
Expansion facilities .........ccooeiiciinaenrcnrin e . ST 77 - 77 Ay -
123 18 5 118 112 6
Square Footage at December 31 7 .
Facilities opened in 2006... . 440 - 440 D e -
Facilities opened in 2005 . 463 463 - 463 - . 463
Facilities opened in 2004 505 505, . - 505 505 - -
Facilities opened in 2003 and 2002 1,937 1,937 - . 1,937 1,937 S
Expansion facilities ............... ettt 7,181 6,661 520 6,661 5,652 . 1,009
10,526 9,566 960 9,566 8,004 1,472
Cumulative development cost at December 31 L U ) : :
Facilities opened in 2006 $ 68962 % - $68962 % - - 5 -
Facilities opened in 2005 ... 37,857 37,073 784 37,073 ¢ - 37,073
Facilitiés opened in 2004 60,579 60,579 i 60,579 60,579 -
Facilities opened in 2003 and 2002 ........cccovvereeenee. 204,343 204,343 - 204,343 204,343 ‘ -
Expansion facilities (d).....c..c.oecvmeriiecinsiinnieronnenns 127,553 82,253 45,300 82,253 32,438 49 815
$ 384248 $115046 § 384,248 : $ 297,360 $ 86 8§88

Net operating iNCOME ......c.oceeevrcnsnienriesiessersessiins $ 499,294

{a) Total net operating income before depreciation, which is a non-GAAP measure, for our developed self-storage

(b)

facilities represents a portion of our total self-storage segment’s net operating income before depreciation, and is

denoted in the table “self-storage operations summary™ above. A reconciliation of our total self-storage segment’s-

net operating income before depreciation to consolidated net income is included in Note 15 to our December 31,
2006 consolidated financial statements, “Segment Information.”

Realized annual rent per occupied square foot is computed by dividing rental income, prior to late'charges and
administrative fees, by the weighted average occupied square footage for the period. Realized annual rent per

occupied square foot takes into consideration promotional discounts, credit card fees and other costs that reduce -

rental income from the contractual amounts due, and therefore amounts for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 may not be comparable to the same periods in prior years for self-storage facilities opened in 2006,
2005 and 2004. We typically provide significant promotional discounts to new tenants when a facility first opens
for operations. As facilities reach a stabilized occupancy level, the amounts of discounts given will be reduced
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significantly.

(¢} In place annual rent per occupied square foot represents annualized contractual rents per occupied square foot
without reductions for pmmotlonal discounts, and excludes late charges and administrative fees.

(d) We have spent an aggregate of approximately $127,553,000 to expand the square footage or otherwise enhance
the revenue potential of these facilities during the three years ended December 31, 2006 of these facilities, adding
an aggregate of 2,373,000 net rentable self-storage space.

. , . ‘

Unlike many other forms of real estate, we are unable to pre-lease newly developed storage space due to
the nature of our tenants. Accordingly, at the time newly developed space first opens, it is entirely vacant generating
no rental income. Historically, we estimated that-on average it takes approximately 24 to 36 months for a newly
developed facility to fill up and reach a targeted occupancy level of approximately 90%.

As these facilities approach the targeted occupancy level of approximately 90%, rates are increased,
resulting in further improvement in net operating income as the existing tenants, which moved in at lower rates,
have their rates increased or are replaced by new tenants paying higher rates. This process of reaching stabilized
rental rates can take approximately another 12 to 24 months following the time when the facilities reach a stabilized
occupancy level of 90%. In addition, move-in discounts have a more pronounced effect upon realized rental rates
for the newly developed facilities, because such facilities tend to have a higher ratio of newer tenants.

Property operating expenses are substantially fixed, cou'sistin'g primarily of payroll, property taxes, utilities,
and marketing costs. The rental revenue of a newly developed facility will generally not cover its property operating
expenses (excluding depreciation) until the facility has reached an occupancy level of approximately 30% to 35%.
However, at that occupancy level, the rental revenues from the facility are still not sufficient to cover related
depreciation expense and cost of capital with respect to the facility’s development cost. During construction of the
self-storage facility, we capitalize interest costs and include such cost as part of the overall development cost of the
facility. Once the facxllty is opened for operatlons interest 1s no longer capitalized.

The annualized yield on costs for the 46 nev{.'ly developed facilities for the year ended December 31, 2006,
based on net operating income before depreciation, was approximately 6.9%, which is lower than our ultimate yield
expectations. We expect these yields to increase as these facilities reach stabilization of both occupancy levels and
realized rents. Properties that were developed before 2005 have contributed greatly to our earnings growth. The
growth in properties developed in 2004 was principally due 1o occupancy growth, and growth for properties
developed in 2003 and 2002 were due prmcnpally to rate mcreases We expect that these facilities will continue to

_ provide growth to our earnings. ) . . .

Development of self-storage facilities causes short-term earnings dilution because, as mentioned above, of
the extended time to stabilize a seif-storage facility. We have developed self-storage facilities, despite the short-
term eamnings dilution, because it is advantageous for us to continue to expand our asset base and benefit from the
resulting increased critical mass, with facilities that w111 improve our portfoho s overall average construction and
location quality. ‘

The decision to commence development of any particular self-storage location is based upon several factors
with respect to that local market, including our estimate of current and future general economic conditions,
demographic conditions, population growth, the likelihood of and cost of obtaining permits, construction costs, as
well as the level of demand at our existing self-storage facilities in proximity to the prospective facility. Our level of
new development starts has declined significantly in the last few years due to increases in construction costs,
increases in competition with retail, condominium, and apartment operators for quality construction sites in urban
locations, and more difficult zoning and permitting requirements, which has reduced the number of attractive sites
available for development and reduced our development of fac111t1es It is.unclear whea, or 1f these conditions will
improve. .

50




Shurgard European Operating Data

‘ In the merger with Shurgard, we acquired 160 facilities located in seven European countries with an
! - aggregate of 8,385,000 net reniable square feet. During the last three months of 2006, six additional facilities were
| opened in Europe with an aggregate of 306,000 net rentable square feet. The- following chart sets forth the
-operations of the Shurgard Facilities from August 22, 2006 through December 31, 2006, the period operated under
Public Storage and consolidated in our financial statements (amounts in thousands):

|
: . From August 22,
. " . . 3 2006 through
. . December 31, 2006 .
Rental income: .

Same Store -~ 96 facilities ..........ccocvvevieenneenn. hY 41,132
! . Non-Same Store — 70 facilities . 18,583
Total rental iINCOME ....coeveeeeeereeereenn. 59,715
Cost of operations {excluding depreciation): ]
Same Store...oune. 17,302 . -
Non-Same Store 13,134
Total cost of Operations.........iveviereereeneererresecrens 30,436
Net operating income before depreciation (a): ‘
Same SOTE.....ccvoivirceccrisins et cas s e 23,830
- Non-Same Store....c...ococerreirenencnenareneennens 5,449
Total net operating income before depreciation.. 29,279
Depreciation and amortization (59,803)
Net operating 10ss ................ 3 (30,524)
Weighted average square foof occupancy
during the Period: ...l isees 81.1%
Weighted average realized annual rent per .
occupied square foot for the period:........conuenee. 3 23.30
: In place annual rent per occupied square foot . '
at December 31t 5 23.12 .

(a) - Total net operating income before depreciation, which is a-non-GAAP measure, for our commercial property
segment is presented in Note 15 to our condensed consolidated financial statements, “Segment Information,”
which includes a reconciliation of net operating income before depreciation for this segment to our consolidated
net income,

The operating data presented in the table below reflect the historical data through August 22, 2006, the period for
which the facilities were operated under Smirgard combined with the historical data from August 22, 2006 through December 31,
2006, the period operated under Public Storage. Accordingly, the data presented below does'not reflect the actual results
included in our operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. We have applied our definition of what
qualifies as a Same Store. "As a result, the number of properties included in the Shurgard European Same Store portfolio has
th'xre'ased from 123 facilities (as reported by Shurgard in the second quarter of 2006) to 96 facilities as is currently being
reported. ’ A

- L . ) o

51




Selected Operating Data_ for the 96 facilitics L E Do
operated by Shurgard Europe on a stabilized basis

since January 1,

2004 (“FEurope Same Store

Fscilities™); (a) | - | _ Year Ended December 31, | ' Year Ended December 31,
‘ ' ‘ i Percentage  , ,. . + . Percenta
2006 2005 Change TT2005 0 T 20047 Chang
. (Dollar amounts in thousands, except welghted average data, unllzmg constant exchang|
rates) (b}
Revenues: N
Rental iNCOME. ... T nsansans $ 106,581 $ 94,455 12.8% $ 94455 $ 83,722 12.8%,
Late charges and administrative fees collected.......... 1,033 881 17.3% 331 689 27.9%
Total Tevenues (C) ... dinns 107,614 95,336 12.9% 05,336 84,411 12.9%
Cost of operations (excluding depreciation): ; ] _ -
Property taXes ..o e e e 4912 4,571 7.5% 4,57 4,325 5.7%
Payroll expense 21,104 21,558 2.1)% 21,558 21,236 1 5‘%1
Advertising and promotion..............oceeeesnicesieiennns 5,353 7,016 (23. 1% 7,016 7,156 (2.0)%
@S 1 eveeerreencerrenerrm s e nne e neesrescsraeseesens 2,959 ¢ v 12769 T 6.9% 2,769 2,462 12.5%
Repairs and maintenance............. : 3,303 3,246 1:8% - 3,246 3,752 (13.5)
Property insurance 1,432 - 1,522 - 5.9% ™ 1,522 1,452 4.8%
Leasehold expense 2,459 2,327 - 57% 2,327 1,897 22.7%
Other costs of management 8,852 10,414 {15.0y% 10,414 9,927 4.9%
Total cost of operations (C)......c.e.connee. et s 50,374 53,423 (5.7% 53,423 52,207 2.3%
Net operating income {excluding depreciation) (d)....” $ 57,240 '§ 41913 366% $ 41913 § 32204 30.1%
Gross margin (before depreciation)...............oerevveerssronns 53.2% 44.0% ° 209% °  44.0% 38.2% 15.2%
Weighted average for the period: T '
Square {00t 0couUPANCY (€) ...oecvcrrrerrrmrrcsrsircrnerscrninesiens 852% 785% 85% . 78.5% 69.1% 13.6%
Realized annual rent per occupied square foot {f} ....... § 2364 $ 2214 40% , § 2274 $ 2290 (0.7)%
REVPAF (8) (h) cveevererircrrrecsirnsiiisissressnsesessisnensansen $ 2014 $ 1785 128% % 1785 § 1582 12.8%
Weighted average at December 31: . ’ : * . . "
Square foot OCCUPANCY oeieeeeere e esseessienstsisisaes 89.1% 82.2%. . . 8.4% 82.2% 71.9% 14.3%
In place annua! rent per occupied square foot (3)......... $ 2261 $ 2172 4.1% £ 2172 $ 2200 (1.3)%
Total net rentable square feet (in thousands).........ococvns 5,291 5,291 - 5,291 5,291 -
(a) Operating data reflects the operations of these facilities without-regard to the time period in which Public Storage

T

(o).

-t

(b)

r

(d)

owned the facilities; only the amounts for the penod August 23, 2006 through December 31, 2006 are included in our
consolidated operating results. . .. )

Amounts for all periods have been translated from local currencies to U.S. dollars at a constant’ exchange rate of 1.26
US Dollars to Euros.

Revenues and cost of operanons do not mclude anc:lllary revenues and cxpenscs gencrated at the facilities with respect
to tenant reinsurance and retail sales. “Other costs of management” included in cost of operations principally
represents all the indirect costs incurred in the operations of the facilities. Indjrect costs principaily include supervisory
costs and corporate overhead cost incurred to support the. operalmg actmtles of the facilities. Thesc .amounts

. presented herein will not necessary compare to amounts previously prwmted by Shurgard in its public reporting due to_

differences in classification of revenues and expenses, including tenant reinsurance, retail sales, and truck rental
activities which are included on our income statement under “ancillary operations™ but were previously presented by
Shurgard as self-storage revenue and operating expenses.

Net operating income (before depreciation} or “NOI” is a non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
financial measure that excludes the impact of depreciation expense. Although depreciation is an operating expense, we
believe that NOI is a meaningful measure of operating performance, because we utilize NOI in making decisions with
respect to capital allocations, in determining current property values, segment performance, and comparing period-to-
period and market-to-market property operating results. NOI is not a substitute for net operating income after
depreciation in evaluating our operating results.

52




(e) Square foot occupancies represent weighted average occupancy levels over the entire period.. .

vl BRI

FTE

(f) Realized annual rent per occupied square foot is computed by annualizing the result of dividing rental income by the

available net rentable square feet.

“weighted average occupied square footage for the period., ‘Realized annual rent per occupied square foot takes into
consideration promotlonal dlscounts and other costs that reduce rental income from the contractual amounts due.

(8, ‘Annuallzed rental i income per avallable square foot ("REVPAF” ) Tepresents annualized rental income divided by total

(h) Late charges and administrative fees are-excluded from the computation of realized annual rent per occupied square -
foot and REVPAF because exclusion of these amounts provides a better measure of our ongoing level of revenue, by - -

excluding the volatility of late charges, which are dependent principally upon the level of tenant delmquency, and o
A .

admmlstrat:ve fees, which are dependent principally upon the absolute level of move-ins for a period.

)
S

(i) In place annual rent per occupied square foot represents a.nnuahzed contractual rents per occupied square foot w:thout

reductions for promononal dlscounts and excludcs late chargts and administrative fees.

The European team is selectively adapting various operatmg strategles we use in the Umtqd Statcs and

incorperating them into their operating model.
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The following table sets forth certain regional trends in the Europe Same Store facilities:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
Percentage Percentage
2006 2005 Change 2005 2004 Change
{Dollar amounts in thousands, except per square foot amounts)
‘Rental income; o
Belgium c.c.coneiesreninminennirenns TRV $ 13498 § 12,830 52% $.12,830 § 12,362 3.8%
4,740 4,034 17.5% 4,034 3,151 28.0%
27,657 25,623 7.9% 25,623 22,888 11.9%
21,303 18,261 16.7% 18,261 15,427 18.4%
23,045 19,457 18.4% 19,457 16,872 15.3%
17,371 15,131 14.8% 15,131 13Nt 10.3%
Total rental INCOME .ovevunermnrii s $107,614 $95,336 12.9% $95,336 $84.411 12.9%
Cost of operations before depreciation and
amortization (a):
$ 6837 § 6662 26% $ 6662 & 6,66] -
2,401 2,610 (8.0)% 2,610 2,845 8.3)%
13,425 14,468 (7.2)% 14,468 14,116 2.5%
9,988 10,921 (8.5% 10,921 10,582 3.2%
10,099 11,213 (9.9)% 11,213 10,433 7.5%
7,624 7,549 1.0% 7,549 7,570 (0.3)%
Total cost of operations before depreciation
and amortization ... 350,374 $53,423 (5.7)% $53,423 $52,207 2.3%
Weighted average occupancy ievels for the
period:
Belgium 80.6% 76.4% 5.5% 76.4% 72.5% 54%
Denmark 50.8% 85.4% 6.3% 85.4% 66.8% 27.8%
France........o..... 87.3% 83.4% 4.7% 83.4% 75.5% 10.5%
Netherlands 83.3% 72.3% 15.2% 72.3% 59.7% 21.1%
Sweden ............... 89.3% 80.9% 10.4% 80.9% 70.6% 14.6%
United Kingdom 82.7% 76.8% 1.7% 76.8% 66.8% 15.0%
85.2% 78.5% 8.5% 78.5% 69.1% 13.6%
Weighted average realized annual rent per
occupied square foot:
Belgium y $16.56 $16.63 (0.4)% $16.63 $16.90 (1.6)%
Denmark $24.55 $22.18 10.7% $22.18 $22.18 -
France ......ovvereisiecenenenes $25.31 $24.55 31% $24.55 $24.29 1.1%
Netherlands $21.62 $21.37 1.2% $21.37 $21.91 (2.5)%
Sweden $£22.67 $21.13 1.3% $21.13 $20.97 0.8%
United Kingdom $38.49 $36.14 6.5% $36.14 $37.65 (4.0)%
$23.64 $22.74 4.0% $22.74 $22.90 (0.7)%
1,001 1,001 - 1,001 1,001 -
211 211 - .21 211 -
1,234 1,234 - 1,234 1,234 -
1,173 1,173 - 1,173 1,173 -
1,130 1,130 - 1,130 1,130 -
542 542 - 542 542 -
5,291 5,291 - 5,291 5,291 -
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Ancillary Operations: Ancillary operations include (i} the reinsurance of policies against losses to goods
stored by tenants in our self-storage facilities, (ii) sale of merchandise at our self-storage facilities, (iii) containerized
storage operations, (iv) truck rentals at our self-storage facilities and (v) commercial property operations, and (vi}
management of facilities owned by third-party owners and facilities owned by affiliates that are not included in our
consolidated financial statements. - : o

The following table sets forth our ancillary operations:

1

. - Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2005 2004 Change
(Amounts in thousands)
Revenues:
Tenant reinsurance premiums............ $ 37520 § $24,889  §$12,631 $ 24889 $ 24243 646
Merchandise sales ....o.ovvvnenne. o 26,806 22,464 4,342 22,464 21,336 1,128
Containerized storage 16,454 16,497 (43) 16,497 19,355 (2,858)
Truck rentals .......o.ooveverecnirenen 13,689 13,853 (164) 13,853 12,646 1,207
Commercial property operations....... 12,966 11,560 1,406 11,560 10,750 810
Property management............ccurivnene . 2,472 2,967 (495) 2,967 2,771 196
Total revenues 109,907 92,230 17,677 92,230 91,101 1,129
Cost of operations:
Tenant reinsurance............. 14,794 8,234 6,560 8,234 13,508 {5,274)
Merchandise sales .......ocoviieercenerennes 23,204 18,773 4,431 18,773 18,901 {128)
Containerized storage 15,334 12,886 2,448 12,886 11,774 1,112
Truck tentals ....oovcvececrieiericnnsscenvenns 12,622 12,733 (111 12,733 12,421 312
Commercial property operations...... 5,223 4,448 775 4,448 4,328 120
Property management.........cceececrene 187 638 (451) 638 657 (19)
Total cost of operations.......ccevenee. 71,364 57,712 13,652 57,712 61,589 (3,877)
Depreciation:
Tenant reinsurance..........cceeeereesenaes - - - - - -
Merchandise sales ......coooveeeiiiieininnns - - - - - -
Containerized storage................... (897) (2,808) 1,911 (2,808) {4,546) 1,738
Truck rentals .........cccevceereeccecierncirennns - - - - - -
Commercial property operations...... (2,441) (2,322) (119) (2,322) (2,114) (208)
Property management...........cocevenne - - - - - -
Total depreciation........oceverevevecccae (3,338) (5,130) 1,792 (5,130) (6,660) 1,530
Net Income: :
Tenant reinSUrance ...........coccoeveenne 22,726 16,655 6,071 16,655 10,735 3,920
Merchandise 5ales .......c.ceuivcvereeninres 3,602 3,691 (89) 3,691 2,435 1,256
Containerized storage..........oooevuun 223 803 (580} 803 3,035 (2,232)
Truck rentals ......coovceiinecreienarirmenne 1,067 1,120 (53) 1,120 225 895
Commercial property operations...... 5,302 4,790 (512) 4,790 4,308 482
Property management............ccoouncren 2,285 2,329 (44) 2,329 2,114 215
Total net INCOME.......c.civvvreirererrernerens £ 35205 $§ 29388 % 5,817 § 29388 $ 22852 $ 6,536

Tenant reinsurance operations: We reinsure policies offered through a non-affiliated insurance broker
against losses to goods stored by tenants in our self-storage facilities. Revenues are comprised of fees charged to
tenants electing such policies. Cost of operations primarily includes claims paid that are not covered by our outside
third-party insurers, as well as claims adjusting expenses.

The future level of tenant reinsurance revenues is largely dependent upon the number of new tenants
electing to purchase policies, premiums charged for such ipsurance and existing tenant retention to continue
participating in the insurance program. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, approximately
35.1%, 32.4% and 35.0%, respectively, of our self-storage tenant base had such policies. During 2005 and 2004, we
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experienced damage.caused by hurricanes to several of our facilities in our Florida and New Orleans markets. Asa
result of such damage,. we recorded -estimated tenant claim ‘expense during the.quarter: in which the damage
occurred. As time progressed, the tenant claims liabilities were adjusted, either increasing or decreasing the
liabilities, based on actual claims history. As a result of these adjustments, we experienced significant volatility in
our reported quarterly cost of operations, particularly with respect to 2005: -In 2004, we recorded an estimated loss
of approximately $1,500,000 with respect to potential tenant insured losses as a result of several hufricanes affecting
the southeastern United States: During 2005, we determined that this accrual was too high based upon claims
history, and accordingly we reduced the estimated- liability by apprommately $500,000. and reduced cost of
operations in 2005 by a corresponding amount. o -

- The future. cost of operations will be dependent primarily upon the level of losses incurred, mcludmg the
level of catastrophm events, such as hurricanes, that occur and affect our properties. ~» -, o -.

For the year December 31, 2006, tenant reinsurance revenues-and cost of opcrations respectively, included
$3,243,000 and $1,285,000 with respect to the Shurgard facxlmes we acqmred in the U.S., and $2, 732 000~ and
$995,000 for the Shurgard facilities in Europe. - LR 1 ‘ .

. Merehandise and truck rental operations: One of our subsidiaries sells locks, boxes, and packing supplies
to our tenants as well as the general public. Revenues and cost of operations for these activities-are-included in.the
table above as “Merchandise Sales.” In addition, at selected locations, our subsidiary. maintains trucks on'site for
rent to.our self-storage customers and the general public on a short-term basis for local use. In addition, we.also'act
as an agent for a national truck rental company to provide their rental trucks to customers for long-distance use.* The
revenues and cost of opcrations for these activities are inciuded in the table above as “Truck rentals.”

' ' o ' [ ' P A '
‘These activities generally serve as an adjunct to our self-storage operations prowdmg our tenants with
goods and services that they need in connection with moving and storing their goods. -

The revenues and expenses of these activities have remained relatively stable through the three years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, The primary factors. lmpactmg the Jevel of operations of these activities is the
level of customer and tenant traffic at our seif-storage facilities, including the level of move-ins.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, merchandise revenues and related cost of operations, respectwely,
included $2,674,000 and $1,664,000 with respect to the Shurgard facilities we acqmred in the Umted States, and
$2,390,000-and $1,216, 000 for the Shurgard facilities in Europe. .
. For the year ended December 31, 2006 truck revenues and cost of operations, respectively, 1ncluded

$795 000 and $924 000 with respect to the Shurgard facilities we acquired in the U.S.

Containerized storage operations:_- We have closed many of our containerized storage facilities since 2002,

and have refined our market and product focus to 13 facilities located in eight densely populated markets with .
above-average rent and income. The operations with respect,to the facilities other than the 13 ongoing facilities are
included in “Discontinued Operations” on ouf income statement. The operations of the 13 rcmammg facilities are

.included in contmumg operations and are reﬂected on the table above. .

Rental and other income includes monthly rental charges to customers for storage of the containers, service
‘fees charged for pickup and delivery of containers to customers’ homes and businesses and certain non-core services
which were eliminated, such as handling and packmg customers’ goods from city to cxty At December 31, 2006
. there were approximately 19,937 occupied containers in the continuing. facilities.

Direct operating costs principally includes payroll, equipment lease expense, utilities and vehicle expenses
(fuel and insurance). Direct operating costs for the year'ended December 31, 2006 also includes approximately.
$1,780,000 in research and development costs.” No such costs were incurred during 2005 and 2004. Facility lease
expense has increased significantly as we have moved the operations from wholly-owned combination facilities to
facilities that we lease from third parties.
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There can be no assurance as to the level of the containerized storage business’s expansion, level of gross
rentals, level of move-outs or profitability. We continue to evaluate the business opcrauons and additional far.l]mes
may be closed. . ' .

Commercial property operations: Commercial property operations included in our consolidated financial
statements include commercial space owned by the Company and entities consolidated by the Company. We'have a
much larger interest in commercial properties through our ownership interest in PSB. . Our invéstment in PSB is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, and accordmgly our share of PSB’s earnings is reflected as
“Equity in earnings of real estate entities”, see below. o X , ‘

Our commercial operations are comprised of 1,561,000 net rentable square feet of commercial space which
is principally operated at certain of the self-storage facilities. ' . -

Our commercial property operations consist primarily of facilities that are at’a stabilized- level of
operations, and generally reflect the conditions in the markets in which they.operate. We do not expect any
significant growth in net operating income from this segment of our business for 2007, T

Equity in earnings of real estate entities: In addition to our ownership of equity interests in'PSB, we had
general and limited partnership interests in five limited partnerships at December 31, 2006 (PSB and the limited
partnerships are collectively referred to as the “Unconsolidated Entities”). Due to our limited ownership interest and
limited control of these entities, we do not consolidate the accounts of these entities for financial reporting purposes,
and account for such investments using the equity method i o

Equity in earnings of rcal estate entities for the year ended December 31, 2006 consists of our pro-rata
share of the Unconsolidated Entities based upon our owmership interest for the penod The fellowmg table sets forth
the significant components of equity in eamings of real estate entities: .

Histori¢al summary: . o oo Year Ended December 31, . : Year Ended December 31,
2006 v 2005 Change - 2005 2004 " Change
T ‘(Amounts in thousands) R
Property operations:
PEB. b $ 73850 .%$ 68,768 § -5082.. . § 68,768, § 68,545. § 223
Acquisition Joint Venture.............cccovevecrenen. 411 . 277 134, - 277 .23 o . 254
Newly consolidated paMershlps (€9 FU— S 5,229 (5 229) . 5229 4,980 . 249
Other Investments (2) ..o eveevvrenvereressnsenens 2,845 2,674 171 2,674 1,607 1,067
77,106 76,948 158 ‘ 76,948 75,155 1,793
Depreciation: Lo . R
PSB...oterier et (37.919) -~ (33,593) (4,326) (33,593) (32,063 (1,530)
Acquisition Joint Venture................... (276) (269) )] (269} (96) (173)
Newly consolidated partnershlps (1. - (839) 839 ©(839) - ' (896) - 57
Other Investments (2) ....cvvvevviiviecinennns e {695) - (724) .29 - (724) - (665) -« (59
(38,8390) - (35425 {(3,465) (35,425)  (33,720) - (1,705)
Ol.her: 3 . . ' v . . S
PSB (4) .ot es i (26,167) (16,418) (9,749) - (16,418) (19,587) 3,169
Newly consolidated partnerships (1)............. - (143) 143 (143) (127 (16)
Other Investments (2) .....ccvvereeriencsiecnserieenanns . -(154) (79 (75) - (79) 843 (922)
: 1 (26,321) - (16,640)  (9,681) . {16,640) (18,871) . 2,231
Total equity in eamings of real estate entities: I - R !
PSB....covniriieessiesensesssenssssrissssssissssssesssssennes 719,764 "18,757 (8,993) 18,757- ' 16,895 1,862
Acquisition Joint Venture............coeerverrreenns 135 8 127 8 (73) 81
Newly consolidated partnerships (1)............. - 4,247 (4,247) ) 4,247 .. - 3,957 290
Other Investments (2)....... et errarebeas © 1,996 1,871 . 125 ., 1,871 1,785 86
' N $ 11,895 $ 24,883  §$(12,988) - $24,883 £22564 % 27319

-
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(1) As described more fully in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements, we commenced consolidating the accounts of
three limited partnerships that we had previously accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, equity.
in income with respect to these partnerships ceased effective January 1, 2006. . .

(2) Amounts primarily reflect equity in earnings recorded for investments that have been held consistently throughout each of
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2604.

(3) “Other” reflects our share of general and administrative expense, interest expense, interest income, and other non-property
non-depreciation related operating results of these entities. .

(4) “Other” with respect to PSB also includes our pro-rata share of gains on sale of real estate assets, impairment charges
relating to pending sales of real estate and the impact of PSB’s application of the SEC’s clarification of EITF Topic D-42 on
redempnons of preferred securities.

Equity in eamings of PSB represents our pro rata share (approximately 44% throughout the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004) of the eamings of PSB. Throughout 2004, 2005 and 2006, we owned
5,418,273 common shares and 7,305,355 operating partnership units (units which are convertible into common
shares on a one-for-one basis) in PSB. At December 31, 2006, PSB owned and operated 18. .7 million net rentable
square feet of commercial space located in eight states. PSB also manages commercial space owned by the
Company and affiliated entities at December 31, 2006 pursuant to property management agrecments

Eqmty in earnings of real estate entities includes our pro rata share of the net impact of gains/losses on
sales of assets and impairment charges relating to the impending sale of real estate assets as well as our pro rata
share of the impact of the application of EITF Topic D-42 on redemptions of preferred securities recorded by PSB.
Our net pro rata share from these items resulted in a net increase (decrease) of equity in eammgs of ($1, 042 ,000);
$7,727,000 and $4,544,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The impact of the PSB items discussed above led to a decrease in equity in c'amings of real estate entities
totaling $12,988,000 when comparing the year ended December 31, 2006 to the same period in 2005. These PSB
items also led to an increase in equity in earings of real estate entities totaling $2,319,000 when comparing the year
ended December 31, 2005 to the same period in 2004. In addition, equity in earnings real estate entities decreased
due to our consolidation of three limited partnerships effective January 1, 2006 as described in Note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements. As a result of this consolidation, cqulty in income w1tb respect to these
partnerships ceased effectwe January 1 2006.

~ Our future equity income from PSB will be dependent entirely upon PSB’s operating resulis. Our
investment in PSB provides us with some diversification into another asset type. We have no plans of disposing of
our investment in PSB. PSB’s filings and selected financial information can be accessed through the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and on its website, www,psbusinessparks.com.

In January 2004, we entered into a joint venture partnership with an institutional investor for the purpose of
acquiring up to $125.0 million of exnstmg self-storage properties in the United States from third parties (the
“Acquisttion Joint Venture”) The venture is funded entirely with equity consisting of 30% from us and 70% from
the institutional investor. As described more fully in Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006, our pro-rata share of éamings with respect to two of the facilities acquired directly from
third parties by the Acqmsmon Joint Venture in 2004, at an aggregate cost of $9,086,000, are reflected in Equity in
Earnings in the table above. Qur initial investment in the Acquisition Joint Venture with respect to these two
facilities was approximately $2,930,000. Our future equity in earnings with respect to the Acqulsmon Joint Venture
will be dependcnt upon the level of earnings generated by these two properties.

The “Other Investments” are comprised primarily of our equity in earnings from four limited partnerships,
for which we held an approximate consistent level of equity interest throughout 2004, 2005 and 2006. The
Company formed these limited partmerships during the 1980°s. We are the general partner in each limited
partnership, and manage each of these facilities‘for a management fee that is included in “Ancillary operations.”
The limited partners consist of numerous individual investors, including the Company, which throughout the 1990’s
acquired units of limited partmership interests in these limited partnerships in various transactions.
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=+ Our future earnings with respect to the “Other Investments’: will be dependent upon the operating results of
the-20 self:storage facilities that these-entities own. The operating characteristics of these facilities are similar to
those of the Company’s self-storage facilitiés, and are subject to the same operational issues as the Same Store
Facilities as discussed above. See Note 6.to our consolidated financial statements for the operating results of these
entities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Other Income and Expense Items

'; Interesr and other income: ~ Interest and other income was $31,799,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006 as compared to $16,447,000 for the same penod in 2005 ‘and $5,391,000 in 2004. These increases are due to
earning higher interest rates on invested cash balances combined with significantly higher average cash balances
invested in interest—bearing accounts as compared to respective prior year periods. . )
Y ' As drscussed more fully in “quurdlty and Caprtal Resources” below, at December 31 2006, we had cash
balances totaling approxrmalely $555.6 million. In addition, during the first quarter of 2007, we issued
approxunately $500.0 million of olr 6.625% Series M Cumulative Preferred Stock. The net proceeds from thls
issuance and our December 31, 2006 cash balances will be used primarity to fund futuré development acqursmon
and preferred redemptlon activities (see also “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Finanicial Condition and
Results of Operations ~ quurdrty and Capital Resources”). In the interim, the net proceeds from our cash balances
are expected to earn, interest income (currently at approximately 5.3% at December 31, 2006) relative to the
correspondmg dmded requrrement (approxrmately 6.625% with, respect to our Series M Cumulative Preferred
Stock) ThJS dlfference w1]1 result in an estlmated reduction to eamings per commeon share. In’ addition, we may
" issue additional preferred stock dunng the early part of 2007, raising the necessary funds in anticipation of the
potential redemption of approximately $172,500,000 in hlgher-rate preferred stock that becomes availablé for
redemptlon in September 2007. This i issuance similarly will have a negative 1mpact on earrungs per share until the
proceeds are utilized. f‘. L o . .
g Deprecratron and amortxzatmn Deprecaatron and amortization expense was $437 984 000, $196,232,000
and $182,890, 000 for the years ended Décember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. .

-

The increase in deprecmtlon and amomzatxon for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to the
same period in 2005 is due primarily to $175,944,000 in amortization expense recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2006 on the intangible assets for the value of the storage tenants in place which we acquired in the
Shurgard merger Intanglble assets of $530,528,000, represented by the value of the storage tenants in place at the
time of the merger are bemg amortized relative to the expected future benefit of the tenants m place to each penod
Other intangible assets of $34,813,000, represented by the land leases with rent payments that are below market
value are being amortized over the life of the underlying leases. Amortization of these finite-lived intangible assets
is expected to be approximately $243,282,000 during 2007.

“

i
" The remamder of the 1ncrease in deprecratlon and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to the same perlod in 2005 i 1s due’ primarily to assets acquired in the Shurgard merger and to our newly
developed and acquu'ed facilities. See Notes 2 and 3 to our consolidated financial statements for further dlscussron
of the Shurgard merger ‘and the acquisition of tanglble and mtangrble assets. Thei increase from 2004 to 2005 i 1s due

tc the acquxsltron and development of additional real estate facdmes

Also mcluded in deprecratlon and a.momzatxon expense for the year ended December 31 2006 is
$1,651,000 related to the amortization of mtanglbles and $6,604,000 for each of 'the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004., Amortization ceased as of Apnl 1, 2006, as described more fully in Note 2 to our consolidated
ﬁnancm[ statements o . r -

4 . . ] "

.. General and aa‘mmrstratwe expense General and admlmstratwe expense was $84,661, 000 $21 115,000
and $18,813, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. General and administrative
expense pnnclpally consists. of Shurgard merger mtegratron costs, state mcome taxes, investor relations expenses
and corporate and executive salaries. In addition, general and administrative expenses includes expenses that vary

60




depending on the Company’s activity levels in certain areas, such as overhead associated with the acquisition and
development of-real estate facilities, employee severance and stock-based compensation, and product research and
development expendrtures

General and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 include costs -and expenses -

totaling $47,405,000 incurred in connection with the integration of Shurgard and Public Storage, costs for cancelled

development projects in the U.S. and Europe totaling $10,211,000 and contract termination fees of $2,413,000. We .

expect to incur approximately $5 million in additional merger integration costs through June 30, 2007.

. Restricted stock and stock option expense amounted to approximately $6,309, 000 $4 758,000 and
$2, 963 000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. _ e

Interest expense: Interest expense was $33,062,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to
~$8,216,000 for the same period in 2005 and $760,000 in 2004. The increase in interest expense in 2006 is pnmanly
due to $24,855,000 in interest incurred on the debt and other obligations we assumed in the Shurgard merger
partially offset by a decrease of $893,000 in. interest expense due to lower balances on our outstanding notes. See
also Notes 8 and 9 to our consolidated financial statements for a schedule of our debt bala.nces pnncrpal repayment
reqmrements and average interest rates.

During the year ended December 31, 2006 -we pard $1 ,900,000 related to mterest ratc and currency swaps
acquired in the Shurgard merger. We have included this $1,900,000 as a reduction of income on derivatives, net on
our consolidated statement of operanons for the year ended December 31, 2006. See discussion below under
Income from Derivatives, net..

- : o [ il L o . 4 | I R '

The increase in interest expense in 2005 compared to 2004 was eaused by the assumption of mortgage
notes payable in connection with property acquisitions in the fourth quarter of 2004, interest expense with respect to
debt due a joint venture partner interest expense paid to a related party in 2005 and a decrease in caprtallzed interest
due to lower average m-process development balances. S . T
! Dunng the Iater part of 2004, we assumed mortgage notes payable with an aggregate prmcrpal balanee of
$94.7 million and havmg an average mterest rate of approximately, 5.2% in connectron with property acqursmons
We incurred interest expense with respect to these mortgage notes of $879,000 in 2004 for the partial penod these
notes became our liabilities. Interest expense with respect to these mortgage notes totaled $4, 739 000 in 2005,
representmg a year-over-year increase of $3,860,000.

*As descnbed more fully in Note 11 to the consolidatéd financial statements, during 2005 we-incurred
interest expense totaling $1,458,000 ‘with respect to debt due a related party. This debt was extmgmshed on
November 17, 2003.

.. . a .

Caprtalrzed mterest expense totaled $2,716,000, -$2,820, 000 and $3,617,000 . for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, in connection with our development activities.” Included in the
interest capitalized for 2006 is $935,000 in connection with our development activities in Europe. e

Minority interest in income: Mmonty interest in income represents the income that is allocable to equity
interests in the Consolidated Entities, ‘which are not owned by the Company. The followrng table summarizes
mmonty mterest 111 income for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006:
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Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, ‘ December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2005 2004 Chang
(Amounts in thousands)
Preferred partnership interests: ; . . ! :
Ongoing distributions (a)..........icceeee....... A $ 19055 - § 16,147 $ 2,908 $ 16,147 $ 22423 - $(62
Special Distribution and EITF Topic D42 (b). - - 874 (874) 874 10,063 ~ .1
Acquired minority INETests (€) ..o vreeereeeeereene - 1,197 (1,197) 1,197 4,048 (2,8
Newly consolidated partnerships (d}.......oo..coeeuvens 5,259 - 5,259 - -
Convertible Partnership Units (€) ......ocooveevrrereens 151 469 (318) 469 328 L
Shurgard U.S. minority interests (f)........-...... 417 - 417 - -
Shurgard European minority interests {(g) (3,631) - (3,631) - -
Other minority Interests (h)..e.eoenmeereneen. 10,632 13,964 (3,332) 13,964 13,051 9
Total minority interests in income ........ccoceuenns 3 31,883 § 32651 5 (768) $§ 32,651 § 49913 7,2

(2)

(b}

(©
(d)
(e)
)

(2

(h)

The increase in ongoing distributions is due to the issuance of additional preferred partnership units offset by the redemption
of $40,000,000 of our 9.5% Series N Preferred Units on March 17, 2005 and $45,000,000 of our 9.125% Series O Preferred
units on March 29, 2005,

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commissions clarification of EITF Topic D-42, are original issuance costs
with respect to our first quarter of 2005 redemption of preferred units included in minority interest in income for the year s
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, totaling $874,000 and $2,063,000, respectively. Amounts for 2004 also include a
special distribution: of $8,000,000 described below.

These amounts reflect income allocated to minority interests that the Company acquired in 2005 and are no longer
outstanding at December 31, 2006. Included in income allocated to the Acquired minority interests is $295,000 and
$1,197,000 in depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

These amounts reflect’ income 'allocated to minority interests for three entities that we commenced consolidating the
accounts for effective January 1, 2006 (see Note 2 to our ‘consolidated financial statements). Included in mmonty interest in
income for the year ended Decembcr 31, 2006 was $32,000 in depreciation expense.

These  amounts reflect the minority interests representcd by the Convertible Partmership Units (see Note 11 to our
consolidated financial statements). Included in income allocated to the Convertible Partnership Units was $710,000,
$385,000, and $333,000 in depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

These amounts reflect income allocated to minority interests in entities we acquired in the merger with Shurgard, and
include $55,000 in depreciation in the year ended December 31, 2006.

These amounts reflect income allocated to minority interests from entities we acquired in the merger with Shurgard. These
interests include the 80% partner’s interests in the European joint ventures, First Shurgard and Second Shurgard, as well as
those in domestic joint ventures. Included in minority interest in income is $3,013,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006 in depreciation.

These amounts reflect income allocated to minority interests that were outstanding consistently throughout the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, Included in minority interest in income is $828,000, $897.000 and $697,000 in
depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as well as gain on sale of assets
totaling $251,000 in 2005 (none in 2006 or 2004).

Other minority interests reflect income allocated to minority interests that have maintained a consistent

level of interest throughout 2004, 2005 and 2006, comprised of investments in the Consolidated Entities described in
Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements. The level of income allocated to these interests in the future. is
dependent upon the operating results of the storage facilities that these entities own, as well as any minority interests
that the Company acquires in the future.

Income has been allocated to our Preferred partnership interests based upon (i) “Ongoing distributions”,

representing distributions paid during the period and (ii) “Redemptions of preferred units” representing the
differences between the redemption amount and the carrying amount of preferred partnership units that have been
redeemed. The reduction in income ailocated to preferred partnership interests for ongeing distributions and for
redemptions are due to the following issuances and redemptions of our preferred units:
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. On May 9, 2006, one of our Consolidated Entities issued $100,000,000 of its 7.25% Series J Preferred
Partnership Units. Accordmgly, ongoing distributions with respect to preferred partnership interest are expected to
increase. .

In March 2005, we redeemed our 9.5% Series N Preferred Units ($40.0 million) and our 9.125% Series O
Preferred Units ($45.0 million) for cash. We allocated $874,000 to the mmonty interests, reflected as “allocations
associated with redemptions” with respect to these redemptions in accordance with EITF Topic D-42, representing
the excess of the stated amount of the preferred units over their carrying amount. This reduced annual ongoing
distributions following the redemption by approximately $7,906,000. - -

In December 2004, we issued $25,000,000 of our 6.25% Series Z Preferred Units in connection with a
property portfolio acquisition. This increased annual ongoing distributions following issuance by approximately
$1,563,000. o

On March 22, 2004, certain investors who held $200 million of our 9.5% Series N Cumulative Redeemable
Perpetual Preferred Units agreed, in exchange for a special distribution of $8,000,000, to a reduction in the
distribution rate on their preferred units from 9.50% per year to 6.40% per year, and an extension of the call date for
these securities to March 17, 2010. The investors also received their distribution that accrued from January 1, 2004
through the effective date of the exchange. The $8,000,000 special distribution, combined with $2,063,000,
representing the excess of the' statcd amount of the ‘preferred units over their carrying amount, is reflected above in
“Redemptions.” This transaction reduced ongoing annual distributions after March 22, 2004 by approximately $6.2
million.

On August 5, 2005 we acquu'ed the msntutlonal mvestors initerest in PSAC Investors LLIC. As part of the
acquisition, we also obtained dnd subsequently exerclsed the right to acquirc Mr. Hughes’ interest in PSAC
Investors, LLC which we acquired November 17, 2005 (see Note 9 to our consolidated ﬁnancnal statements). Asa
result of these events: (i) we ceased allocating income to minority interests with respect to the Consolidated
Development Joint Venture effective August 5, 2005, and (ii) Mr. Hughes’ interest in the Consolidated
Development Joint Venture was classified as debt on our balance sheet and income with respect to Mr. Hughes’
interest in the Consolidated Development Joint Vénture for the period from August 5, 2005 through November 17,
2005, has been classified as interest expense on our cousohdated statements of i mcomc

Liguidity and Capital Resources’

We believe that our.internally generated net cash provided by operating activities will continue to be
sufficient to enable us to meet our ,operating expenses, capital improvements, debt service requirements and
distributions to shareholders for the foreseeable future. - . . L .

.

Operating as a real estate investment trust (“REI’I" ), our ability to retain cash flow for reinvestment is
restricted. In order for us to mamtam our REIT status, a:substantial portion of our operating cash flow must be used
to make distributions to our shareholdcrs (see. “Reqmrement to Pay Distributions” below). However despite the
significant distribution requirements, we have.been able to retain a significant amount of,our operating cash flow.
The following table summarizes our ablhry to fund distributions to the minority interest, capital improvements to
maintain our facilities, and distributions to our shareholders through the use of cash provided by operating activities.
The remaining cash flow generated is ‘available to make both scheduled and optlonal principal payments on debt and
for reinvestment.

. Lo . : .
4 ! .t PR PR - ' ?
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. For the Year Ended December 31,

« 2006 . 2005 2004
(Amount in thousands) .
Net cash provided by operating 8CHVItIES .ou.cwocere e eeeeerarverssssereesesereeenesens $791,700 $692,048 $616,664
Allocable to minority interests (Preferred Units) — ongoing distributions ......... ’ (19,055) (16,147) (22,423)
Allocable to minority intetests (Preferred Units) - spectal dlstnbunon ) R .- . (8,000)
Allocable to minority interests (COMMON EQUILYY........oov/rovsdursersersesesssreessseensis © (16,300) (18,177} (21,349)
Cash Erom operations allocable to our shareho]ders...‘. ..................... ....... 756,345 657,724 , 56'4,892:
Capital 1mprovements to maintain our facilities ..o (79,326) L (25,890 . (35,868}
Remammg operatmg cash flow available for dlsmbutlons to our shareholders.. * 677,019 631,834 529,024
Dlstnbutlons paid: .
Preferred stock dividends.....c.coo st (214,218) (173,017) (157,925)
Equity Stock, Series A dividends............ (21,424)  ° (21,443) (21,501)
Common shareholders.:.............. e ireetirsresessat et e st e e era e e nnenredantone s an et ens (298,219) - (244,200) (230,834)
Cash available for pn'ncipal payments on debt and reinvestment ........oceveeeerrnn . $143,158 $193,174 . $118,764

(a) The $8.0 million spec:a] dlstnbunon was pald to a umthoider of our 9.5% Series N Cumulative Redesmable Perpetual
Preferred Units in conjunction with 2 March 22, 2004 agreement that, among other thmgs lowered the distribution rate from
9.5% to 6.4%.

Cash available for principal payments on debt and reinvestment declined from $193.2 million in 2005 to
$143.2 million in 2006 principally due to the 1mpact of merger integration expenses of approximately $47.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, as well as the impact of paying two entire quarters’ distribution to the 38.9
million shares issued to former Shurgard shareholders while the operating cash ‘flows were reflected only from
August 22, 2006 through December 31, 2006. .

Our financial profile is charactcnzcd by a low level of dcbt—to—total capltahzatlon and a conservative
dividend payout ratio with respect to the common stock. We¢ expect (o fund our growth strategies and debt
obligations with (i} cash on hand at December 31, 2006, (ii) mtemally generated retained cash flows and (iii)
proceeds from issuing equity securities. In general, our current sirategy is to contmue ta ﬁnance our growth with
permanent capital; either commaon or preferred equity. - - - 2

Over the past three years, we have funded substantially all of our acquisitions with permanent capital (both
common and preferred securities). We have clected to use preférred securities as a form of leverage despite the fact
that the dividend rates of our preferred securities exceed the prevailing market interest rates on conventional debt.
We have chosen this method of financing for the following reasons: (i) under the REIT structure, a significant
amount of operating cash flow needs to be distributed to dur shareholders, making it difficult to repay debt with
operating cash flow alone, (ii) our perpetual preferred stock has no sinking fund requirement or maturity date and
does not require redemption, all of which eliminate any future refinancing risks, (iii) after the end of a non-cail
period, we have the option to redeem the preferred stock at'any time, which enable us to refinance higher coupon
preferred stock with' new preferred stock at lower rates if appropriate, (iv) preferred stock does not contain
covenants, thus allowing us to maintain significant financial flexibility, and (v) dividends on the prefcrred stock can
be applied to satisfy our REIT distribution requirements.

Our credit ratings on each of our series of Cumulative Preferred Stock are “Baa2” by Moody’s and
“BBB+” by Standard & Poor’s.

We also have a $200 million line of credit that we use as temporary “bridge” financing. At December 31,

2006, we had $45 million in outstanding borrowings under this credit facility which has increased to $80 million at
February 28, 2007. This credit facility expires on April 10, 2007. We are currently in the process of obtaining a

64




new credit facility which we anticipate will have $300 million of available borrowing. capacity, as well as improved
financing spreads and covenants. We expect the new credit facility to be in place prior to the expiration of the
existing facility., "L : roo

Recent Issuance of Preferred Stock and Projected Redemption of Preferred Securities: One of our
financing objectives over the past several years has been to reduce our average cost of capital with respect to our
preferred securities. Accordingly, we have redeemed higher rate preferred securities outstanding and have financed
the redemptlon with cash on-hand or from the proceeds from the issuance of lower rate preferred securities.

. ¢ . A

We believe that our size and ﬁnanelal ﬂex1b111ty enables us to access capital when appropnate Since the
beginning of 2004 through December 31, 2006, we have raised approximately $2.4 billion of our. Cumulative
Preferred Stock, and used approximately $1.3 billion of these net proceeds in order to redeem higher-coupon
preferred securities. : - ,

+ On January 18 2007, we redeemed our 7. 625% Series T Cumulanve Preferred Stock totahng $152.2
million and on:February 20, 2007, we redeemed our 7.625% Series U Cumulative Preferred Stock totaling $150.0
million. These redemptions were funded with cash on hand and funds.raised through the issuance of $500 million of
our 6.625% Series M preferred stock. In addition to the Series T and U Preferred securities, we currently have
approximately $172.5 million of additional preferred securities that become redeemable at our option in 2007.

~ From time-to-time, we may raise additional capital primarily through the issuance of lower rate preferred
securities, in advance of the redemption dates to ensure that we have available funds to redeem these securities. The
timing and our ability to issue additional preferred securities are dependent on many factors. There is no assurance
that we will be able to raise the necessary capital and at appropriate rates to redeem these securities.

Requirement to Pay Distributions: We have operated, and intend to continue to operate, in such a manner
as to qualify as a REIT-under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, but no assurance can be given that we will at all
times so qualify. To the extent that the Company continues-to qualify as a REIT, we will not be taxed, with certain
limited exceptions, on the taxable income that is distributed to our shareholders, provided that at least 90% of our
taxable income is.so distributed to our shareholders prior to ﬁlmg of the Company’s tax return. We have sat:sﬁed
the REIT distribution requirement since 1980 : . Sy .

.+ Aggregate dividends paid during 2006 totaled $214.2 million to the holders of our Cumulative Preferred
Stock, $298.2 million to the holders of our Common Stock and $21.4 million to the holders of our Equity Stock,
Series A. Although we have not finalized the calculation of our 2006 taxable income, we believe that the aggregate .
dividends paid in 2006 to our shareholders enabled us to continue to meet our REIT distribution requirements

During 2006 we paid dlsmbunons totalmg £19.1 mllhon w1th respect to our Preferred Partnershlp Units,
We estimate the 2007 distribution requirements with respect to the preferred parmership units outstanding at
December 31, 2006, to be approximately $21.6 million.

: For 2007 distributions with respect 1o the Common Stock and Equzty Stock, Series A will be determined
based upon our REIT- distribution requirements after taking into consideration distributions to the. preferred
shareholders. We anticipate that, at a minimum, quarterly distributions per common share will remain at $0.50 per
common share. For the first quarter of 2007, a quarterly distribution of $0.50 per common share has been declared
by our Board of Directors.

With respect to the depositary shares of Equity Stock, Series A, we have no obligation to pay distributions
if no distributions are paid to the common shareholders. To the extent that we do pay common distributions in any
year, the holders of the depositary shares receive annual distributions equal to the lesser of (i) five times the per
share dividend on the common stock or (ii} $2.45. The depositary shares are non-cumulative, and have no
preference over our Common Stock either as to dividends or in liquidation.
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-+ Capital Improvement Requirements: During 2007,- we have budgeted approximately $65 million for
capital improvements for our facilities. Capital improvements include major repairs or replacements to the facilities,
which keep the facilities in good operating condition and maintain their visual appeal. Capital improvements do not
include costs relating to the development or expansion of facilities.

Debt Service Requirements: At December 31, 2006, we have total outstanding debt of approximately $1.8
billion. We do not believe we have any significant refinancing risks with respect to our debt. ‘

In connection with the Shurgard merger, we assumed approximately $2.0 billion of debt from Shurgard and
its affiliates. Through December 31, 2006, we have retired approximately $671.0 million of such debt and on
January 2, 2007, we retired an additional approximately $429 million of such debt, as discussed below.

In late December 2006, we entered into a short-term unsecured bridge loan with a commercial bank for
borrowings up to $300 million and immediately borrowed the entire amount, increasing our cash balances to $555.6
million as of December 31,'2006. A substantial -portion of this cash was utilized on January 2, 2007, to retire
.approximately- $429 million .of debt assumed from Shurgard that was secured by substantially all of our wholly-
owned facilities in Europe. .The bridge loan was subsequently repaid dnd terminated on-January 10, 2007 with the
proceeds ﬁ‘om the issuance of preferred securities.

Our portfoho of real estate facnhtles remains substantially unencumbered At December 31, 2006 we have
domestic mortgage debt outstanding of $266.7 million, which encumbers 102 self-storage facilities with an
aggregate net book value of approximately $674.9 miilion. In Europe, mortgage debt at December 31, 2006 totaled
of $724.3 miltion, which encumbers 161 facilities with an aggregate net book value of approximately $1.4 billion at
December 31, 2006. As indicated above, on January 2, 2007, we retired approximately $429 million of the debt in
Europe which had encumbered a total of 101 facilities. .

We anticipate that our retained operating cash flow will continue to be sufficient to enable us to make
scheduled principal payments. Seec Notes 8 and 9 to our consolidated financial statéments for approximate principal
maturities of such borrowings. It is our current intention to fully amortize our outstanding debt as opposed to
refinance debt maturities with additional debt. Alternatively, .we may prepay debt and finance such prepayments
with retalnecl operating cash flow or proceeds from the issvance of preferred securmes .

¢« Acquisition and Developmént of Facilities: During 2007, we will continue to seek to acquire additional
self-storage facilities from third parties; howevér, it is dlfﬁcult to estimate the amount of third party acqu1s1t10ns we
will undertake ‘ . : .

At December 31, 2006, we have a development “pipeline” of 48 projects in the U.S. consisting of self-
storage facilities, conversion of space at facilities that was previously used for containerized storage and expansions
to existing self-storage facilities. At December 31, 2006, we have acquired the land for all of these projects.

The development and fill-up of these storage facilities is subject to significant contingencies such as
obtaining appropriaté governmental approvals. We estimate that the amount remaining to be spent to complete
development to be approximately $185 million and will be incurred over the next 24 months. - The followmg table
sets forth certain information with respect to our development pipeline.

) . ' )
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DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE SUMMARY

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006
, . P, Number Net Total estimated | Costs incurred
' _ . of rentable .  development through Costs to
projects sq. . costs 12/31/06 complete
. {Amounts in thousands, except number of projects)
U.S. under construction - 15 610 46,747 31,833 14,914
U.S. in development, land acquired 33 1,646 140,869 1,669 133,200
Europe under construction, land acquired 8 389 . 78,465 41,916 36,549
Total Development Pipeline 56 2,645 $ 266,081 % 81,418 5 l84,663

We also have five parcels of land held for development in the United States with an aggrcgate cost of
$8,620,000 at December 31, 2006.

The development and fill-up of these storage facilities is subject to significant contingencies such as
obtaining appropriate governmental approvals. We estimate that the amount remaining to be spent to complete
development will be incurred over the next 24 months, Substantially all of the future costs for the European projects
will be funded by the Shurgard European Joimt Vent'ures in which we have a 20% interest, and which have a
substantlal degree of funding by debt. -
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Contractual Obligations i

B R

Our significant contractual obligitions at Décember 31, 2006 and their impact on our cash flows and

liquidity are summanzed below for the years'ending Dc'c'emberi3l (amounts in thousands):

2008

'l

Total "~ 2007 " 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter

Lnng-terih debt: W o L e C
Public Storage (1) ..eevecerrorlvenenns $ 130,143- § 20868 - - - $ - 9,597 $§ 9515 $ 9281 $ 22935 § 57,947
Shurgard U.S. (2)...... 816,514 .. 92,38 58,896 39,057 47017, .. .233262,.. 345901
Shurgard Europé (2) 756271 453,169 183,379 119,723 - -

L ‘ ' . . R . Lo o R . FIi
Line of credit and other short- T T Cae . MV
term bank financing (3).............. 345,676 345,676 - - - - 1
. + ta ! S N I R - . ta S ' N Wt hy N
Preferred stock called for: - T TS | . o Lo PR
redernption (4) oL . 304255 304255 . g ’ SR ST M
IR A | * ¥ A . [ X o

Capital 16a5es (5)ccvrirmaressenrsnns 40,774 674 714 728 ' 675 w. 130750 1 36,676

Operating leases:

" Public Storage (6. c-xeesreeeaens, 66,943 10,687 9414 5,907 2,840 1,910 36,185
Shurgard U.S. (6) ..covrrvinrerinne. 64,467 5437 3,883 3713 3,779 3,824 43,831
Shurgard Europe (6).....ccovcc.... 146,465 5,623 5,683 5,523 4,831 4,724 120,081

Construction commitments (7)... 51,463 40,834 10,629 - - - 1

Total.....coevirrenee v ersareerererens $ 2,722,971 $1,279,604 $ 282,195 $ 184,166 $ 68423 $ 267962 $ 640,621

2

()

4

®)
(6)

M

Amounts include interest payments on our notes payable based on their contractual terms. See Note 8 to our
consolidated financial statements for additional information on our notes payable. Debt to Joint Venture Partner is not
reflected since we have not exercised our option to acquire our partner’s interest.

Amounts include interest payments on our notes payable based on their contractual terms that we assumed in the
merger with Shurgard. On January 2, 2007, we prepaid the €325 million collateralized notes ($429 million at
December 31, 2006) at our European operations that were otherwise payable in 2011. Accordingly, we have not
included any other payments on the €325 million collateralized for any other periods in the table above. See Note 8 to
our consolidated financial statements for additional information on our notes payable.

Amounts include borrowings under our $200 million revolving line of credit and $300 million short-term
bank financing. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information on our line
of credit and other short-term bank financing.

In December 2006, we called for redemption our Series T and Series U Cumulative Preferred Stock, at par, plus
accrued dividends. Amounts include the aggregated redemption value of $302,150,000 of these two series, plus
$2,105,000 in accrued dividends.

This line item reflects amounts due on five European properties with commitments extending to April 2052 that we
assumed in the merger with Shurgard.

We lease trucks, land, equipment and office space ynder various operating leases. Certain leases are cancelable with
substantial penalties,

Includes obligations for facilities currently under construction at December 31, 2006 as described above under
“Acquisition and Development of Real Estate Facilities.”
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In January 2004, we entered into a joint venture partnership with an institutional investor for the purpose of
" adquiring up to $125,000,000 of existing self-storage properties in the U.S. from third parties (the *Acquisition Joint
Venture™). As described more fully in Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements, our partner's equity
contributions with respect to certain transactions are classified as debt under the caption “Debt to Joint Venture
Partner” in our. consolidated balance sheets. At Decembet 31, 2006, our Debt to Joint Venture Partner was
$37,258,000. For a six-month period beginning 54 months after formation, we have the right to acquire our
partner’s interest based upon the market value of the properties. If we do not exercise our option, our partner can
elect to purchase our interest in the properties during a six-month period.commencing upon expiration-of our six-
month option period. If our partner fails to exercise its option, the Acquisition Joint Venture will be liquidated and
the proceeds will be distributed to the partmers according to the joint venture agreement. We have not included our
Debt to Joint Venture Partmer as a contractual obligation in the table above, since:we only have the right, rather than
a contractual obligation, to acquire our partner’s interest. :

‘. Jn-January. 2007, we entered into a contract to purchase one. self-storage facility in Hawaii (total
approximate net rental square. feet of 79,000) at an aggrepate cost of $22,500,000. This confract.is subject to
sxgmﬁcant connngencms and there is no assurance that this facility will be acqmrcd e B
Oﬂ'—Balance Sheet Arrangements - . - R ‘ '. '1 oo

At Dcccmber 31, 2006 we had no oﬂ' balance- sheet arrangemems as deﬁned under Regulation S-K
303(a)(4) and the instructions thereto.

, . Stock Repurchase Program: Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase from time to time-of up

to 25,000,000 shares of our common stock on the open market or.in privately negotiated transactions. During 2004,

we repurchased 445,700 shares for approximately $20.3 million. During 2005, we repurchased 84,000 shares for

approximately $5.0 million. During 2006, we did not repurchase any shares. From the inception of the repurchase

. program through December 31, 2006, we have repurchased a total of 22,201,720 shares of common stock at an
aggregate cost of approximately $567.2 million.

LI o} T f

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

To limit our exposure to market risk, we principally finance our operations and growth with permanent
‘equity capital, consisting either of common stock or preferred stock.” ‘At December 31, 2006, our. ‘debt as’a’
percentage of total shareholders’ equity (based on book values) was 26.2%. . 5
, Our preferred stock is not redeemable at the option of the holders. Except under certain conditions relating
to the Company’s qualification as a REIT, the Preferred Stock is not redéemable by the Company prior to the -
following dates: Series V — September 30, 2007, Series W — October 6, 2008, Series X — November-13, 2008,
" Series Y - January 2, 2009, Series Z — March 5, 2009, Series A— March 31, 2009, Series B — June 30, 2009, Series,
C - September 13, 2009, Series D — February 28, 2010, Series E — April 27, 2010, Series F — August 23, 2010
Series G — December 12, 2010, Series H — January 19, 2011, Series I — May 3, 2011, Series K ~ August 8, 2011,
Series L — October 20, 201‘1 and Series M — January 9, 2012. On or after the rcspecnve dates, €ach of the series of
Preferred Stock will be redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at $25 per, deposntary share {or
share in the case of the Series Y), plus accrued and unpald dividends through the redemption date.” -

o, . Our market I'lSk sensmve mstruments mclude notes payable wluch totaled $1,466, 284 000 at December 31,
2006. The table below summarizes the annual debt maturities and welghted-average interest rates on our
outstanding debt, excluding the debt acquired in the merger with Shurgard, at the end of each year (dollar amounts
in thousands):
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- 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 + - Thereafter Total Fair Value

Fixed rate debt (a) $ 16098 § 5155 § 5358 $ 5404 § 19,704 $50,970 % 102,689 § 100,249

Variable rate debt (b)... __ 345,000 = - - - - " 345,000 - 345,600

$361,098 § 5155 §-5358 % 5404 $ 19,704 $50970 $ 447689 § 445249

{a) Average interest rate of 5.25%.
{b} Amounts include borrowings under our line of credit and other short-term bank financings, which explrc in 2007,
which incurred average variable interest rates at December 31, 2006 of 5.66%.

* We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily from the ﬂoating rate debt arrangements we acquired
in the merger with Shurgard.

We have foreign currency exposures related io our investment in the construction, acquisition, and
operation of storage centers in countries outside the U.S. to the extent such activities are financed with financial
instruments or equity denominated in non-functional currencies. The aggregate book value of our real estate and
intangibles was approximately $1.6 billion at December 31, 2006. Since all foreign debt is denominated in the
corresponding functional currency, our currency exposure is limited to our equity investment in those countries.
Countries in which Shurgard had exposure to foreign currency fluctuations include Belgmm France, the
Netherlands, Sweden, Denmark, Germany and the United Kingdom.

The table below summarizes annual debt maturities and weighted-average interest rates on outstanding debt
that we acquired in the merger. with Shurgard at the end of each year (based on relevant LIBOR of 5.30% and a
EURIBOR of 3.633% at December 31, 2006 and the applicable forward curve for following years) and fair values
required to evaluate our expected cash-flows under debt agreements and our sensmv:ty to interest rate changes at
December 31, 2006 (dollar amounts in thousands), .

v

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Fair Value

Fixed rate debt ... $56,386  $25687 $ 7,175 $ 9230 $209311 §$323,100  $630889  $642315
Average interest rate ..... 6.61%  661% 6.60% - 661%  5.88% 5.88%
Variable rate debt........... $ 82 § 326 § 349 § 68 § - $- $8,428 § 8,428
Average interest rate....... 7.30% 7.08% 7.07% " 7.19%
Variable rate - .

EURIBOR debt (1)...... $431,135  §170,449  § 116,094  § - $ - $ - 8717678 $717,678
Average interest rate....... 6.07% 623%,  625%
Interest fate swaps o . B '
Swap on EURIBOR........ £ - 8314 § 1,04) $ - $ 4,908 b3 - § 6263 $ 6,263

(1) First Shurgard and Second Shurgard have senior credit agreements denominated in euros to borrow, in aggregate, up to
€271 million ($357.5 million as of December 31, 2006). As of December 31, 2006, the available amount under those
credit facilities was in aggregate €52 million ($68.6 million).

At December 31, 2006, through our merger with Shurgard, we were party to pay—ﬁxed receive-variable
interest rate swaps. The-notional amounts, the weighted-average pay rates and the terms of ‘these agreements are

snmmarized as follows: -
A 1
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St 0 T 00220070 w2008 . 2009, 2010 . 2011 Thereafter

+ . s .o I . - P - - - T
‘Notional amounts (m o : .
mllllons)..!.'.‘.‘.: ............ e s ‘$ 748.1 $653.4 " '$520.2 % 4288 % - . $-
‘Weighted' average mterest oo . TR BT -
11 TSSO T eeenveeans ©499%- ¢ 4.83% - 454% 7 4.23% - AR

Vot U '

Based on ouwr outstandmg variable-rate EURIBOR debt and mtcrest rate swaps at December 31 2006, a
hypothetical. increase in the interest rates of 100 basis points would cause the value of our derivative financial
instruments to increase by $24.5 ‘million. Conversely, a hypothetical decrease in the interest rates of 100 basis pomts
would cause the value of our derivative financial instruments to decrease by $25. 0 million.

o On J anuary 2 2007 we prcpald the €325 rmlhon collaterahzcd notes ($429 mthon at Deccmber 31 2006)
at our European operations that were otherwise payable in 2011. To fund the prepayment of these notes, we entered
into and used, proceeds from a $300 million bridge loan, which was fully drawn at year end 2006, together with
borrowings .of approximately, $45 million- under our existing revolving .credit agreement and cash ‘on hand.
Subsequently in January 2007, both the bridge loan and revolver credit facility were repaid. We also terminated the
related European currency and interest rate hedges. Accordingly, the remaining debt in Europe relates to the joint
venture properties,. in which we have_a 20% equity *interest, but which are.consolidated for.financial reporting
purposes.

FI B . . EE : N 4 - o

I’i‘EM,S. . . Financial Statements and Supplementary Data : - AN

The financial statements of the Company at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and the report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, thereon and the related financial statement schedule, are included elsewhere herein.
Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements and Schedules in Item 15 .. ., -
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ITEM 9. .--. . Changes in and Dlsagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Dlsclosure 1
Not applicable. T
ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures N

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in reports the Company files and submits under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in accordance with SEC guidelines and that such
information is communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure based on the definition of "disclosure
controls and procedures” in Rules 13a-15(¢) of the Exchange Act. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and
procedures in reaching that level of reasonable assurance. Also, the Company has investments in certain
unconsolidated entities. As the Company does not control or manage these entities, its disclosure controls and
procedures with respect to such entities are substantially more limited than those it maintains with respect to its
consolidated subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Company's
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Act of 1934 as amended).
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The scope of our evaliation excluded the operations of Shurgard Self-Storage SCA (“Shurgard Europe™), our
subsidiary based in Europe. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our total revenues were $1.4 billion, of which
Shurgard Europe represented 365 million; our total net assets at December 31, 2006 were $8.2 billion, of which
Shurgard Europe represented $445 million. Based on that evaluation, and considering the relative significance of
Shurgard Europe to our operations, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2006.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequaté internal control over financial
reporting, as ‘such term is defined” in- Exchange Act- Rules 13a-15(f). Under the “supervision and ‘with the
participation of our management, incliding ‘our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by -the Commitiee’ on Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. -The-scope of -our evaluation-excluded the operations of Shurgard Self-Storage SCA (“Shurgard
Europe™), our subsidiary based in Europe. For the year ended December 31,2006, our total revenues were-$1.4
billion, of which Shurgard Europe represented $65 million; our total net assets at December 31, 2006 were $8.2
billion, of ‘which Shurgard Europe represented $445 million. - Based on our evaluation under the framework in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework, and considering the relative significance’ of Shurgard Europe, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, 4s
stated in their report which is included herein.
Changes in Intérnal Control Over Fingincia’l Reporting _

] i ‘ - . . s

There have not been any changes'in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter to which this report relates that have

materially affected, or are reasonable likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information -
Not Applicable. Lt
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .;” - - ..+ »

+
] 2

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Public Storage, Inc.:

f e 0 0
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report ‘on. Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Public Storage, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Public Storage,
Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Controls, management’s assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of
Shurgard Self Storage SCA and subsidiaries, which is included in the 2006 consolidated financial statements of
Public Storage, Inc. and constituted $2,108 million and $445 million of total and net assets, respectively, as of
December 31, 2006 and $65 million of revenues and a net loss of $43 million for the year then ended. Our audit of
internat control over financial reporting of Public Storage Inc. and subsidiaries also did not include an evaluation of
the internal control over financial reporting of Shurgard Self Storage SCA and subsidianies.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Public Storage, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, Public Storage, Inc, maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United

States), the consolidated balance sheets of Public Storage, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
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ended December 31, 2006 of Public Storage, Inc. and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.

Los Angeles, CA
February 28, 2007

il

Emst & Young LLP
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ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item with respect to directors is hereby incorporated by reference to the
material appearing in the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed in connection with the annual shareholders’
meeting scheduted to be held on May 3, 2007 (the “Proxy Statement™) under.the caption “Election of Directors.”

The information required by this item with respect to the nominating process, the audit committee and the
audit committee financial expert is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the Proxy
Statement under the caption “Corporate Governance.”

The information required by this item with respect to Section 16(a) compliance is hereby incorporated by
reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance.”

The information required by this item with respect to'a code of ethics is hereby incorporated by reference to
the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Corporate Governance.” Any amendments to or
waivers of the code of ethics granted to the Company’s exccutive officers or the controller will be published
promptly on our website or by other appropriate means in accordance with SEC rules and regulations.

The following is a biographical summary of the current executive officers of the Company:

Ronald L. Havner, Jr., age 49, has been the Vice-Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and a director of
Public Storage since November 2002 and President since July 1, 2005. Mr. Havner has been Chairman of the
Company’s affiliate, PS Business Parks, Inc. (PSB), since March 1998 and was Chief Executive Officer of PSB
from March 1998 until August 2003. Mr. Havner joined Public Storage in 1986. He is also a member of the Board
of Governors and the Executive Committee of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.
(NAREIT) and a director of Pac Van Inc. and Union BanCal Corporation.

John Reyes, age 46, a certified public accountant, joined the Company in 1990 and was Controller of the
Company from 1992 until December 1996 when he became Chief Financial Officer. He became a Vice President of
the Company in November 1995 and a Senior Vice President of the Company in December 1996, From 1983 to
1990, Mr. Reyes was employed by Emnst & Young,

John S. Baumann, age 46, became Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer of the Company in June
2003. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Baumann was Senior Vice President and General Counse! of Syncor Intemational
Corporation, an international high technology health care services company, From 1995 to 1998, he was Associate
General Counsel of KPMG LLP, an international accounting, tax and consulting firm.

John E. Graul, age 55, became Senior Vice President and President, Self-Storage Operations, in February
2004, with overall responsibility for the Company’s national operations. From 1932 until joining the Company, Mr,
Graul was employed by McDonald’s Corporation where he served in various management positions, most recently
as Vice President and General Manager — Pacific Sierra Region.

David F. Doll, age 48, became Senior Vice President and President, Real Estate Group, in February 2005,
with responsibility for Company’s real estate activities, including property acquisitions, developments, and
repackagings. Before joining the Company, Mr. Doll was Senior Executive Vice President of Development for
Westfield Corporation, a major international owner and operator of shopping malls, where he was employed since
1995,

Candace N. Krol, age 45, became Senior Vice Present of Human Resources in September 2005, From
1985 until joining the Company, Ms. Krol was employed by Parsons Corporation, a global engineering and
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construction firm, where she served in various management positions, most recently as Vice President of Human
Resources for the Infrastructure and Technology global business unit.

A v re . '

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

] .

The information required .by this item is hereby incorporated by referencé to the material appearing in the
Proxy Statement under the captions “Corporate Governance,” “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation
Committee Intcrlocks and Insider Participation,” and “Report of the Compensanon Committee.”

1
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ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Shareholder Matters . ST . IR 1

‘, N T iy
The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in
the Proxy Statement under the captions “Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2006 on the Company’s equity

compensation plans:
' ¢

L

Number of
' o . .securitiestobe . ., - Weighteds. - ;- v R
issued upon average Number of
_exercise-of ,,~ . ' exerciseprice . ., .!securities . .
outstanding of outstanding  remaining available
options, , . .. .. options,.. , . for future issuance ',
warrants and warrants and under equity
- L o rights rights . compensation plans
Equity compensation plans ’
approved by security holders (a).. | 2,149,535 . (b) . ;»858.28,, :~.* 1499700 -ir . .
‘Equity compensation plans not N T S S B . '
approved by security holders (c).. 69,869 $23.33 831,671
ot e . N gt LR A N L
The Company’s stock option and stock incentive plans are described more fully in Note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements. All plans other than the 2000 and 2001 Non-Executive/Non-Director Plans, were
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Includes 616,470 restricted stock units that, if and when vested, will be settled in shares of common stock
of the Company on a one for one basis.

.+ .- The outstanding options granted under plans not approved by the Company’s_sharcholders were granted
under the Company.'s 2000 and 2001 Non-Executive/Non-Director, Plan, which does not allow, participation by the,
Company’s exccutive officers and directors, The principal terms of these plans are as follows: (1) 2,500,000 shares
of common stock were authorized for grant, (2) this plan is administered by the Equity Awards Committee, except
that grants in excess of 100,000 shares to any one person requires approval by the Executive Equity Awards
Committee, (3) options are granted at fair market value on the date of grant, (4) options have a ten year term and (5)
options vest over three years in equal installments, or as indicated by the applicable grant agreement.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in
the Proxy Statement under the captions “Corporate Governance” and “Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Legal Proceedings.”

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Serviées

The information required by this item with respect to fees and services provided by the Company’s
independent auditors is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the
caption “Ratification of Auditors—Fees Billed to the Company by Ernst & Young LLP for 2006 and 2005,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Public Storage, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Public Storage, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended -December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the

Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the

Company’s management.
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting dvemléht Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the -

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects; the
consolidated financial position of Public Storage, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all

]

material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Umted o |
States), the effectiveness of Public Storage, Inc.’s internal control over financial reportmg as of December 31, 2006,

based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by ‘the Committee of Sponsonng
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP7¢/ -
.t o T

Los Angeles, California

February 28, 2007

Cur responsibility is to express an oplmon ‘'on’ these financial statements and ﬁnanclal '




' « PUBLIC STORAGE, INC,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2006 and 2005

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVALENLS......c.o.veoerermeesonserssseesssssessssssoesoeeoseeseeeesre e
Real estate facilities, at cost: .
LANG c..teettiieiiessiirnsess s sserssssssss st rabs b sms ot eas s st cas s snsseeees e s seentastemensster st sasntreansras
BUIIAINEZS v cveveraererrsaeerasierariermeriormaesnsssrasstsssnsssrarssrsesiesmnsssessesessesessensesesessesesentsnesssnssssas
Accumulated depreciation. ... crmemsrrenenirnes arerennereanens _
CONSHUCHON 11 PTOCESS 11vvvvrevrrarsivsersercossesiorsrsssssssssanssssssssssssens ST S

Investment in real estate entities-.
Goodwill ................

Intangible assets, net..
Other assets ... et e e s e AR R

‘LIABILITIES ANP SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Borrowings on bank credit facilities. ..........coooviiercecerieenve v e es e rrennens
NOLES PAYBDIE. ... e
Debt to joint venture partner ...................
Preferred stock calléd for redemption .
Accrued and other liabilities .....

Minority interest:’ '
Preferred partnership INtETESIS ... ..voviveiiee et e eeees
Other pantnership INLETESES ..v.viiiiieriiieriitra ittt ceesesisreene s seen e s e snacserae st an s naesseaes
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Shareholders’ equity:

Cumulative Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized,
1,712,600 shares issued (in series) and outstanding, (1,698,336 at December 31,
2005) 8t Liquidation PTEIETENCE...........e.eeereeeeesesesereosaesieesreese s sseneses st sossosoneassassseons

Common Stock, $0.10 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 169,144,467 shares
issued and outstanding (128,089,563 at December 31, 2005) ....coonvircereecncrernnens

Equity Stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 8,744.193
shares issued and OWESIANAING....cverrnereerieriererin s e st ers e e s e e s sns s sas e amrsean

Paid-in capital ........ooocoirereeecene mrererae e retranetsarae et e i e et nr e o nn et anenten

Cumulative net income........................

Cumulative distributions paid

Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME. ... ccvivivrervreririnericrrrcrerereressrsasiesesses

Total shareholders” equity ... ..o eene

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity...........ooeeeeieeeeeeninee e

See accompanying notes.
E-2

December 31,

December 31,

2006 2005
$ 555584 § 493501
2959875 1,540,357
8301,990 4390127
11,261,865 5,930,484
(1,754.362) (1,500,128)
9,507,503 4,430,356
90,038 54.472
9,597,541 2.484 828
- 301,905 328555
' 174,634 176,285
414,602 .
154,207 69.317

$ 11,198,473,

$ 5,552,486

$ 345,000 s . .
1,466,284 113,950
37,258 35,697,
302,150 172,500
333,706 159,360
3484308 481,507
325,000 225,000
181,030 28,970
2,855,000 2,498 400
16,915 12,809
5,661,507 2,430,671
3,503,202 3.189.266
(3,847,998) (3,314,137)
19,329 .
8,208,045 4.817,00

$ 11,198473

$ 5,552,486




PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006

{Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues:
Self-storage rental inCOME.........covirinnrer e esinend .
Ancillary operating revenue
Enterest and other INCOME......ccccvereeresmmrreresrrectesessreressserasessesssasnsesanseens

Expenses: e

Cost of operations (exciudmg depreciation and a.mortlzatlon)

Self-storage FACHHES ... .....coovrueeereerse e rens st sessssssnns :

Ancillary operations .................
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative...........

Interest expense, including interest paid to related party (Note 13) .....

Income from continuing operations before equity in earnings of real’
estate entities, casualty loss, gain on disposition of real estate and real

estate investments, foreign currency exchange gain, income (expense) .

from derivatives and minority interest in income ...........ccoceeeviiiiiininns

Equity in earnings of real estate entities ...
Casualty loss ........... eeeersraserestsesestaresessarieseRntra L re e bt s e R e Eaus s e nnEe b rasRenas
Gain on dlsposmon of real estate and real estate, mveslments ..........
Foreign currency cxcha.ngc AN e
Income (expense) from derivatives, net.....
Minority interest in iNCOME .......ovvriirin e e ensssrans

Income from contmumg OPETRIIONS «..ccuvimrcvrssismsienare s st s ssmnenes
Cumulative effect of. a change in accountmg pnncnplc .................
Discontinued operanons ............................................................

Net income

Net income allocation:
Allocable to preferred shareholders:
" Based on diStBUtONS PAIA ...ceereceererreereeerecnerisscssenrenceanseareos
* Based on redempticns of preferred stock (Note 2)
Allocable to Equity, Stock, SETies A.....ovivoveeremrnrecrrennnerenseneersensesseas
Allocable to common shareholders.................... reterisee e s saraaneas s

Net income per common share — basic
CONtINUING OPELALIONS ...cooceoereeeeeremerecsemetereeseeeesoesseasebecssssnssesscssseses
Discontinued operations...

Net income per common share — diluted
Continuing OPETALIONS.....cociviecvicms st s e s e rase s

Discontinued opé:rations ..... et trore e et na e e e e e e ne e ear bk en

Net income per depositary share of Equity Stock, Series A (basic and
diluted) ..o

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding .....c.eovecencenninns .

Weighted average shares of Equity Stock, Series A (basic and diluted) .

2006 2005 2004
$ 1,239,949 $ 951,370 861,665
109,907 92,230 91,101
31,799 16,447 5,391
1,381,655 1,060,047 058,157
429,196 320,589 300,355
71,364 ° 57,712 61,589
437,984 196,232 182,890
84,661 21115 18,813
33,062 8216 760
1,056,267 603,864 564,407
325,388 456,183 393,750
11,895 24,883 22,564
Lo (1,917) (1,250)
2,177 T3099 1.317
336 - .
3,926 - -
(31,883) (32,651) (49,913)
311,839 449,507 366,468
578 - -
1,609 6,796 (255)
$ 314,026 $ 456393 366,213
$ 214218 $ 173,017 157,925
31,493 7,538 8,724
21°424 21,443 - 21,501
46,891 . 254,395 178,063
$ 314,026 $ 456393 - 366,213
$ 0.32 $ 193 1.39
0.01 0.05 .
$ 033 $ 1.98 139
$ 0.32 $ .. 192 1.38
0.01 0.05 -
$ 0.33 $ . 197 1.38
$ 2.45 $ 2.45 2.45
142,760 128,159 127,836
143,715 128,819 128,681
8,752 - 8,776

8,744

See accompanying notes.
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(Amounts in thousands)
2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities: . W e,
NELINCOMIE o1 vvvvvreseseesesstranearesssessassrasraseass sesessmssemsesmtasmsseseseebtsitadsbbessbeass s s s ma s ben e o $ 314,026 § 456,393 £ 366,213
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of note Premium (NOWE8)..... o ST eeeemscsseserssssersssnsseserenesneenees _ (3,109) (1,026) L.
Gain on sales of real estate assets, net, including discontinued operahons ; o 4,547 " (8,279 (2,288)
Real estate lmpalrment associated w1th casualty Josses (Note 5)..enriinenne : o 996 .. 2,592, 1,250
Depreciation and AMOTHZAHOMN .......ve..cueeeserseorearersnerssoceassasecsoecces e snsanene e 437984 196,232 182,890
Write off of capitalized development project Costs.........cocvenrincrcnns . 10,354 - Lo
Equity in earnings of real estate entities..........ccovvceecrrreeciressssimnsnienss s s ' (11,895) (24,883) (22,564)
Foreign currency exchange gain ... iincnisivesiss s sesse s ssessssens s (336) - -
Income from derivatives, NEt.......ewicererreniaiscasesersessr s e oresssrasss e (3,926) - 4 -
Distributions received from the real estate cntmes (Note 6) ' 17,659 23,112 . " 20,961
Non-cash portion of stock-based compcnsatmn expense... 3,204 3,883 2,490
MinoTity INLEreSt i IMCOMIE. ...cceu.rueterecrsessesseriosearesssareaserere s emsesenstsessssoassns s rrsssarssscen 31,883 32,651 _ ° 49,913
Other operating ACHVIHIES ........coveeriivsriregerererstassestsniscssnassmses seeresssss s sb s sanssosnsans . (633) 11,373 17,799
Total BdJUSHMENES ..ot ersessnas o DO i 477,674 235,655 250,451
Net cash provided by operating activities ... irciinsiesis s ~ 791,700 692,048 . . - 616,664
Cash flows from investing activities: EE A
Repayment of notes receivable due from affiliate........... ; . E 100,000
Capital improvements to real estate facilities ......... (79,326) {25,890) (35,868}
Construction in PrOCESS ....coueurerererirasncsrrsseserassins {119,648 {86,248) (71,602}
Acquisition of minority 1nterests (Note 11) . . (62,300) . . (92,815) (24 851)
Acquisitions of real estate FACIIEES i iviin et s . .(98,954) . . (254,549) (139,794)
Merger with Shurgard (Note 3)........... : . (137,261) - . -
Consolidation of partnerships (Note 2). 3,024 - oLt .
Investments in real estate entities........ 5 - c Ll (3,005)
Proceeds from sales of real estate and real estate investments.. ... revncveciniiecneeiinns 14,545 14,755 12,648
Proceeds from sales of held-to-maturity investments (Note 2) - 13,074 7,452 20,729
Acquisition of held-to-maturity mvcstments (NOLE 2) ..oveecrceerrceererrenerssaercosarenasssmenens - (6,361) . (13,663)
Other iNVESHING ACHVILES ....ccevreecereeerreretrssinsiemsesieriassessisssiensssas s rmssssens st sbesesssenenss . (20,650 . .. . - A (2,232)
Net cash used in mvmstmg BCHVIHES. c..veveerreererrnrssisaneesesasmssmsassasassssssaronsstonsssstonsens : (487,496) (443,656) (157,638)
Cash flows from financing activities: ' T -
Principal payments on notes payable a.nd bank credit fac:lmfs vieiiveemsessneeestereneiine (711;557) (14,543) (41,204)
Repayment of debt to related party (Note 11) - ®4,513) 7 - .
Proceeds from borrowings on bank credit facilities ........coocoieslelnnnneninssanecseenen: © 360,000 - -0 -
Proceeds from borrowing on European nétes payable ........ S 28,891 - - -
Contributions recejved from European minority interests .. rerreened 15,800 S -
Net proceeds from issuances of common stock.......................:. 85,369 7,511 " 149929
Net proceeds from issuances of cumulanve preferred stock 1,272,568 606,585 © 476,234
Repurchases of COMMON StOCK ......vvvesersinrenaseasonseerassscmermersceececns : : - (4,990) " {20,295)
Redemption of cumulative preferred stock (826,250) (112,409) . -(316,331)
Redemption of preferred partnership iMtErests ...........eu.mumssemrereeereronsenssienssniiomennnneios = 1 (85,000 0T 7 Ao
Issuance of preferred parmership INTETESES........o.cvveeurtrereremseeseeessirsemsrmsessecesemmreeseeseeres 100,000 S -
Distributions paid to shareholders...... oo s (533,861). (438,660)* V(410,260
Distributions paid to holders of preferred parinership interests (Note 11).. {19,055) (16,147 " (30,423)
Distributions paid (0 other Minority INTETESES, .-......coveriinrisresinisnssrmss st 7 (16,300) (18,177} - (21,349)
Net proceeds from financing through acquisition joint venture (Note 9) . % viecrnnn, . 19,197 - 16,095
- Net cash used i in ﬁnancmg ACHVILIES 1.eeeeeeeeeere et e et e {244,395y  (121,146). ~ (297,604)
Net increase in cash and cash EQUIVAIBNES .o.e.eoeeeeeeerteceee s s e esrssestsstacs s ssennss s © 59,809 127,246 .. 161,422
Net effect of foreign exchange translation on cash : e 2,274 S .-
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year .......cooceverveeccrnescrrencrsernrecrmssesrannes 493,501 366,255 204,833
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year ... $ 555,584 $ 493,501 £ 366,255

PUBLIC.STORAGE; INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS -
For¢ach of the three years in.the period ended December-31, 2006

See accompanying notes. -
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -
For each’of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006
’ (Amounts in thousands)

. (Continued)
P ' :
L . ' T - 2006 2005 12004
Supplemental schedule of non cash investing and financing activities: , ’ : ’
Real estate acquired in exchange for assumption of notes payable....... .ot $  (4,590) ' -
Notes payable assumed in connection with the acquisition of real estate ........... 4,590 ' -
Merger with Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc (Note 3): -
‘Real estate facilities ... oo ermer e erreraresarans (4.887,507) -
Construction in process...... — ~ T {91,000) s C
Intangible assets............. i (584,165) -
Other as8etS...covecsreerrierennns . (95,899) -
- Accrued and other liabilities 190,419 - -
Minority interest...........ocoorierinnnes 144,196 -
+__ Notes payable.......... ; 2,000,549 - . - -
COMMION SEOCK ...eeitiestiirieiirnestiiareie st aeesivesesssrsnesssamesseessansessssanesassrnrassosssssassns 3,801 : -
Paid in capnal ................................................................................................ 3,182,255 C ‘-
Consohdation of afﬁhated entities: . g
MIDOTILY IMEETESE..o..ieccimeee e et ceeneeecansrersarasssnsaressssseansseneaseaenssrans . 3,963 co -
" Real estate facilities A (22,459) v ose
Investments 20,846 -
Other assets ) (167) - - -
Accrued and other liabilities 841 ‘-
Revaluation of debt to joint venture partner (Note 9): : ; : o r
" Debt due to joint venture partncr .................................................................... 1,386 -
Other BSSELS ..eeecruiceoercreasaaceneorsrensavressasirasessrnaenssrars st rans s en s e ara s e e e s nssranrasvin (1,386) -
3,
Forelgn currency adjustment :

- Real estate facilities........co.cevuens ectretieete it a Tt e e n e sr e ans aren (34,696) .-
Construction in process....... (1,373 . -
Intangible assets, net .......... preernrseseraares (6,381) - -

Other BSSELS ...cveeeeearareercesranaies etTai bbbttt rane et cees s anoe s enantrasara N CIY)) ’ -

NOLES PAYADIE........ccvvvrrervrresisvrsnsinsessessesssrasrss e ssss s s ssasesnssses —- 17,970 ' -

Accrued and other liabilities... s rarernes 4237 -

MiLOFItY IREETESLS c...vcreireerirrescreranefuassasinesssenssessbemesseesssmessensesnneas - 3,905 C.om
Partnershlp units converted into shares of common stock (Note 11):

Minority interest . (155) -

Common stock . . ) | -

_ Paid-in capital . . ' , 154 -
Retirement of Con'unon Stock and Equlty Stock, Series A received as a \

distribution from aﬁihatod entities (Note 6). -

Common Stock. ......................................... ’ ’ - (64)

Paid-in capital'........ccovvemerveneerrones ) - (14,456) '

Investment in real estate entltles : - 14 52().

See accompanying notes,
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For each of the three years in ‘the périod ended December 31, 2006

(Amounts in thousands)

N . . . . .

Acquisition of mmonty interest in Consohdated Jomt Venture in exchange for debt -

Minority interest — Other partnership interests.,
Real estate facilities
Debt to related party

Acquisition of real estate facilities in exchange for mino'rity interests and
assumption of mortgage notes payable:

Real estate fRCILEES. ... .c.coovvrerrcerrvenesesinesseeecessersrnsrerrsrisesssnss SRS -
Mortgage notes payable......... . . . : -
Preferred partriership interests R NN -
th '
. - 4 ' -
1 . aed ' .
', 4
 t N .
' Y n ' , £
o’
+ 1
.
' . -
- " ’ "
- . - b
s i Fa
' v FERIN | [
> r
. \ D i

See accompanying notes.
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(2,500) -
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25,000




PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S December 31, 2006

Description of the business

Public Storage, Inc. (referred to herein as “the Company”, “we”, “us” or “our”) is a California
corporation, which was organized in 1980, We are a fully integrated, self-administered and self-
managed real estate investment trust (“REIT”) whose principal business activities include the
aéquisition, development, ownership and operation of self-storage facilities which offer storage spaces
for' lease, generally ‘on a month-to-month basis, for personal and business use. ‘Our self-storage
facilities are located primarily in the United States. As a result of the merger with Shurgard Storage
Centers, Inc. (“Shurgard”) on August 22, 2006, we have facilities located in several Western European
countries (Note 3).

In addition_to our self-storage facilities, we own (i) interests in commercial properties,
containing commercial and industrial rental space, (i) interests in facilities that lease storage
containers, and (iii) other ancillary operations comprised principally of reinsurance of policies against
losses to goods stored by our self-storage tenants, retail sales of storage related products and truck
rentals at our self-storage locations.

At December 31, 2006, we had direct and indirect equity interests in 2,003 self-storage
facilities located in 38 states operating under the “Public Storage” name, and 166 self-storage facilities
located in seven Western European nations which operate under the *“Shurgard Storage Centers” name.
We also have direct and indirect equity interests in approximately 20 million net rentable square feet of
commercial space located in 1] states in the United States. References throughout to the number of
facilities and square footage are unaudited.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements are presented on an accrual basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include the accounts of the Company
and our consolidated subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. :

Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the December 31,
2006 presentation. In previous presentations, intangible assets were reported separately from goodwill
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. We have now reclassified the intangible assets to
goodwill (see “Goodwill and Intangible Assets” below). Certain reclassifications have also been made
from previous presentations as a resuit of discontinued operations (See Note 4),

Consolidation policy

Entities in which we have an interest are first evaluated to determine whether, in accordance
with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Interpretation No. 46R,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitics,” they represent Variable Interest Entities. We have
determined that we have several Variable Interest Entities that we are the primary beneficiaries of and,
accordingly such entities are consolidated.

Entities that are not Variable Interest Entities are consolidated when we control the entity.
For purposes of determining coantrol, when we are the general pariner, we are considered to control the
partnership unless the limited partners possess substantial “kick-out” or “participative” rights as
defined in Emerging Issues Task Force Statement 04-5 ~ “Determining whether a general partner or
the general partners as a group, controls a limited parmership or similar entity when the limited
partners have certain rights” (“EITF 04-5").




PUBLIC STORAGE, INC."
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 ¥

. The accounts of the entities we contrel along with the accounts of the Variable Interest
Entities that we are the primary beneficiary of {collectively, the “Consolidated Entities”) are included
i in- our consolidated financial statements, along with those of the Company All significant
| intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated: Ce i T
AN T Ta
l In accordance with the guidance of EITF 04-5, effective January 1, 2006 we commenced
consolidating- the ‘accounts of three partnerships that we- previously ‘accounted for on the equity
- .method. »»Our investment.in these entities, totaling $20,846,000, -wds allocated to~the real estate
- facilities, cash, other assets, liabilities, and mmonty interests of these entmes as déscribed in the table
+ below (amounts in thousands).. - ‘ : . . . . e

LI o S

Total
. 1M § v . . ! . . I ' . a : . “a -
SR K . Real estate facilities...........ie..  °§ 22,459 S

' » L Cash.......... N ireesenenereres e 3,024 e o
o Other assets ... w167 et
/.~ ¢ " Accrued and other llabllmes .- (84D .

T L Mmontymterest ............... Ve W(3,963) - - 0.
ey S "$ 20846 - -

4

We account for affiliated entities ‘over which we have s:gmficant 'influerice * (the
“Unconsolidated Entities™) using the equity method of accounting.

S F Coa b

Use of esnmates

LYY L . s 'I Ve . ." R

. 'I'he prepamtlon of the consohdated financial statements m conformlty w1th Us. general]y
. accepted accounting pnncxples requires management o mal(e estlmates and assumptwns that ‘affect the
amounts reported in’the consolidated ﬁnancml statements and accompa.nymg ‘hotes.  Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

. .
VoL e, o o
. . h . .

Income taxes .
o

- For all taxable years subsequent to 1980, the Company quahﬁed and intends to continue to

quallfy as a REIT, as defined in Section 856 of the Intemal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we are not

“ taxed on that pOl'tlDIl of our taxable income which is dlsmbuted to our shareholders prov1ded that we

meet certain tests. We believe we have met these tests durmg 2006 2005, and 2004 and, accordingly,
" no provision for i mcome taxes has been made in the accompanymg consohdated fmanmal statements.

] . . o
Financial instri:.ments ' -

. We have est:unated the fair value of our ﬁnanc:lal mstruments using available market
information and appropnate valuation methodologies. Cons1derable Judgmcnt is required in
interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, estithated fair values are not

) necessanly mdxcatlve of the amounts that could be reahzed in current market exchanges.

L For purposes “of financial statement presentatlon we cons:der all highly, hquld ﬁnanc:al
.. instruments such as short-term treasury, secunues or mvestment grade short-term commercml paper to
. be cash eqmva]ents . . . .

S, " Due to the short penod to maturity of our cash and cash eqmvalents accounts recelvable

other financial instruments included in other .assets, lme of credit and short-term bank ﬁnancmg,

. vanable rate debt, and accrued and other habllmes,‘the carrying - values as presented on the
.consohdated balance sheets are reasonable estimates of fair, value

F% |




_ PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

Financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents
and accounts receivable, Cash and cash equivalents, which consist of short-term investments,
including commercial paper, are only invested in entities with an investment grade rating. Accounts
receivable are not a significant portion of total assets 'and- are comprised of a large number of
individual customer balances.

Due to the acquisition of European subsidiaries in the merger with Shurgard, the results of our
operations and our financial position are affected by the fluctuations in the-value of the euro, and to a
lesser extent, other European currencies, against the U.S. dollar. Also, we are exposed to foreign
currency exchange risk related to intercompany debt with or between our European subsidiaries that

_ are not denominated in the functional currency of the subsidiary or the investee.

Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006 is $32,496,000 ($18,962,000 at
December 31, 2005} held by our captive insurance entities. Insurance and other regulations place
significant restrictions on our ability to withdraw these funds for purposes other than insurance
activities. Other assets at December 31, 2006 include investments totaling $6,764,000 ($19,838,000 at
December 31, 2005) primarily held-to-maturity Federal government agency securities stated at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Other-assets at December 31, 2006 also include
derivative financial instrumernts totaling $11,810,000 (none at December 31, 2005) reported at fair
value. See Note 10 for further discussion of the fair value of our derivative financial instruments, and
Note 8 for further discussion of the fair value of our notes payable. .

Real Fstate Facilities

Real estate facilities are recorded at cost. Costs associated with the acquisition, development,
construction, renovation, and 1mprovement of properties are capitalized. Interest, property taxes, and
other costs assocnated with development incurred during’ the constructlon penod are capitalized as
building cost, Expendltuxes for repairs and maintenance expense are charged'to expense when
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line methiod over the estimated useful hves of
the buildings and improvements, which are generally between 5 and 25 years.

Evaluation of asset impairment

" We evaluate i 1mpa1.rment of goodwﬂl annually through a two-step process In the first step, if
the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwnl! applies is equal to or greater than the carrying
amount of the assets of the reporting unit, mcludmg the goodwill, the goodwnll is considered
unimpaired and the second step is unnecessary. If; however, the fair value of the reporting unit
including goodwill is less than the carrying amount, the second step is performed. In ‘this test, we
compute the implied fair value of the goodwill based upon the allocations that would be made to the
goodwill, other assets and liabilities of the reporting unit if a business combination transaction were
consummated at the fair value of the reporting unit. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that
the implied fair value of the goodwﬂl is less than the goodwill’s carrying amount. No impairments of
our goodwill were 1dentlf' ed in our annual evaluanons at December 31 2006 2005 and 2004. -

We evaluate xmpasrment of long—llved assets on a quarterly basis. We first eva]uate these
assets for indicators of impairment such as a) a sngmﬁeant decrease in the market price of a long-lived
asset, b a significant adverse change in the extent or ma.nner in which a long-lived asset is being used

' of'in its physical condition, ¢) a significant adverse change in legal factors or the business climate that

could affect the value of the long-lived asset, d) an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the
amount originally projected for the acquisition or construction of the long-lived asset, or ¢) a current-

_penod operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a

projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of the Iong—llved
asset. When any such indicators of impairment are noted, we compare the carrying value of these
assets to the future estimated undiscounted cash flows atiributable to these asséts. If the asset’s
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

recoverable amount is less than the carrying value of the asset, then an imi)airment charge is booked
for the excess of carrying value over the asset’s fair value.

Any long-lived assets which we expect to sell or otherwise dispose of prior to their previously
estimated useful life are stated at what we estimate to be the lower of their estimated net realizable
value (less cost to sell) or their carrying value. During 2004 we recorded impairment charges related
to containers, trucks, and other equipment in our containerized storage segment identified for closure

* (see Note 4). . These impairment charges were based upon the differential between book value and the
estimated net realizable value, which was based upon prices for similar assets, and were equal to the
net proceeds ultimately received. No additional impairments were identified from our evaluations,
except as noted under “Accounting for casualty losses” below.

Accounting for casualty losses

: _ Our policy is to record casualty losses or gains in the pertod the casualty occurs equal to the
differential between (a) the book value of assets destroyed and (b) insurance proceeds, if any, that we
expect to receive in accordance with our.insurance contracts. Potential insurance proceeds that are
subject to uncertainties, such as interpretation of deductible provisions of the governing agreements,
are treated as a contingent proceeds in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. § (*SFAS 57), and not recorded until the uncertainties are satisfied. During 2005 and 2004, we
incurred casualty losses totaling $1,917,000 and $1,250,000, respectively, due to damage caused by
hurricanes. . e .
P . :
Accounting for stock-based compensation

We- utilize the Fair Value Method (as defined in Note 14} of accounting for our employee
stock options issued after December 31, 2001, and utilize the APB:25 Method (as defined in Note 14)
for employee stock options issued prior to January 1, 2002. Restricted stock unit expense is recorded
over the relevant vesting period. See Note 14 for more information with respect to our accounting for
employee stock options and restricted stock units. . : .

Other assets o Cos

Other assets primarily consists of prepaid expenses, investments-in held to maturity debt
securities, accounts recéivable, assets associated with our containerized storage business, merchandise
inventory and rental trucks. : . e : -’

Accrued and other liabilities : . |

Accrued and other liabilities consist primarily of real property tax accruals, value-added tax
with respect to our European operations, prepayments-of .rents,; trade payables, losses and loss
adjustment liabilities for our self-insured risks (described below), and accrued interest. Prepaid rent
totaled $64,291,000 at December 31, 2006 ($26,145,000 at December 31, 2005), while property and
.value-added tax accruals approximated $80,336,000 at December 31, 2006 (345,360,000 at December
31, 2005). - . e N :

We are self-insured for a portion of the risks associated with our property and casualty losses.
We also utilize third-party insurance carriers to provide property and liability insurance coverage to
limit our self insurance exposure. We accrue liabilitics for uninsured losses and loss adjustment
expense, which at December 31, 2006 totaled $31,532,000 ($32,797,000 at December 31, 2005).
Liabilities for losses and loss adjustment expenses include an amount we determine from loss reports
and individual cases and an amount, based on recommendations from an independent actuary that is a
member of the American Academy of Actuaries using a frequency and severity method, for losses
incurred but not reported. Determining the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expense is
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

- based upon estimates. ' : ‘ e L
Through a wholly-owned subsidiary, we reinsure policies against claims for losses to goods
stored by tenants in our self-storage faéilities.- For our United States operations, we have third-party
insurance coverage for losses from any individual event that exceeds a loss-of $1,500,000, to a
- maximum of $9,000,000. - Estimated uninsured losses are accrued as ancillary costs of operations.
Whrlc we beheve that. the amount of estlmated accrued liabilities with respect to tenant clalms
- and property and casualty losses are adequate, the ultimate losses may be in excess of or less than the
amounts that we have accrued. The methods for making such estimates and for establishing the
resulting Habilities are regularly reviewed: . . . : ce

Intangible assets and poodwill . - - .

"+ - Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in business combinations. . Each business.combination from
which our goodwill arose was for. the acquisition of single businesses and accordingly, the allocation of
our goodwill to our business segments (principally Domestic Self-Storage) is based directly on such
" acquisitions, OQur'goodwill has an indeterminate life in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Fma.ncral Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”) .

In prior penods mtang1ble assets (original acquisition cost of $165,000,000 and net- book
value of $98,081,000 at December 31, 2005) were presented on our consolidated balance sheets. For
all periods presented herein, we have reclassified this intangible asset to goodwill and, in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 142 as applied to the reclassification effective April 1, 2006, we ceased
amortization. Included in depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31,

- 2006 is $1,651,000 ($6,604,000-for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004) with respect to
these assets. Our goodwill balances of $174,634,000 and $176,285,000 are reported net. of
accurmnulated amortization of $85,085,000 and -$83,434,000 at. December . 31,F 2006 and 2005
respectively, on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. . .

As a resuit of the merger with Shurgard (Note 3), we acquired finite-lived intangible assets
comprised of storage tenants in place valued at $530,528,000, certain land leases with rent payments
that are below market valued at $34,813,000, and the “Shurgard” tradename, which we contimue 10 use
'in.Europe, valued at $18,824,000. Our intangible assets were increased-by $6,381,000 in the year
ended December 31, 2006 due to the impact of changes in exchange rates. . -

The tenant intangible assets are amortized relative to the expected future benefit of the tenants
in place to each period, and the land lease intangibles are amortized relative to the benefit of the below-

. market lease. The Shurgard tradename has an indefinite life and, accordingly, we do not amortize this-

*. asset but instead a.na.lyzc it on an annual basis for recoverabxhty

Amortization expensc of $175, 94-4 000 was recorded for our finite-lived intaxrgible assets for
the year ended December 31, 2006. The estimated annual amortization expense for our ﬁmte-hved
intangible assets for each of the next ﬁve years ending December 31 is as follows:

2007 .. L $ 243282000

- 2008 - . 70,518,000 ,
200 -~ . : . . 22,395,000
2010. L _ 13,830,000

'_2011 and beyond 39, 372 000 L

LA LI * o - 4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Revenue and gxpense recognition

Rental income, which is generally earned pursuant to month-to-month leases for storage
space, is recogmzed as eamned. Promotional discounts are recognized as a reduction to rental income
over the promotional period, which is generally during the first month of occupancy. Late.charges and
administrative fees are recognized as income when collected. Tenant reinsurance premiums are
recognized as premium revenue when carned: Revenues from merchandise sales and truck rentals are
recognized when carned. Interest income is recognized as earned. Equity in earnings of real estate
entities is recognized based on our ownership interest in the eamings of each of the Unconsolidated

Entmcs
l . L
,  We accrue for property tax expensc based upon estimates and hxstoncal trends l.t" these
estimates are incorrect, the timing of expense recognition could be affected.

Cost of operations, general and administrative expense, interest expense, as well as television,
yellow page, and other advertising expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Foreign Exchange Translation Policy _' . . 0
T - " . B N . 1 Vo . . - N ’

The local currency is the functional currency for our European subsidiaries. Assets and
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates while revenues and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates in effect during the period. Equity is translated at historical rates and the
resulting cumulative translation adjustments are included as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) until the transtation adjustments are realized.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded foreign currency exchange gains of

. $336,000 on our consolidated statement of income. . Included in other accumulated comprehensive

income was a cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment gain of $19,329,000 at December 31,

2006. ; . : ] TR

. Derivative Financial Instruments ™ -~ . ’ -

1 - N )

. In conncctlon with our merger with Shurgard we acquired certain preexzstmg denvauve
financial instruments held by Shurgard (the “Shu.rgard Derivatives”), including interest rate caps,

 interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts. These. denvauves

were entered into by Shurgard in order to mitigate currency and exchange rate ﬂuctuauon nsk in

connection with European borrowings. We do not-intend to use derivative financial instruments for

speculative or trading purposes.

In accordancc with the provisions of Statcmcm of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
Accounting for. Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 1337), derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value and recognized on the balance sheet as.assets or
liabilities. | _ o o o

As.of December 31, 2006, and for the year then ended, none of the Shurgard Derivatives were
considered effective hedges because we believe it is not highly hkely that the debt and the related
derivative instruments will remain outstandmg for their entire. contractual period. Accordmgly,
changes in the fair values of the derivatives are reflected in earnings, along with the related cash flows
from these instruments, under “Income (expense) from derivatives, net” on our consolidated statement
of income.

t e !

Other Comprehensive Income -

Our comprehensive income is as follows: A
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December 31, 2006
For the Year Ended December 31,
2006 , 2005 2004
- v -{Amounts in thousands)

Net income ...ceevnvieneee e 3 314,026 ¥ 456393 . § - 366,213 -
Accumutated other comprdlenswe income: Tt . .

Foreign currency translation adJustments ’ 19,329 - : -
Total comprehensive iNCOME......occucvtvevenreenene $ 333,355 ‘$ 456,393 - § 366,213

The foreign currency translation adjustment represents the net currency translation adjustment
gains and losses related to our European subsidiaries acquired in the merger with Shurgard measured
from the date of the merger through December 31 2006. Amounts are presented net of minority
interests.

Environmental costs '

v

Our policy is 10 accrue environmental assessments and estimated remediation cost when it is
probable that such efforts will be required and the related costs can be reasonably estimated. Our
current practice is to conduct environmental investigations in connection with property acquisitions,
Although there can be no assurance, we.are not aware of any environmental contamination of any of
our facilities, which individually or in the aggrcgatc would - be material to our ovcrall business,

financial condition; or results of operauons

Net income per common share - -

In computing net income allocated to our comrion shareholders, we first allocate net income
to our preferred shareholders. Net income allocated to: our preferred shareholders consists of (i)
distributions paid to the holders totaling $214;218,000, $173,017,000,-and $157,925,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, combined with (ii) the effect of applying
Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-42 (“EITF D42”), “The Effect on the Calculation of Earnings per
Share for the Redemption or the Induced Conversion of Preferred Stock.” EITF D-42 provides, among
other things, that any excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred to the holders of preferred
stock redeemed over the carrying amount of the preferred stock should be subtracted from'net earnings
" to determine net earnings available to common stockholders in the calculation of earnings per share,
The application of EITF D42 resulted in an additional $31,493,000, $7,538,000, and $8,724,000 for the
years ended December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, of net income allocated to our preferred
shareholders.

Income allocated to our common shareholders has been further ailocated among our two
classes of common stock; our regiilar common stock ‘and our Equity Stock, Series A. The allocation
among each class was based upon the two-class method. Under the two-class method, earnings per
share for each class of common stock are determined according to dividends declared (or accumulated})
and participation rights in undistributed earnings, or to the extent of contractual participation in iosses.
The Equity Stock, Series A is deemed to contractually participate in losses if its liquidation proceeds,
assuming liquidation of the Company at book value, is reduced as a result of the loss. Under the two-
class method, the Equity Stock, Series A was allocated net income of $21,424,000, $21,443,000, and
$£21,501,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, Remaining income
of $46,891,000, $254,395,000, and $178,063,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively, was allocated to the regular common stockholders.

Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted average common shares
outstanding (prior to the dilutive impact of stock options and restricted stock. units outstanding).
Diiluted net income per common share is computed using the weighted average common shares
outstanding (adjusted for the dilutive impact of stock options and restricted stock units outstanding
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December 31, 2006
computed using the treasury stock method, that totaled 955,000 in 2006, 660,000 in 2005, and 845 000
.. in2004). . ‘ "o e Y
3 Merger with Shurpard ‘ )

.- . On August 22, 2006, the Company merged with Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc. (“Shurgard”),

. a REIT which had interests in 487 self-storage facilities in-the United States,and 160 seif-storage

facilities in Europe. We believe this merger will provide a number of strategic and financial benefits

and growth opportunities for us by solidifying our position as the largest owner and operator of self-

.storage facilities in the United States, enhancing access to capital, eliminating duplicative general and

administrative expenses, improving cost efficiencies, increasing growth opportumtles and providing
grcater geographlc and ﬁnanc:a] diversification. . L. o A S

N ! S

¢+ Shurgard shareholders recelved 0 82 shares of our common stock for each share of Shurgard
common stock they owned. Total consideration for. the; merger approximated .$5,323,956,000,
comprised of (i) the issuance of 38,913,187 shares of Public Storage common stock (valued at
approximately $3,116,850,000 based upon the average of Public Storage’s share closing price for five
days before, the day of and five days after the acquisition announcement date of March 7, 2006), (ii)
the assumption of Shurgard’s domestic and European notes payable and capital leases with a fair value
of approximately $1,396,777,000 of> which $67,275,000 was repaid following the merger, (iii) the
assumption of Shurgard’s line of credit totaling $603,772,000, which was repaid following the merger,
(iv) the issuance of vested common stock options in exchange for Shurgard stock options, with an
estimated intrinsic value of approxunately £69,296,000, and (v) $137,261,000 in cash, comprised of
$137,916,000 to redeem Shurgard’s outstanding preferred stock at hqmdatlon value, approximately
$47,524,000 in d:rect costs of the merger, less $48,179,000 in cash held by Shurgard at the date of the

merger. oot
We have allocated this aggregate purchase price to the tangible and mtanglblc net assets, as
follows (amounts in thousands): e T

Operating real estate facilities , Coe - $ 4,887,507
Construction in process g - C ) . o 91,000
Intangible assets (Note 2) o , o . LT, 584,165
Other assets : v . o ‘95,899
Accrued and other liabilities L ’ o o ’ (1 90; 419)
Minority interest : : T CURY T (144]196)

Total allocated Purchase Price to net assets acquired k ) g 53231956
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As described more fully in Note 2, intangible assets consist of the estimated value of
Shurgard’s existing tenants in place, the estimated value of Shurgard’s existing land leases, and the
estimated value of Shurgard’s tradename, which we expect to continue to use in Eu.rope

. The results of operations of the facilities acquired from Shurgard have been mcluded in our
consolidated financial statements since the merger.date of August 22, 2006. "The unaudited pro forma
data presented below assumes that the merger occurred as of thebeginning of the respective periods,
" and includes pro forma adjustments to (i} increase depreciation expense to reflect our book-basis for
the buildings acquired, (ii) increase amortization expense to reflect the intangible assets acquired'in.the
merger, (iii) decrease interest income and increase income allocated to preferred shareholders to reflect
the financing of-the merger with cash on hand and the proceeds from preferred stock, and (iv) decrease
the historical general and administrative expense of Shurgard that is expected:-to be eliminated as a
result of the merger. The unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes
only and do not purport to be indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the

merger been consummated at the beginning of the periods presented. " ;
. . t . . IR
L For the Year ended : S
: - " December 31, - ; S
, . 2006 2005 ey
, f {Amounts in thousands, +e S
(o except per share data) ) e
. . . . (Unaudxted) - D
' Revenues $1,704,757  $1,539,087 . n .
Net income : $ 200321 § 103,958 e
Loss percommon sha.re ' “ R
BAasiCouinee ot srrest e $ (040 $  (0.80) o .
Diluted $ (040 5 (0.30) b bt

. - N , ¢
Discontinued operations

We segregate all of our disposed components that have operations that can be distinguished
" from the rest of the Company and will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company ina
disposal transaction. Discontinued operations principally consists of the historical operations relatcd to
facilities that were closed and are no longer in operation and facilities that have been disposed of exther
through condemnation by a local governmental agency or sale. The following table summanzes the
historical operations with respect to these facilities: .

scontin 4 tions:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Amounts in thousands)
Rental income $ 688 $ 1470 $ 9,599
Cost of operations...........cevecevrmereeecnas (219) (744) (7,379)
Depreciation expense........ (234) (253) (1,455)
Asset impairment charges, (996) - {1,575)
Lease termination costs ........ - - {416)
Net gain on dispositions .........ccounenene 2,370 6,323 971
Total discontinued operations.............. $ 1,609 $ 6,79 $ (255)
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5. . Real estate facilities .

Actmty in real estate facﬂmcs during 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as fol]ows

e 2006 T 2005 2004
' ) v ot (Amoums in thousands) :
Operating facilities, at cost: : . . -
Beginning balance ... $ 5,930,484 $ 5,510,750 $ 5,125,498
Facilities consohdated pursuam to EITF 04-5 (Note 2) 22,459 - -
Acquired in the merger with Shurgard (Note 3).. 4,887,507 . . -
Acquisition of real estate facilities......coueiiisrein S 103,544 254,549 259487
Dispositions.... . ) R (5,860) (8,582) (6,785)
Newly developed famlmes opcned for opcratlons 161,131 86,388 93,017
Casualty loss (Note 2) e ) - (8,953) ° ©(2,874)
Abandoned BACIlity ..ot tesesarin ¥ (1,545) ' L=t -
Acquisition of minority interests (Note 11).. 50,123 69,942 6,539
Capital imMpProvements..........oueeesmssermsnaresinns 79,326 . -; 25,890 35,868
Empact of foreign exchange rate changes........oooooceiinnceena 34,696 - -
Ending batance 11,261,865 _ 5,930,484 5,510,750
Accumulated depreciation: . S
Beginning balance ~ (1,500,128) (1,320,200) (1,153,059)
Additions during the year (255,615) . .. (186,048) (169,471)
Casualty loss (Note 2) B : 2,966 1,624
Ahandoned facility 549 S -
Dispositions 832 3,154 706
Impact of foreign cxchangc rate changes - £ ! - -
Ending balance ... ; {1,754,362) - 1,500,128y (1,320,200)
Construction in process: ‘ ’
Beginning balance... 54,472 56,160 81,856
Current dcvclopment ............................... LS 119,648 ) 86,248 71,602
Acquired in the merger with Shurgard (Note 3) .......... 21,000 - -
Write off of development costs (10,354) - -
DHSPOSIIONS ...vveeervrususersrirseriersrensessrssormasssmssssssssassanss (4,970) .. (1,048) (4,281)
Newly developed facilities opened for operations (161,131) (86,888) (93,017
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes .................... 1,373 . . - -
Ending balance S —————————— 90,038 ' 54,472 56,160
Total real estate TACTHEES ...ovveeeeveremsneeisnreensssisssenrsssressessosmseeeas $ 9597541 % 4,484,828 $ 4,246,710

+ oA

During 2006, we completed several development and cxpahsion projections which in

aggregate added approximately 1,266,000 net rentable square feet of self-storage space at a total cost
of $161,131,000 (1,472,000 net rentable square feet at a total cost of $86,888,000 in 2005 and
1,217,000 net rentable square feet at a total cost of $93,017,000 in 2004) During 2006, 2005 and
. 2004, we also sold several parcels of vacant land and disposed of real estate as a result of
condemnation by local govemmental agencies. As a result of the dlsposmons in 2006, we received
proceeds totaling $14,545 000 and recorded an aggregate gain on disposition of $4,547,000 (proceeds
totaled $14,755,000 and $12 648,000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively, and.related gain on disposition
totaled $8,279,000,and $2,288,000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively)., s
_ Excluding sclf-storage facilities acquired in the merger with Shurgard (see Note 3), during
2006, we acquired 12 self-storage facilities (877,000 net rentable square feet) from third parties at an
aggregate cost of $103,544, 000 consisting of $98,954,000 in cash and assumed mortgage debt tomlmg

- $4,590,000., . L .

. : o g

In 2005, we acquired from third parties 32 self-storage facilities (2,390,000 net rentable
square feet) at an aggregate cost of $254,549,000 in cash. In 2004 we acquired interests from third
parties in 45 self-storage facilities (3,109,000 net rentable square feet) at an aggregate cost of
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$259,487,000, comprised of $139,794,000 cash, $94,693,000 in assumed debt, and the issuance of $25
million of our Series Z Perpetual Preferred Units.

In 2005 and 2004, we recorded casualty losses of $1,917,000 and $1,250,000, respectively as
a result of damage to our facilities from hurricanes. These casualty losses were comprised of the book
- value of assets-damaged ($5,987,000 in 2005 and $1,250,000 in 2004) less, in the case of 2005,
insurance proceeds of approximately $4 070,000. Ne insurance proceeds were received for losses:
occurring in 2004, - ‘ to
One of these facilities damaged by the aforementioned hurricanes’ was abandoned in 2006,
because it was deemed economically impractical to rebuild. Because the book value is no longer
recoverable, we recorded an impairment charge of $996,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006,
representing the remaining book value of the facility. This impairment charge, along w1th the
historical operations of this facility, is included in discontinued operations. .

Construction in process at December 31, 2006 includes 48 projects (2,256,000 net rentable
square feet, unaudited) which expand or enhance the visual and structural appeal of our’existing self-
storage facilities with costs incurred of $39,502,000 at December 31, 2006 and total estimated costs to
complete of $148,114,000 (unaudited). In addition, we have 8 projects to develop new self-storage "
facilities in Europe (389,000 aggregate net rentable square feet, unaudited), with costs incurred at
December 31, 2006 of $41,916,000 and total estimated costs to complete of $36,549,000 (unaudlted)
We also have five parcels held for development with an aggregate of $8,620,000 in costs. )

s -

We capnahze interest incurred on debt during the course of construction of our. se]f-store;gc
facilities. Interest capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2,716,000,
$2,820,000 and $2,617,000, respectively. ) ,

At December 31, 2006, the adjusted basis of real estate facilities for federal tax purposes was.
approximately $9.0 billion (unaudlted) . 3

. g

Investments in real estate entities

At December 31, 2006, investments in real estate entitics consist of our ownership interests in
the Unconsolidated Entities. These interests are non-controlling interests of less than 50% and are |
accounted for using the equity method of .accounting. Accordingly, earnings are recogmzed based
upon our ownership interest in each of these entities. The accounting policies of these entities are
similar to those of the Company .
Approximately $50 million of our consolidated retained’ eammgs is represented by

‘undlstnbuted earnings of these Unconsohdated Entmes :

During 2006, 2005, and 2004, we recognized earnings from cur investments in real estate
entities of $11,895,000, $24,883,000, and $22,564,000, respectively, ‘and received cash ‘distributions
totaling $17,699,000, '$23,112,000, and $20,961,000, respectively. In"addition, during 2005, we
received a distribution from affiliated entities of 635,885 shares of our comman stock and 31 909
depositary shares of our Equity Stock, Series A, with an aggregate book Value of $14, 520,000. -

Equity in éarnings of real estate entities includes our pro rata share of the net impact of
gains/losses on sales of assets and impairment charges relating to the impending sale of real estate
assets as well as our pro rata share of the impact of the application of EITF Topic D-42 on redemptions
of preferred securities recorded by PSB. See the condensed financial information with respect to PSB
below for further information regarding these items recorded by PSB.
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The following table sets forth our investments in the real estate entities at December 31, 2006 and
2005 and our equity in earnings of real estate entities for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006
(amounts in thousands): : e . . . -

Investments in Real Estate Entities at Equity in Earnings of Real Estate Entities for the
December 31, : Year Ended December 31,
12006 | 2005 g 2006 2005 2004
Investment in PSB (8).............. ‘ $ 283,700 $ 288,694 $ 9764 $ 18757 $ 16,895
Other investments (b) .............. 18,205 39,861 2,131 6,126 5,669
Total.coceirevreerrcceiesnnnes $ 301,905 $ 328,555 $ 11,895 $ 24,883 $ 22,564

(2) Included in equity in earnings is the net impact of PSB’s gains on sale of real estate, impairment charges, and
the impact from applying EITF Topic D-42 aggregating a loss of $1,042,000, and income of $7,727,000, and
$4,544,000 in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

(b) As described in Note 2, effective ;lanua:‘y -l, 2006 we commernced consolidating the accounts of three limited
partnerships previously accounted for under the equity method of accounting. As a result, we decreased our
investment in these parmerships by approximately $20,846,000 on January 1, 2006.

* + + !

Investment in PS Business I:"arks, Inc. (“PSB™}

PS Business Parks, Inc. is a REIT traded on the American Stock Exchange, which controls an
operating partnership (collectively, the REIT and the operating partnership are referred to as “PSB”).
We have a 44% common equity interest in PSB as of December 31, 2006. This common equity
interest is comprised of our ownership of 5,418,273 shares of PSB’s common stock and 7,305,355
limited partnership units in the operating partnership at December 31, 2006 and-2005. The limited
partnership units are convertible at our option, subject to certain conditions, on a one-for-one basis into
PSB common stock. Based upon the closing price at December 31,-2006 ($70.71 per share of PSB
common stock), the shares and units had a market value. of approximately $899.7 ‘million as compared
to a book value of $283.7 million. a” . T

At December 31, 2006, PSB’ owned and operated approximately 18.7 million net rentable
square feet of commercial space. In addition, PSB manages commercial space owned by the Company
and the Consolidated Entities pursuant to property management agreements.

The following table sets forth ‘selected financial information of PSB; the amounts represent
100% of PSB’s balances and not our pro-rata share. .o« ¢ : ‘

-

2006 - 2005
L < -+« {Amounts in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, -

Total operating revenue h S .242,839 S 220,183

Costs of operations and other operating expenses ................ ’ (81,717) {71,627
Other income and expense, net....., reerienes 4,299 3,558
Depreciation and amioftization....... (86,216) ‘ (76,178)
Discontinued operations (a)... s T 1,643 - 15,620
Minority interest...... SRRSO v (16,268) (16,262)

NELNCOME 1ovvooeceesemssss s sms s s $ 64,580 $ 75,294

At Dec i, . o : N
Total assets (primarily real estate) i, $ 1462864 § 1463678
Total debt 67,048 25,893
Other liabilities . i et 42,304 39,126
Preferred equity and preferred minority interests................ 705,250 729,100
Common equity and common minority interests.......ouvnee 648,172 669,559

(8) Included in discontinued operations are net gains on sale of real estate facilities totaling 52,328,000
and $18,109,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Other Investments

A b

Other investments consist primarily of an average approximately 22% co-mmon equity
_ownership in five limited partnerships that own an aggregate of 22 self-storage facilities.

The foliowing table sets forth certain condensc'd financial information (representing 100% of
"these entities’ balances and not our pro-rata share) with respect to these other investments:

2006 2005
(Amounts in thousands)

For the ended : .
Total FEVETIUE......ccicr e irssenmsnssenscessasaes $ 17,459 $ l6 563

Cost of operations and other expenses..... 6674 . {6,390)

Depreciation and amortization................. (2,031) (2,039
Net INCOME ...vvcvevererremsrereseessarsesens - % 8,754 ‘$ 8,134

At D ber 31, ’ : ’

Total assets (primarily storage fac:lmm) h) 48,002 b 48,255

Total liabilities — 1,104 - 7 1,240 - -

Total Partners’ equity .........oocosvsueeccnens 46,898 47,015

Bank Credit Facilities . , .

.On December 27, 2006, we entered into a $300 million unsecured short-term credit agreement
-(the “Bridge .Loan”) with a commercial bank that matures April 1, 2007. Pursuant to the credit
agreement, we borrowed $300 million at an initiai interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.30% (5.63% at
December 31, 2006). We used the proceeds from this facility in funding the prepayrment of the €325
million collateralized notes payable that were otherwise due in 2011. See Note 8 for further discussion
of this prepayment. At December 31, 2006, our outstanding borrowings under this facility totaled
$300 million. On January 10, 2007, borromngs undcr this faclhty were repaid in full and the Bridge
. Loan terminated. T : - i
We also have a revolving line of credit (the “Credit Agneemcnt”) with an aggregate limit with
respect to borrowings and letters of credit of $200 million, that has a8 maturity date of April 1, 2007 and
bears an annual interest rate ranging from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”™) plus 0.50%
to LIBOR plus 1.20% depending on our credit ratings (LIBOR plus 0.50% at December 31, 2006). In
addition, we are required to pay a quancrly commitment fee ranging from (.15% per annum to 0.30%
per annum depending on our credit ratings (0.15% per annum at December 31, 2006). Outstanding
berrowings on our revolving line of credit totaled $45 million and $80 million™ at Dcccmber 31, 2006
and February 28, 2007 (unaudltcd) respectively. ‘ ¢ .

The Credit Agrecmcnt includes various covenants, the more significant of which require us to
(i) maintain a balance sheet leverage ratio of less than 0.55 to 1.00, (ii) 'mamtam certain quarterly
interest and fixed-charge coverage ratios (as defined therein) of not less than 2.25 to 1.0 and 1.5 to 1.0,
respectively, and (iii) maintain 8 minimum total shareholders’ equity (as defined therein). In addition,
we are-limited in our ability to incur additional borrowings (we are required to maintain unencumbered
assets with an aggregate book value equal to or greater than 1.5 times our unsecured recourse debt).
We were in compliance with all covenants of the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006 and February 28, 2007 {unaudited), we had undrawn standby letters of
credit, which reduces our borrowing capability with respect to our line of credit by the amount of the
letter of credit, totaling $21,068,000 ($17,985,000 at December 31, 2005). The beneficiaries of these
standby letters of credit were certain insurance companies associated with our captive insurance and
tenant re-insurance activities, collateral for certain construction projects, and a mortgage note.
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. ' . v o - . .

Bt . Notes payabl

Iy N . Foop e

Notes payable at December 31 2006 and 2005 consmt of the followmg (dollar amounts in

thousands) o

v

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Carrying Fair Carrying
L amount * - value amount

Fair
value

N . C o 1 [ ' ] : '

Domestic Unsecured Notes Payable: . PR ‘ - . - -

5.875% effective and stated note rate, interest only and payable . o )
semi-annually, matures in March 2013 .., $§ 200000 _ § 205999 8 - 8
5.73% effective rate, 7.75% stated note ratc lntmt only and oo ' ' - )
payable semi-annually, matures in February 2011 (carrying
amount includes $14, 033 of unamortized premmm at ' ' .
December 31, 2006) ..... v 214,033 . 221,244 . -
6.53% effective rate, 7. 625% smtcd note rate interestonlyand . . - - . - Co
payable semi-annually, matures in April 2007 (carrying : e,
amount inctudes $119 of unamortized premium at December . - | _
31, 2006) ........... . 50,119 ) 50,119 -
7.66% senior unsecured note due January 2007 11,200 T 11,200 22,400

T

Domestic Martgage Nots :

Fixed rate mortgage notes payable, secured by 63 real estate N . K
facilities with a net book vatue of $459,764 at December 31, . L ' ’
2006, average effective interest rates of 5.59% and stated note
rates between 4.95% and 8.78%, due between December 2006
and August 2015 (carrying amount includes $4,145 of e, , E
unamortized premium at December 31, 2006) .......ooonmnreenee 166,737 164,953 . -

Variable rate mortgage notes payable, secured by six real estate '
facilities with a net book vaiue of $20,395 at December 31,

2006, (average interest rate of 7.32% at Decemnber 31, 2006)
which approximate market rates, due between December - - :
2007 and August 2010 .. 8,428 8,428 -

Fixed rate mortgage notes payable, secured by. 33 real estate . e
facilities with a net book value of $194,285 at December 31, . | | ) : o .
2006, stated notc rates between 5.05% and 8.75%, pnnc1pal ’
and interest payable ‘monthly, due at varying dates between
October 2009 and September 2028 (carrying amount 1nc11_1des L
$4,471 of unamortlzed prcmlum at Decembcr i1, 2006) ...... Lo ‘91,489 89,049 91,550

European Secured Nates Payable: o B v - oo.
f r ¥ . ; T

€325 million notm payable due in 2011 collatera.hzed by 101

real estate facilities with a net book value of $951,548 at

December 31, 2006 (interest rate of EURIBOR + 0.51%,

3.826% average for year ended December 31, 2006, 3.928%

rate at December 31, 2006) 428,760 428,670 -
First and Second Shurgard credit agreement, due in 2008 and

2009, secured by 60 real estate facilities with a net book value

of $426,555 at December 31, 2006 (interest rate of EURIBOR

+ 2.25%, 5.534% average for year ended December 31, 2006,

5.915% rate at December 31, 2006 which 2pproximate market

rates) ... 288,918 288,918 -
Liability undcr Caplml Lmsm 6,600 6,600 -

23,060

89,822

Total notes payable § 1,466,284 $ 1,475,180 $ 113,950 b3

112,882
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The 5.875%, 5.73%, and 6.53% effective rate domestic unsecured notes payable were
assumed in connection with the merger with Shurgard. The notes were recorded at their estimated fair*
value based upon estimated market rates for debt with similar terms and ratings upon assumption. As
of the date of the merger with, Shurgard, the aggregate fair value of these notes was approximately
$465,692,000 as compared to the actual assumed balances of $450,000,000. This initial premium of
$15,692,000 is being amortized over the remaining term of the notes using the effective interest
method.. o . .

. The domestic unsecured notes payable have various restrictive covenants, the more significant
of which require us to (i) maintain a ratio of debt to total assets (as defined therein) of less than 0.60 to
1.00, {ii) maintain a ratio secured debt to total assets (as defined therein) of less than 0.40 to 1.00, (iii)
maintain a debt service coverage ratio (as defined therein) of greater than 1.50 to 1.00, and (iv)
maintain a ratio of unencumbered assets to unsecured debt (as deﬁned therein) of greater than 150%, )
all of which have been met at December 31, 2006. ‘

The 5.59% fixed rate domestic mortgage notes were also assumed in connection with the
merger. These mortgage notes were recorded at their estimated fair value based upon the estimated
market rate upon assumption of approximately 5.59%, an aggregate of approximately $184,592,000 as
compared to the actual assumed balances of an aggregate of $179,827,000. This initial premium of
$4,765,000 is being amortized over the remaining terin of the mortgage ‘notes using the effective
interest method. These mortgage notes require interest and principal payments to be paid monthly and
have vartous restrictive covenants, all of which have been met at December 31, 2006. .

We also assumed an additional $671,047,000 in debt in the merger with Shurgard, compﬁsed |
of Shurgard’s line of credit totaling $6063,772,000, and certain variable rate notes totalmg $67,275,000.
This debt was repaid immediately following the merger. .

We assumed a 5.58% mortgage note in connection with a property acquisition during the first
quarter of 2006. The, note was recorded at the stated rate, which we behcvc approximates the ma:ket
rate for similar mortgage notes.

On January 2, 2007, we repaid the €325 million collateralized Eurppean notes tﬁat were.
otherwise payable in 2011. We also terminated the related European currency and interest rate hedges.

First Shurgard and Second Shurgard (see Note 11) have senior credit agreements denominated
in euros to borrow, in aggregate, up to €271 million ($357.5 million as of December 31, 2006). As of
December 31, 2006, the available amount under those credit facilities was, in aggregate, €52 million
($68.6 million). Our draws under the First Shurgard and Second Shurgard credit facilities are
determined on a development project basis, or on an acquisition project basis when applicable for
Second Shurgard, and can be limited if the completion of projects is not timely and if we have certain
cost overruns. The credit facilities also require us to maintain a maximum loan to value of the
collateral ratic and a minimum debt service ratio. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance
with these financial covenants.
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"¢ afn At December'31, 2006, approx1matc principal maturities of our notes payable are as fol!ows
(amounts in thousands)

" - Domestic : : o L

. Domestic Mortgage Notes  «+ European Capital Leases +
. . Notes Payable ~- Payable *  Notes Payable - Europe . Total

2007 eerdant £ 63,483 $ . 5892 | $. 2375 $ 95+.. " § 75845
3,320 27,848 170,449 .o 104 . 201,721
3515 9,367 116,093 114 129,091
3,722 . 17,775 . - 79 21,576
201,312 ' 27,703 ' 428,759 723 - 658497
200,000 174,069 ' - 5,485 ’ 379,554
. § 475352 $ 266,654 § 717678 £6,600 $1,466,284

Weighted average rate.............. 5.3% 5.4% 5.0% 88% = 52%

We mcurred interest- cxpcnse with respect to our otes payable, excludmg capital leases,
aggregating $31,949,000, $6,639,000 and $4,377,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. These amounts were comprised of $35,058,000, $7,665, 000 and $4,377,000 in
cash for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and, 2004 respectively, less 33,109,000,
$1,026,000 and nil in amortization of premium, rcspcctwely

The present value of net minimum capital lease payments at December 31, 2006, was as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments

Capital lease future payments........... res . $40,774
Amount representing interest........ven. : -, .. (34,174)
Present value of net minimum capital lease paymcnts $6,600

The net book value of the properties under capital leases was $6.6 million as of December 31,
2006, which is net of accumulated depreciation of $1.6 million. . We recognized depreciation expense
on these propefties totaling $0.1 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2006.

9. Debt to Joint Venture Partner

. On December 31, 2004, we sold seven self-storage facilities to an unconsolidated affiliated
joint. venture for $22, 993 000, On January 14, 2005, we sold an 86. 7% mterest in three additional self-
storage facilities to the joint venture for an aggregate amount of $27,424,000. Our partner’s combined
equity contribution with respect to these transactions was $35,292,000. Due to our continuing interest

. in these facilitics and the likelihood that we will exercise our option to acquire our partner’s interest,
we have accounted for our partner’s investment in these facilities as, in substance, debt, financing.
'Accordingly; our. parmer s investment with respect to these facilities is accounted for as a liability on
our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Our partner’s share of operations ‘with respect to these
facilities has been accounted for as interest expense on our accompanying consolidated statements of
income. '

- The outstanding balances of $37,258,000 and $35,697,000 due the joint venture partner as of
" December. 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, approximate the fair value of our partners’ interest in these
facilities as of each rcspecnve date. On a quarterly basis, we review the fair value,of this liability, and
to the extent fair value exceeds the carrying value of the liability, an adjustment is made to increase the
lmb1hty to fair ‘value, and to, increase other;assets, with the other assets amortized over the remammg
pcrlod term of the joint venture. We increased the note balance by $1, 386,000 during 2006 as a resu]t
of our periodic review of fair value.
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A total of §3,036,000 and $2,939,000 was recorded as interest expense on our consolidated
statements of income with respect to the Debt to Joint Venture Partner during the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively, representing our partner’s pro rata share of the net earnings
with respect to the properties (an 8.5% return on their investment). This interest expense was
"comprised of a total of $2,862,000 and $2,534,000 paid to our joint venture partner (an 8.0% return
payable curiently in accordance with the parmership agreement) during the vears ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively, and increases in Debt to Joint Venture Partner of $l75 000 and $405,000
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We expect that this debt will be repaid during 2008, assuming that we exercise our option to
acquire our partner’s interest in the joint venture.

Derivative Figv ancial Instruments

As described in Note 2, under Derivative Financial Instruments, we report these derivative
financial instruments at fair value on our comsolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 and
changes in fair values from the date of the Shurgard merger through December.31, 2006, have been
recognized in earnings. *The respective balances of these financial mstrurnents are included in other

L}

- gssets and accrued and other liabilities as follows

11.

December 31,
2006
(Amounts in
. .. thousands)
Assets: B )
Interest rate COMTACES .....ocovvvrurreeennns T R $ 11,810 °

Forelgn currency exchange contracts ................... e, -

Liabilities:
Interest rate contracts ......... L etenernernernesanttaneeasareearrers $ .+ (4,162)
t 7 Foreign currency exchange contracts .........coccocevvennen. © 1 {7,837)

Co ' ' 5 (11,999)

.For the year ended December 31, 2006, net income from derivatives was comprised of a
change in value of the related instruments representing a gain of $5,826,000, less $1 900,000 in net
payments incurred durmg the period under the underlying instruments.

4

" On January 2, 2007, in connection with our prepayment of the €325 million collateralized

- notes ‘at our Furopean operations, we terminated the related European currency and interest rate

hedges. These terminated hedges comprised approximately $8,605,000 of the $11,810,000 in assets
and $10,175,000 of the $11,999,000 in liabilities included in the table above.,

Minority Interest

In consohdanon we classify ownership mterests in the net assets of each of the Consolidated
Entities, other than our own, as minority interest on our consolidated financial staterents. Minority
interest in income consists of the minority interests’ share of the operating results of the Consolidated

" Entities, or in the case of preferred partnership interests, distributions paid, plus amounts associated

with' the applicatien of EITF toplc D-42 as it relates to the rcdemptlon of preferred partnershlp
* interests.
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Preferred partnership interests:
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had the following series of preferred pa.rtnershlp units

1 outstandmg
. At December 31 , 2006 At December 31, 2005
, Earliest Redemption  Distribution Units  Carrying Units Carrying
Series . Date ., Rate - Outstanding . Amount Qutstanding Amount
. . - ., . _ (amounts in thousands)
SeriesNN ... March 17, 2010, - 6.400% .8,000 $ 200,000 8,000 - . § 200,000
Series Z ... Qctober 12, 2009 6.250% 1,000 . 25,000 * 1,000, 25,000
Series J ........... : . May 9, 2011 7.250% 4,000 100,000 - -
v ' ’ 13,000 © § 325000 9,000 $ 225,000
Total ...........u. . - , = :

r

: On May 9, 2006, one of the Consohdated Entities Jissued 4,000, 000 units of 7.25% Series J
Preferred Partmership Units for cash proceeds of $100.0 m11110n . . .

. _ Subject to certain conditions, the Series NN preferred parmershlp units are convertible into

sh.ams of our 6.40% Series NN Cumulative Preferred Stock, the Series Z preferred. partnership units

. are converuble into shares of our 6.25% Series Z Cumulative Preferred Stock and the Series J

referred partnership units are convertible into shares of our 7. 25% Series ] Cumulative Preferred

. Stock. “The preferred partnership units are not redeemable during the first five years, thereafter, at our

opnon, we can call the units for redemption at the issuance amount plus any unpaid distributions. The

‘Series NN and Series J preferred partnership units are not redeemable by the holder. The holders of

the Series Z preferred partnership units have a one-time option, exercisable five years from issuance, to
require us to redeem their units for $25.0 million in cash plus any unpaid distributions.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the holders of the preferred

. partnership units were paid in aggregate approximately $19,055,000, $16,147,000, and $30,423,000,

. respectlvely, in distributions (excluding the special distribution paid on March 22, 2004, described

below), and received an equivalent allocation of minority interest in earnings. In addition, in 2005 and

2004, income allocated 1o minority interests was increased by $874,000 and $2,063,000, respectlvely,
due to the application of EITF Topic D-42. c,

Other partnership interests

Minority interest at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and minerity interest in income for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 with respect to the other pa.rmershxp interests
. are comprised of the following: )

Minority interest at Minority interest in.income for the year ended
December 31,  December 31, =~ December31,  December3l,  December 31,
Description of Minority [nterest 2006 2005 2006 2005 2004
. ‘ . ' . ' (Ar_nc,:tunts in lhgilsands) . ) ‘

European joint ventures................... $140034 . § - | - $  (3631) _.§ . N -
Newly Consolidated Partnerships.... 4,085 - 5,259 . - . -
Shurgard domestic joint ventures..... 8,023 - 417 - -

Consolidated Development Joint ' Tt
Venture . - - 4,229 5,652
Convertible Partnashlp Umts ...... - - 5710 . 6,177 - - 151 .o 469 328
Other Consolidated Partnerships..... 23,178 . 22,793 10,632 . 10,932 . 11,447
Total other partnership interests ...... 3 181,030 3 /28,970 $ 12,828 $ 15,630 $ 17,427
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Eurogean Joint Venture

Through the merger with Shurgard, we acquired two joint venture entities: Flrst Shurgard

SPRI (“First Shurgard”) formed in Janvary 2003 and Second Shurgard SPRL (“Second Shurgard™)
formed in May 2004. Those joint ventures were expected to develop or acquire up to approximately
75 storage facilities in Europe. Through a wholly-owned subsidiary, we have a 20% interest in each of
these ventures. We have determined that First Shurgard and Second Shurgard are each VIEs, and that .
we are the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, First Shurgard and Second Shurgard have been
consolidated in our consolidated financial statements. At December31, 2006, First Shurgard ‘and-

"Second Shurgard had aggregate total assets.of $497.2 million, total liabilities of $322.1 million, and
credit facilities collateralized by assets with a net book value of $288.9 million. At December 31, 2006,
First Shurgard’s and Second Shurgard’s creditors had no recourse to the general credit of Public
Storage or Shurgard Europe other than a commitment, previously made by Shurgard, to subscribe to up® *
to $20 million and an additional €7.5 million ($9.9 million as of December 31, 2006) in preferred
bonds in order for First Shurgard to fulfill its obligations under its senior credit agreement. We have an
option to put. 80% of the bonds issued by First Shurgard to Crescent Euro Self Storage Investments,
Shurgard Europe’s partner in the joint venture. S

On September 5, 2006, we informed the joint vénture partners of First Shurpard and Second
Shurgard of our intention to purchase their interests in First Shurgard and Second Shurgard, pursuant
to'an “exit procedure” that we believe is provided for in the respective agreements. Our joint venture
partners currently contest whether we have the right to purchase their interests under this procedure.
Further, the exit procedure can, in certain circumstances, result'in a third party acquiring ‘the facilities
owned by First and Second Shurgard; including our interest ‘in these facilities. Accordingly, it is
uncertain as to whether we will acquire their interests pursuant to these provisions. On January 17,
2007, we filed an arbitration request to compel arbitration of the matter, ~ - - '

Newly Consolidated Partnerships

As further described in Note 2, effective January 1, 2006 we commenced consolidating the
accounts of three partnerships that we had previously accountéd for under the equity method of
accounting. This consolidation resulted in a $3,963,000 increase in minority interest on January 1,
2006. Effective January 1, 2006, the income allocated to the interests we do not own in thcsc three
partnerships is shown in the table above under Newly Consolidated Parterships.

Shurgard Domestic Joint Ventures .

Followmg the merger with™ Shurgard, we acqulred the minority’ interests in certain of
Shurgard’s joint ventures, for an aggregate of approximately $62,300 000 in cash. As a result of these
transactions, we obtained the remaining interest in a total of 68 self-storage facilities.. This acquisition
was recorded as a reduction in minority interest totaling $12,177,000, with the remainder allocated to
real estate ($50, 123 000). . . .

The parmership agreements of the joint véntures have termination ddtes that cannot -be'
unilaterally extended by the Company and, upon termination of each partnership, the net assets of
these entities would be liquidated and paid to thc minority interests and the Company based upon their -
relative ownership interests.

. 1

Consolidated Development Joint Venture : el

In November 1999, we formed a development joint venture (the “Consolidated Development '
Joint Venture”) with a joint venture partner (PSAC Storage Investors, LLC, referred to as *“PSAC™) -
whose partners included a third party institutional investor and B. Wayne Hughes (“Mr. Hughes™), the
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+Chairman of the Board of the Company, to develop .approximately $100 million -of self-storage
facilities and to purchase-$100 million of the our Equity Stock, Series AAA. We owned a-controlling
interest in the Consolidated Development Joint Venture and included the accounts of this partnership
in our consolidated financial statements since its inception. PSAC’s interest in the Consolidated
Development J oint Venture was accounted for as mmonty interest, as denoted in the above table.
.1 . On 'August 5, 2005 we acqutred the - institufional mvestor s interest in PSAC for
approximately $41,420,000 in cash. This acquisition gave us a controlling position in PSAC and the
right to acquire the remaining interest in PSAC, held by Mr. Hughes, for a stipulated amount on
November 17, 2005. We immediately notified Mr. Hughes of our intent to acquire his interest on
November 17, 2005. '
R On August 5 2005, we com.menced consohdatmg the accounts of PSAC The totalfacqmsmon
: cost of the transaction.was $105,933,000, comprised of the $41,420,000 in cash paid to the institutional
1, investor and $64,513,000 in debt due to Mr, Hughes. Mr: Hughes’ interest in PSAC was accounted for
as debt due to the exercise-of our right to acquire his interest. The total acquisition cost eliminated the
- book value of minority interest on the date of acquisition ($62 013 000) with the remaitider allocated to

. real estate ($43 920 000) - . . " oo

b - " .

The preferred return that Mr. Hughes accrued from August 5 2005 through November 17,
2005 amounting to $1,458,000 is reflected on our consolidated statements of income as interest
_expense. On'November 17, 2005, we acquired Mr. Hughes’ interest for an’ aggregate -0f-$64,513,000 in

: cash, plus accrued and unpaid mterest, extmgmshmg ithe debt.-

-4 v! A

‘I.

Convemble Partnenhlg Units® - T

¥

: 'At December 31, 2006 ‘one -of the Consolidated Entmes had approxxmately 231 978
convertible “partnership units (“Convertible” Units”) outstanding (237,934 at Deceinber 31, 2003)
representing a limited partnership interest in the partnership. The Convertible Units are convertible on
a one-for-one basis (subject to certain limitations) into common stock of the Company at the option of
the unit-holder. Minority interest in income with respect to Convertible Units reflects the Convertible
Units” share of our net income, with net income allocated to minority interests with respect to weighted
average outstanding Convertible Units on a per unit basis equal to diluted earnings per common share.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, a total of 5,956 units were converted into common shares
(none during 2005 and 2004). As a result of this conversion, minority interest was reduced by
$155,000.

Qther Consolidated Partnerships

The partnership agreements of the Other Consolidated Partnerships included in the table
above have termination dates that cannot be unilaterally extended by the Company and, upon
termination of cach partnership, the net assets of these entities would be liquidated and paid to the
minority interests and the Company based upon their relative ownership interests.

At December 31, 2006 and 2003, the Other Consolidated Partmerships reflect common equity
interests that we do not own in 22 entities owning an aggregate of 73 self-storage facilities.

In January 2005, we acquired a portion of the minority interest we did not own in one of the
Consolidated Entities for an aggregate of $4,366,000 in cash. The acquisition resulted in the reduction
of minority interest by $2,828,000 with the excess of cost over underlying book value {$1,538,000)
allocated to real estate.
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In April 2005, we acquired minority interests we did not own in two Consolidated Entities for
an aggregate of $32,432,000 in cash. The acquisition resulted in a reduction of minority interest of
$15,394,000 with the excess of cost over underlying book value ($17,038,000).allocated to real estate.

" In August--2005, we acquired the remaining minority interests we did not own in the
Consolidated Entities for an aggregate of $14,597,000 in cash. The acquisition resulted in a reduction
of minority interest of $7,151,000. with the excess of cost over underlymg book value (37,446 000)
allocatcd to real estate. . .

v

Impact of SFAS No. 150

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150 -
- “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”
(SFAS No.- 150”). This statement prescribes reporting standards for financial-instruments that have
- characteristics of both Habilities and equity. This standard generally indicates that certain financial
- instruments that give the issuer a choice of setting an obligation with a variable number of securities or
settling an obligation with a transfer of assets, any mandatorily redeemable security, and certain put
options and forward purchase contracts, should be classified as a liability on the balance sheet. With
the exception of minority interests, described below, we implemented SFAS No. 150 on July 1, 2003,
. .and the adoptlon had no unpact on our ﬁnancxal statements.

The prowsnons of SFAS No. 150 indicate that the Other Mmonty Interests would have to be
treated as a liability, because these partnerships have termination dates that cannot be unilaterally
extended by us and, upon termination, the net assets of these entities would be liquidated and paid to
the minority interest and us based upon relative ownership interests. However, on October 29, 2003,
the FASB decided to defer indefinitely a portion of the implementation of SFAS No. 150, which
thereby deferred our requirement to recognize these minority interest liabilities. We estimate that the
fair value of the Other Partnership Interests is approximately $450 million at December 31, 2006. |

P

[
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12, ‘Shzu'eholdcrs’ equity

© + Cumulative Preferred Stock ! ]
" At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had the following series of Cumulative Preferred Stock

outstanding: o
’ At December 31, 2006 At December 31, 2005
Earliest ; 4 ‘ ) .
Redemption Dividend . Shares | Camrying Shares. _ . Carrying
Series Date Rate . Outstanding . Amount Cutstanding . Amount
. ‘ ) . (Dollar amounts in thousands)
Series R 9/28/06 8.000% - 8 . 20,400 $ 510,000
Series § . 10/31/06 - . 7.875% - . 5750+ - 143,750
Series T . : 1/18/07 . 7.625% : - Cer 6,086 152,150
SeriesU .. ' 2/19/07: 7.625% - e ro. 6,000 150,000
Series V 9/30/07 7.500% 6,900 T 172,500 - 6,900 172,500
Series W < “10/6/08 - - 6.500% - 5,300 132,500 - 5,300 - 132,500
Series X T 1113/08 © 6.450% 4,800 120,000 © 4,800 120,000
Series Y 172/09 6.850% 1,600,000 40,000 1,600,000 40,000
Series Z 3/5/09 6.250% 4,500 112,500 4,500 112,500
Series A 3/31/09 - 6.125% 4,600 115,000 4,600 115,000
Series B . 6/30/09 - 7125% 4,350 . 108,750" 4,350 108,750
Seties C 9/13/09 6.600% 4,600 115,000 4,600 115,000
Series D . 2/28/10 6.180% 5,400 135,000 5,400 135,000
Series E : 42110 6.750% . 5650 141,250 5,650 141,250
Series F 8/23/10 " 6.450% 10,000 250,000 10,000 250,000
Series G 1212110 7.000% 4,000 100,000 4,000 - 100,000
Series H 1/19/11 6.950% 4,200 105,000 - -
Series I 5/3/11 7.250% 20,700 517,500 - -
Series K 8/%/11 7.250% 18,400 460,000 - - -
Series L 10720/11 6.750% 9,200 230,000 L - -

Total Cumulative Preferred Stock ' 1,712,600 $ 2,855,000 1,698,336 $ 2,498,400

. During 2006, we issued four series of Cumulative Preferred Stock: Series H — issued January
19, 2006, net proceeds totaling $101,492,000, Series 1 — issued May 3, 2006, net proceeds totaling
$501,601,000, Series K - issued August 8, 2006, net proceeds totaling $445,852,000 and Series L -
‘issued October 20, 2006, aggregate net proceeds totaling $223,623,000. During 2005, we issued four
series of Cumulative Preferred Stock: Series D — issued February 28, 2005, net proceeds totaling
$130.548,000, Series E — issued-April 27, 2005, net proceeds totaling $136,601,000, Series F — issued
August 23, 2005, net proceeds totaling $242,550,000 and Series G — issued December 12, 2008,
aggregate net proceeds totaling $96,886,000. During 2004, we issued five series of Cumulative
Preferred Stock: Series Y - issued January 2, 2004, net proceeds $40,000,000, Series Z — issued
March 5, 2004, net proceeds $108,756,000, Series A - issued March 31, 2004, net proceeds
$111,177,000, Series B — issued June 30, 2004, net proceeds $105, 124 000, Series C — issued
- September 13, 2004, net proceeds $111,177,000.
. Upon issuance of our Cumulative Preferred Stock, we classify the liquidation value as
preferred stock, with any issuance costs recorded as a reduction in Paid-in Capital.

_ .- During 2006, we redeemed our Series R and Series S Cumuiative Preferred Stock at par value
—plus accrued dividends. In December 2006, we called for redemption our Series T and Series U
"Cumulative Preferred Stock, at par. The aggregated redemption value of $302,150,000 of these two
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series has been classified as a liability at December 31, 2006. During 20085, we redeemed our Series F
Cumulative Preferred Stock, at par value plus accrued dividends. In November 2005, we called for
redemption our Series @ Cumulative Preferred Stock, at par. The total redemption value-for this series
was classified as a liability at December 31, 2005. During 2004, we redeemed our Series K, Series L,
Series M, and Series D Cumulative Preferred Stocks (including redemption expenses) at pa: plus
accrued d1v1dends

Except under certain conditions relating to the Company’s qualiﬁc?;tion as a REIT, the

* various series of Cumulative Preferred Stock are not redeemable prior to the dates indicated. On or
.after the dates indicated, each series of Cumulative Preferred Stock will be redeemable, at our option,

in whole or in part, at $25.00 per depositary share (or per share in the case of the Series Y), plus
accrued and unpaid dividends. The holders of our Cumulative Preferred Stock have general preference

- rights with respect to liquidation and quarterly distributions and, except under certain conditions and as
noted below, will not be entitled to vote on most matters. In the event of a cumulative arrearage equal -

to six quarterly dividends or failure to maintain a Debt Ratio (as defined) of 50% or less, holders of all
outstanding series of preferred stock (voting as a single class without regard to series) will have the
right to elect two additional members to serve on the Company’s Board of Directors until events of
default have been cured. At December 31, 2006, there were no dividends in arrears and the Debt Ratio
was 16.6%. ‘

Common Stock

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, activity with respect to our Common Stock was as follows:

2006 : 2005 2004 .

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Merger with Shurgard:

issuance of common stock......... 38,913,187 $3,116,850 - $ - - $ -
Conversion of stock options....... oo 69,296 t - - - -
Employee stock-based :
COMPENSAON .....ovverrrerieenrsreiraea 2,135,761 85,369 282,998 7.511 1,985416 _ 49929
Shares received as a d:stnbutlon ’
from unconsolidated entities.......... - : - (635,885) (14,520} - -
Conversion of partnership units....... . 5,956 155 - - - -
Repurchases of common stock.......... - - {84,000) (4,990) (445,700) (20,295)

41,054,904 § 3,271,670 (436,887) § (11,999) 1,539,716 § 29,634

In connebtion with ‘the merger with Shurgard, we issued -38,913,187 common shares to the
former Shurgard shareholders. In addition, we issued vested common stock options in exchangc for
Shurgard stock opuons with an intrinsic value of $69,296,000 at thc merger date. :

During 2005, we received a distribution of 503, 110 shares, and one of the Consolidated
Entities received 132,775 shares, of our Common Stock prevxously held by the Unconsohdated
Entities. 'I'he 503,110 shares that we received were retlred

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, certain Consolidated Entities owned 1,146,207 shares of our
Common Stock. In the consolidation process, these shares and the related balance sheet amounts have
been eliminated. In addition, these shares are not included i the computation of welghted average
shares outstanding. These shares continue to be legally issued and outstanding: -

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase from time to time of up to 25,000,000
shafes of our Common Stock on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Through
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December 31, 2006, we have repurchased a total of 22 201 720 shares of our Common Stock pursuant
to this authorization.: - ik g .

. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had 3,025,747 and 4,735,647 shares of Commeén Stock
reserved in connection with our stock-based incentive plans, respectively, (see Note 14) and 231,978
- and 237,934 shares reserved for the conversion of Conyertible Partnership Units, respectively.

R . PR - - = e e - - e -

Equitv Stock *

s

The Company is.authorized to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of Equxry Stock. The Articles

" of Incorporation provide that the Equlty Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series
. and gives the Board of Directors broad authority to fix the dividend and distribution rights, conversion
and voting rights, redemption provisions and liquidation rights of each series of Equity Stock.

Equity Stock, Series A~ .

- g

At December 31 2006 and 2005 we had 8,744,193 deposnary shares outstanding each ~

. representing 1/1,000 of a share of Equity,Stock, Senes A (“Eqmty Stock A”). We received 31,909

e depositary shares from a distribution from afﬁhated entities during 2005 (see Note 6). The Equity
- Stock, Series A'ranks on parity with common stock and junior.to the Cumulative Preferred Stock with

"respect to general preference rights and has-a liquidation amount-which cannot exceed $24.50 per
" share. Distributions with respect to each’depositary share shall bc the lesser of: i) five times the per
" share dlvndend on the common stock or ii) $2.45 per annum We have no obligation to pay
. dlstnbutlons on the deposna.ry if no dlsmbutlons are pmd to common shareholders.

Except in order to preserve the Company s federal i mcome tax status as a REIT, we may not
redeem the depositary shares before March 31, 2010. On or aﬁer March 31, 2010, we may, at our.
option, redeem the depositary shares at $24.50 per depositary share. I the Company fails to preserve
its federal income tax status as a REIT, each depositary share will be convertible at the option of the

shareholder into .956 shares of our common stock. ‘The depositaxy shares are otherwise not convertible -

into common stock. Holders of depositary shares 'vote as 4 single class with our holders of our
common stock on sharcholder matters, but the dep051tary shares have the equivalent of one- tenth of a
vote per depositary share.

Dividends

[ v

The unaudited characterization of dividends.for Federal inicome tax purposes is made based!

) upon earnings and profits of the Company, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code. For the tax year
ended December 31, 2006, distributions for the common stock, Equity Stock, Senes A and all the .
various series of preferred stocks were classified as follows: .

& «-" 2006 (maudited)

1% Qua.rter~ 2* Quarter 3" Quarter- 4T Quarter

Ordinary Income - - T 100.00% 7 1t 100.00% i 10000% - 100.00%
Long-Term Capltal Gam e 000% iy 0 000% s 0.00% 0.00%

Toml .7 L 10000%. . ., 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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The foﬂowiﬁg table sum.mari;es di.vidends for ;hc yéars ended December 3-1,‘ 2006; 2065 and

2004: ‘ S —_—
L 2006 2005 o 2004
Per share Total Per share Total Per share Total
‘ (Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Cumulative Preferred Stock ' ' '
Series D . - - - - $1.776 2,131
Series E | - Coote b w«’ "$0208 T T 457 T $2.500! 5,488
SeriesF - - ‘ e o S $0.819° - 1,884 ' $2437 . 5,606
Series K. C e R P C2 80109 % 501
Series L : e .- St T 80395 . -1,818
Series M - - - - $1.373 3,089
Series Q $0.108 742 $2.150 14835 | $2.150 14,835
Series R ' $1.483 30,255 $2.000 40,800 $2.000 40,800
Series § $1.641 9,437 $1.969 11,320 | $1.969 11,320
Series T e ©O$1.906 7 0 11,601 ' $1.906 11,601 - $1.906 11,601
Series U ' CCT sio06 11,438 -$1.906 11,438 $1906 - 11,438
Series V ' C$1875 ' 12938 - $1.875 - . 12938 $1.875 ' .12,938
Series W ©. %1625 . 8612 --$1.625 8,612 $1.625 8,612
Series X . . - $1613 ;7,740 - +-$1613 7,740 . $1.613 < 47,740
Series Y $1.713 . 2,740, - SL7I13.. - 2,740 . $L708 . . 2,732
Series Z < - $1563 .. . 7,031, $1.563 7,031 $1.289 . 5,801
Series A ‘ $1.531  ,.7,044 . $1.53] 7,044 $1.153 5,302
Series B $1.781 © 1 7,748 $1.781 7,748 $0.896 3,896
Series C . 81650 7,590 $1.650 7,590 $0.495 2277
Series D T$l54s ¢ 8344 = $1.292 6976 * ' - -
Series E : $1.688 9,536  S1.144 - 6463 - -
Series F ‘ $1.613 16,124 - $0.543 - 5430 - -
Series G $1.750 7,000 $0093 = 370 - - -
Series H - $1.654 6,945 . .- - . -0 -
Series1. . . . 81203 .. 24,908 - - . - -
Series K . .. $0725 13340 . -, .- - . -
Series L. $0.338 3,105 - - - . -

214,218 173,017 157,925
Common Equivalent Stock . .
Common Stock $2.000 298,219 $1.900 244,200 $1.800 230,834
Equity Stock, Series A , %2450 |, 21424 $2.450. 21,443 $2.450 21,501
Total Distributions ) $533,861 . $438,660 ... $410,260

13. Related party transactions A SR <

Relationships and transactions with the Hughes Family

Mr. Hughes and his family (collectively the “Hughes Family”) have ownership. interests in,
and operate approximately 44 sclf-storage facilities in Canada under the name “Public Storage” (“PS
Canada”) pursuant to a license agreement with the Company. We currently do not own any inierests in
these facilities nor do we own any facilities in Canada. The Hughes Family owns approximately 27%
of our Common Stock outstanding at December 31, 2006. We have a right of first refusal to acquire
the stock or assets of the corporation that manages the 44 self-storage facilities in Canada, if the
Hughes Family or the corporation agrees to sell them. However, we have no interest in the operations
of this corporation, we have no right to acquire this stock or assets unless the Hughes Family decides
to sell, the right of first refusal does not apply to the self-storage facilities, and we receive no benefit
from the profits and increases in value of the Canadian self-storage facilities.
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. I October 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors (with Mr. Hughes and B. Wayne Hughes
Jr. abstaining) approved the reimbursement of CAD $653,424, plus CAD $52,274 in interest accrued at
4% per annum, representing the amount previously charged to the Canadian entities for system
development costs that Company no longer permits them to use. These amounts were reimbursed in

. November 2005 . ‘

el

: Through consohdated entities, we continue to reinsure risks relating to loss of goods stored by
tenants in the self-storage facilities in Canada. During 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, we received
$989,000, $1,052,000, and $1,069,000, respectively, in reinsurance premiums atiributable to the
Canadian facilities. Since our right to provide tenant reinsurance to the Canadian facilities may be
qualified, there is no assurance that these premiums will continue.

In November 1999, we formed the Consolidated Development Joint Venture with a joint
venture partner whose partners include an institutional investor and Mr. Hughes (Note 11). On
August 5, 2005,.we acquired the institutional investor's interest in PSAC. This acquisition gave us a

. controlling position in PSAC and the right to acquire the remaining interest in PSAC which was held
. by Mr. Hughes.. We exercised this right and on November 17, 2005, we acqulred Mr. Hughes interest

in PSAC for $64,513,000 plus an accrued preferred return.

The Company and Mr Hughes are co-general partncrs in certain consohdated entities and
affiliated entities of the Company that are not unconsolidated. The Hughes Family also owns limited
partnership interests in certain of these entiies. The Company and the Hughes Family receive

. distributions from these parmerships in accordance with the terms of the partnership agreements.

Other Related Party. Transactions ) . . ' .

St

. Rona.ld L. Havner Jr. is-our Vlce Chmrman and Chlef Executlve Officer, and he is Chau'man

K

of the'Board of PSB.

‘ ;‘ ‘Dann V. Angeloff a chrector of the Company, is thc general parmer of a limited parlnershlp

formed in Yune of 1973 that owns a self-storage facility that is managed by us. We- recorded

management fees with respect to this facility amounting to $68,000, $45,000, and $41,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

PSB manages certain of the commercial facilitics that -we own pursuant to management
agreements for a management fee equal to 5% of revenues. We paid a total of $625,000, $579,000,
and $562,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, in management
fees with respect to PSB’s property management services. At December 31, 2006, we have recorded
amounts owed to PSB of $871,000 (3551,000 at December 31, 2005), for management fees and certain
other operating expenses related to the managed facilities, paid by PSB on our behalf. These amouats
are the result of a time lag between PSB paying such expenditures and being reimbursed by us.

We manage our wholly-owned self-storage facilities as well as the facilities owned by the
Consolidated Entities and affiliated entitics that arc not consolidated on a joint basis, in order to take
advantage of scale and other efficiencies. As a result, significant components of self-storage operating
costs, such as payroll costs, advertising and promotion, data processing, and insurance expenses are
shared and allocated among the various entities using methodologies meant to fairly aliocate such costs
based upon the related activities. The amount of such expenses allocated to Unconsclidated Entities
was approximately $2.3 million, $4.1 million, and $4 2 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2008, and 2004, respectively.

Pursuant to a cost-sharing and administrative services agreement, PSB reimburses us for
certain administrative services that we provide to them. PSB’s share of these costs totaled
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approximately $320,000.for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $340,000 for each of the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. - T : ..

Stor-RE, a consolidated entity, and third party .insurance carriers provided PS Canada, the
Company, PSB, and other affiliates of the Company with liability and casualty insurance coverage
until March 31, 2004, PS Canada owns a 2.2% interest and PSB owns a 4.0% interest in Stor-RE. PS
Canada and PSB obtained their own liability and casualty insurance covering occurrences after April 1,
2004. For occurrences before April 1, 2004, STOR-Re continues to prcmde liability and casualty
insurance coverage consistent with thc relevant agreements.”

Stock-based Compensation

" Description of Stock-Based Incentive Plan :

We have a 1990 Stock Opnon Plan (the “1990 Plan”), wblch prowdes for the grant of non-
qualified stock options. We have a 1994 Stock Option Plan (the “1994 Plan™), a 1996 Stock Option
and Incentive Plan (the 1996 Plan™), a 2000 Non-Executive/Non-Director Stock Option and Incentive
Plan (the “2000 Plan™), a 2001 Non-Executive/Non-Director Stock ‘Option and Incentive Plan (the
“2001 Non-Executive Plan”) and a 2001 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”}, each of
which provides for the grant of non-qualified options and incentive stock options. (The 1990 Plan, the
1994 Plan, the 1996 Plan and the 2000 Plan are collectively referred to as the“PSI Plans™). Under the
PSI Plans, the Company has granted non-qualified options to certain’ directors, officers and key
employees to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a price equal to the fair market value
of the common stock at the date of grant. Generally, options under the PSI Plans vest over a three-year
period from the date of grant at the rate of one-third per year (options granted- after, December 31,

2002 vest generally over a five-year period) and expire (i) under the 1990 Plan, five years after the date -

they became exercisable and (i) under the 1994 Plan, the 1996 Plan and the 2000 Plan, ten years afier
the date of grant. The 1996 Plan, the 2000 Plan, the 2001 Non-Executive Plan and the 2001 Plan also
provide for the grant of restricted stock (see below) to officers, key employees and service providers
on terms determined by an authorized committee of the Board of Directors. A total of approximately
2,331,371 and 3,012,671 securities were ava:lable for grant at December.31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. i .

Stock Options
Information with respect to stock options durmg 2006; 2005 and 2004 is as fo]lbw.s:.

v . 1 -

L
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2006 2005 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Price per of Price per of Price per
S ' Options Share Options Share Options Share
Options outstanding January 1 1,423,146 $41.46 1,441,901 $35.07 3,088,618 £27.14
Granted {a) | 2,208,328 49.67 288,000 62.56 353,500 5146
Exercised (b) (c) (2,026,540) 41.99 (249,520) 30.10 (1,957,907) 25.51
Cancelled (2,000) 5298 (57,235) 36.84 {42310) 3275
Options outstanding December 31 (d) {¢) 1,602,934 $52.08 1,423,146 $41.46 1,441,901 -$35.08
Price range of options outstanding at e S
December 31: (e) $22.94 10 $96.61 $18.00 to $69.87 $14.88 10 $39.23
Options e)‘(crcisablc at December 31 (f): 856,993 $38.96 780,350 $31.38 651,013 $27.13

(a)
()

©

(d)
(e}

¢y

We establish these assumptions based generalty upon historica] trcnds. ,

On August 22, 2006, in connection with our merger with Shurgard, we converted-each outstanding Shurgard stock
optlon into 0.82 options exercisable for shares of the Company’s Conimon Stock. This conversion resulted in the
issuance of 1,912,828 stock options: .

The aggregate intrinsic value of shares exercised during each year, representing the diffcrcntial between the

market price and the exercise price on the respective dates of exercise, amounted to approximately $10,791,000,
$7,508,000, and $45,673,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, 1,814,467 of the 1,912,828 stock options lssued in the exchange in connection w1t.h our
‘merger with Shurgard were exercised.

The options outstanding at December 31, 2006, have remaining average contractual lives of 7.2 years, and an
aggregate intrinsic value, based upon the December 31, 2006 closing pncc of our commen stock, of approxnmately
$72,800,000.

Approximately 263,205, 372,570 and 472,788 options have exercise prices less than $30 at December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively. Approximately 894,000, 624,000 and 336,000 options have exercise prices greater
than $45 at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options at December 31, 2006, based upon the closing price of our
common stock at December 31, 2006, amounted to approximately $50,200,000. Options exercisable at December
31, 2006 have a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately 7 years.

We recognize compensation expense for stock option,awards based upon their fair value on
the date of grant amortized over the applicable vesting period (the “Fair Value Method™), less an
allowance for estimated future forfeited awards with respect to stock options granted after January 1,
2002. The fair value of the stock options is determined utlhzmg the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The Black-Scholes option pricing mode! utilizes several assumptions, including the estimated
life of the stock options, the average risk-free rate, the expected dividend vield, and expecied volatility.

4

" We do not rccogmze compensanon expense for stock option awards prior to Ja.nuary 1, 2002,
instead, we disclose the amount of stock option expense that would have been recognized in each year
with respect to these options had we utilized the Fair Value Method with respect to these awards, in the
table below. Because stock-based awards had a vesting period of three years, our accountmg method

with rcspcct to these pre-2002 awards has'no effect after December 31, 2004,

. ' Outsta.ndlng stock opr.lons are included on a one- for—one basis in our diluted welghted average
shares, less a reduction for the treasury stock method applied to a} the ‘average cumulative measured
but unrecognized compensation expense during the period and.b) the strike price proceeds expected
from the employee upon exercise.

v
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The following table sets forth financial disclosures with respect to the accounting for stock options:

{a) Expected life is based upon- our expectanons of stock option recxplmts cxpected exercise and termination
patterns.

{b) Expected volatility is based upon the level of volatility historically experienced.

() At December i1, 2006 ‘the total compensation cost related to nonvested stock optlon awards amounts to
approximately £6,161,000, whlch will bc recogmzed over the remaining vesting period.
Restricted Stock Units L . -

[

Outstanding restricted stock units vest over a five or eight-year period from the date of graﬁt

. S . - _ X -For the years ended December 31,
Selected information with respect to employee stock options: 2006 2005 . 120046
- (Dollar amounts in thousands, except per-share
. ' amounts)
Average estimated vatue per option gramed, unlmng the Black-Scholes
mMethod... woevrcernsreeassianeens $5.72 $6.77 T $4.40
Assumptions used In valuing options with the Black-Scholes method: -
Expected life of options in years (a) 5 5 5 .
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 4.0% 3.5%
Expected volatility (b)..., 0.227 . 0.234 0.210
Expected dividend yield 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Net income information with respect to each year:
NEt ICOME, 8S TEPOTIE....ocrerrrrssrsessssssssosrssssssssmomssssssssrsner $314,006 . $456393 .  $366213
Add back: stock-based employee compensation expense included in net )
income (c) CextesseisstrearevesseTTRTesEearesatestesmeantessssaseesisseeseseteseeseessesnann - 1,173 1,010 709
Less: stock-based employee compensation cost that would have been : ) '
included if the fair value method were applied for all awards................ (1,173) (1,010) (874)
Net income, assuming consistent application of the fair value method... $314026  $456393 - $366,048
Earnings per share, as reported: o ) . .
Basic - S ‘ $0.33 $1.98 $1.39
DI, ..ot erers s s e s $0.33 $1.97 $1.38
Earnings per share, assuming consistent app[icaﬁon of tt;e fair value
method t
Basic $0.33 5198 ) $1.39
Diluted ' . ; : . ' © 5033 $l 97 §1.38

at the rate of one-fifth or onc-eighth per year, respectively. The employee receives additional -

compensation equa.l to the per-share dividends received by common shareholders with respect to
_ restricted stock units outstanding. Such compensation is accounted for as dividends paid. Any

dividends paid on units which are subsequently forfeited are expensed. Upon vesting, the employee

receives common shares equat to the number of vested restricted stock units in exchange for the units.

The total vaiue of each restricted stock unit grant, based upon the market price of our common
stock at the date of grant, is amortized over the vesting period as compensation expense. The related
employer portion of payroll taxes is expensed as incurred. - Until December 31, 2005 (see below),
forfeitures were recognized as experienced, reducing compensation expense. .

Effective January 1, 2006, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Sta.tidards

No. 123 - revised (“SFAS 123R”), we began recording compensation expense net of estimates for
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future forfeitures (the.“Estimated Forfeiture Method”). In’addition, we estimated the cumulative
compensation-expense that would have been recorded through December 31, 2005, had we used the
Estimated Forfeiture Method, would have been $578,000 ($0.01 per diluted common share) lower.
Accordingly, as prescribed by SFAS 123R, we recorded this adjustment as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principal on our accompanymg consolidated statement of income for the year
December 31, 2006.

' During the year ended December 31, 2006, 419 170 restricted stock umts were granted with
an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of approxlmately '$33,861,000, 31,370 restricted stock units
were forfeited (aggregate grant-date fair value of $1,924,000), and 71,160 restricted stock units vested

A{aggregate gra.nt-date fair value of $3,438,000) with an aggregate faxr value on the date of vesting of

$5,918,000. This vesting resulted in the issuance of 47,159 shares of common stock. In addmon, cash
compensation was paid to employees in lieu of 24,001 shares of common stock based upon the market
value of the stock at the date of vesting, and used to settle the employees’ tax llablhty generated by the
vestmg '

. During the year ended December 31, 2005, 169,750 restricted stock units were granted with
an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of approximately $9,633,000, 74,200 restricted stock units
were forfeited (aggregate grant-date fair value of $3,388,000), and 47,760 restricted stock units '\_fested
(aggregate grant-date fair value of $2,053,000) with an aggregate fair value on the date of vesting of
$3,156,000. This vesting resulted in the issuance of 33,478 shares of common stock. In addition, cash
compensation was paid to employees in lieu of 14,282 shares of common stock based upoh the market
value ‘of the stock at the date of vestmg, and used to settle the employees” tax llablllty gencrated by the

*

During the year ended December 31, 2004, 94,500 restricted stock units were granted with an
aggregate fair value on the date of grant of $4,649,000, 48,650 restricted stock units were forfeited,
and 42,810 restricted stock units vested with an aggregate fair value on the date of vesting of
approximately $2,419,000. This vesting resulted in the issuance of 27,509 shares of common stock. In
addition, cash compensation was paid to employees in lieu of 15,301 shares of common stock based

-upon the market value of the stock at the date of vesting, and used to settle the employees’ tax liability

generated by the vesting. During the yedr ended December 31, 2003, we granted 249,000 restricted
stock units to employees of the Company with an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of
apprommately $10,180,000.

At December 31, 2006 approximately 616,470 restricted stock units were outstanding
(299 830 and 252,040 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively) with an aggregate fair value at
Detember 31, 2006, based upon the closing price of our common stock, of approxlmately $60,106,000.
The aggregate grant-date fair value of the 616,470 resmcted stock units outstanding at December 31,
2006 was approximately $43 421,000 ($14,922,000 for the 299,830 restncted stock units at
December 31, 2005), which will be recognized over the remammg vestmg period of appro:umately 4
years. A total of $5,136,000, $3,748,000, and $2,254,000 in'restricted stock expense was recorded for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which includes amortization of the
fair value of the grant reﬂected as an increase to paid-in capital, as well as payroll taxes we incurred
upon each respective vestmg

Outstanding restricted stock units are included on a one-for-one basis in our diluted weighted

average shares, less a reduction for the treasury stock method applied to the average cumulative
measured but unrecognized compensation expense during the period.

Disclgsures Regarding Segment Reporting

Description of Each Reportable Segment
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Our reportable segments reflect significant operating activities that are evaluated separately
by management, comprised of the followmg segments which.are organized based upon their-operating
charactensncs .

) Our domestlc self-storage segment comprises- the dlrect ownership, devclopment, and
operation of traditional storage facilities in the U.S., and the ownership of equity interests in entities
that own storage properties in the U.S. Our European self-storage segment comprises our self-storage

7 and assoc:ated activities owned by affiliated entities based in Europe

'Our’ domestic ancillary. operatmg segment represents all of our other segments, whmh are
reported as a group, mcludmg (i) containerized storage, (ii) commercial property operations, which
reflects our interest in the ownership, operation, and management ‘of commercial properties both
d:rectly and through our interest in PSB (iii) the reinsurance of policies against losses to goods stored

" by tenants in our self-storage facilities_ (i) sale of merchandise at our self-storage facilities, (iv) truck
rentals at our self-storage facilities and (v) management of facilities owned by third-party owners and
facilities owmed by the Unconsolidated Entities.

Measurement of Seggent. Income (Loss) and Segment Assets — Domestic Self-Storage and '
. Domestic Ancillary " ' '

The domesnc self-storage and domestlc ancillary segments are evaluated by ma.nagement
based upon the net segment income of each segment. Net segment income represents net income in
‘confortnity with GAAP and our 51gmﬁcant accounting policies as denoted in Note 2, before interest
and other income, interest expense, and corporate general and administrative expense. Interest and
other income, interest expense, corporate general and administrative expense, minority interest in
income and gams and losses on sales of real estate assets are not allgcated t these segments because |
management does not utilize them to evaluate the results of operations of each segment. , In addmon,
there is no presentation of segment assets for these other segments because total assets are-not
_ consxdered in the evaluation of these segments

Measurement of Segment Income (Loss) and Seg_'m_ent Assets — Furopean Operations |

The European segment operations are primarily independent of the other segments, with
scparate management, debt, financing activities, and capital allocation decisions. Accordingly, this
segment is evaluated by management as a stand-alone business unit and the European segment
'presentatlon includes all of the revenues, expenses and operatlons of . lth.ts business unit, including
interest expense and general and administrative expense. Assets “of our European operations at
December 31, 2006 include approxl.mately $480 million'in cash (of whlch approximately $429 million
“was utilized on January 2, 2007 to prepay the €3325M collateralized notes), real estate with a book
value of approxunately $1.4 billion, intangibles with a book value of approx1mately $161 million, and
) other assets with a book value of approxlmately $65' mxlhon. .

Presentation of Segment Information .

Lot

The following table reconciles the performance of each segment, in terms of segment income,
to our consolidated net income (amouats in thousands):

PRl
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Revenues:
Self-storage rental income.........coooievenenenvernnins
Ancillary operating revenue,.

Interest and other inCOME ... s livsninsenrs

Expenses:
Cost of operations (excluding depreciation and
amortization below):
Self-storage fAcilities oo feanne
Ancillary operations.............
Depreciation and amortization
General and a.d:mmstranve

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
equity in earnings of real estate entities, gain on
disposition of real estate and real estate
investments, foreign currency exchange gain,
income from derivatives and minority interest in
income

Equity in earnings of real estate entities.....................
Gain on disposition of real estate and real estate ,
investments
Foreign currency cxchange gain
Income from derivatives, net.........
Minority interest in income..............ccoccepnenn
Income (foss) from continuing operations....
Cu.mulauve cffect of a change in accountmg
Dlscontmued opcranons

Net income {1088) ....coeveeeeeceerecec s arsesssernes

December 31, 2006
C . Domestic Other Items
- Domestic Self- . European - °  Anciliary Not Allocated to Total
_Storage Operations Operations Segments Consolidated
(Amounts in thousands)
$ 1180234 b3 59, 715 $ . $ - $ 1239949
- y 5,121 ]04,786 - ' 109,907
- . . - - 31,799 31,799
1,180,234 64,836 104,786 31,799 1,381,655
398,760 30,436 . - 429,196
- 2,210 69,154 - 71,364
374,843 59,803 .3,338 T 437,984
- - 10,245 - 74,416. 84,661
- 13,109 - 19,953 33,062
773,603 ’ 115,803 72,492 94,369 1,056,267
406,631 (50,967) 32,204 (62570) 325388
2,131 . - 9,764 - ' © 11,895
. C. - 2,177 2,177
T 336 - - 336
- 3,926 L . - , 3,926
(16,459) 3,631, . _ (19,055) (31,883)
392,303 (43,074) - 42,058 (79,448) 311,839
- - - 578 578
. - - 1,609 1,609
$ 392303 $ (43,074) $ 42,058 £ (77,261) £ 314,026

F-39 -




PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006
For the year ended December 31, 2005
Domestic Other Items
. . + Domestic Self- European Ancillary Not Allocated to Total
: e . o Storage ... Operations .+ ' Operations Segments Consolidated
“ RS ‘ R o - . '(Amounts in thousands)
Revenues: Lot 0 o
Self-storage rental income......oovvvrvverivcricne. 3 951,370 $ - $- - b3 - $ 951,370 -
Ancillary operating revenue . ST - - T 92,230 - 92,230
Interest and other income...................... : - : - - . .16447 16,447
951,370 - 92,230 16,447 1,060,047
Expenses: . . .- T
Cost of operations (excluding depreciation and
amortization below): !
Self-storage fACIlities ........ioveerrvermrurrerssernnenise 320,589 - - - 320,589
Ancillary operations........ccoeeeceneas : - S 57,712 . - 57,712
Depreciation and amortization............ 191,102 - 5,130 - - 196,232
General and administrative....... . - el - 2L115 0 21115
INtETest EXPENSE ... . - .- . 8,216 8,216
_ ) 511,691 - 62,842 _ 29,331 603,864
Income (loss) from continuing operations before - ’ - - . .
equity in earnings of real estate entities, casualty . . :
loss, gain on disposition of real estate and real :
estate investments and minority interest in P
ICOTIE c.coecrrrirenrsrrenecsensssnsrarsassasnrareseresesssvesesceesssreses 439,679 - 29,388 .+ - - «(12,884) 456,183
Equity in earmnings of reat estate entities..... 6,126 - 8757 ' - 24,883
Casualty JOSS ..ovvverericcrnnnrenseiseneossessssssssersesersssensnss R o : e (1,817 (1,917
Gain on disposition of real estate and real estate ' . o - . ,
INVESIMENTS. .\oviveverereeererns - - A 3,099 3,009
Minority interest in income.. (15,630} - - - (17,021) (32,651)
Income from continuing operations........cc.simmsimins 430,175 - 48,145 - . "(28,723) 449,597
Discontinued operations..........wveserines C- - C- 6,796 6,796
Net ncome (J0SE) couevvureierriiriiirieiensseenanerasicaneesssans .5 430,175 3 .- $ . 48,145 £ (21927 $ 456,393
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For the year ended December 31, 2004

.

'

+

s

- ' orne Domestic Other Items -
- Domestic Self- i European Ancillary Not Allocated to Tota?
1 ..~ Storage ¢ ' .. Operations® i - "Operations '~  Segments Consolidated
. ' + ¥ *(Amounts in thousands)
Revenues: . ! o B T .
Self-storage rental income .« §& 8616657 % 5 - 5 ) - $ 861,665
Ancillary operating revenue ..............cocvmminns - 91,101 - 91,101
Interest and other income - - 5,391 5,391
861,665 91,101 . 5391 958,157
Expenses: - i
Cost of operations (excluding deprectatlon and -
amortization below): : -
Self-storage facilities ... w 300,355 - ! . - 300,355
Ancillary operations.... v T 61,580 - 61,589
Depreciation and amortization.............. - 176230 7, 6,660 - - 182,890
General and administrative B ' - 18,813 18,813
INterest EXPense ......oececerriiinin - - 760 760
476,585 68,249 + 19,573 564,407
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
equity in earnings of real estate entities, casualty , . I
loss, gain on disposition of real estate and real e’
estate investments and minority interest in - . C . ; o
income.. 385,080 22,852 (14,182) 393,750
Equity in eamings of real estate entmes 5,669 : 16,895 R - - 22,564
Casually 1085 ...c..ccocvvniiiiiinisrnsni s Ve 4 et P : . - . (1,250) (1,250}
Gain on disposition of m] &statc and rcal mtate i . , o
investments... " - o i 1,317 1,317
Minority mtermt i INCOME.ennrnrersasissessione L (1742D) o (32,486) (49,913)
Income (loss) from contmumg operations A 373,322 39,747 (46,601) 366,468 -
Discontinued operations ; e T i CT(25%) {255)
Net income (loss} ....... $ 373322 $ 0. b 39,747 $  (46,856) § 366,213
16. Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Guidance -

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - .- .

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48"). This interpretation, among other
things, creates a.two-step approach for évaliating uncertain tax positions. Recognition. (step one)
occurs when an:enterprise concludes that a tax position,; based solely on its technical merits, is more-
likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (step two).determines the amount of
benefit that more-likely-than-not will be realized upon settlement. Derecognition of a tax position that
was prev:ously recogmzed would occu: when a company subsequently determines that a tax position
no longer meets the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained. FIN 48 specifically prohibits
the use of a valuation allowance as a substitute for derecognition of tax positions, and it has expanded
disclosure requirements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years bcgummg after December 15, 2006, in
which ‘the ‘impact of adoption should be accounted for as a cumulatlvc-cffect adjustment to the
begmnmg balance of retained earnings. The Company is evaluating FIN 48 and has not yet determmcd
the lmpact the adoptmn will havc on the consolidated financial statements.
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Fair Value Measurement

In 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement” (SFAS No. 157). SFAS
No. 157 provides guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard expands
required disclosures about the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value,
the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
SFAS No. 157 applles whenever other standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured
at fair valie. SFAS No. 157 does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,

and interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not expect the impact to be material to our -

financial condition or results of operations.
Eﬁ'ects of Pnor Year Mi §§t§temgts

In 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accountmg Bulletin No. 108 (SAB No. 108) which addresses .

quantifying the financial statement effects of misstatements, specifically, how the effects of prior year
uncorrected errors must be considered in quantifying misstatements in the current year financial
statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. We adopted the

provisions of SAB No. 108 as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB Ne. 108 had no matenal o

impact on our financial position, operating results or cash flows.

Acconnting Changes and Error ions .

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Errors Corrections - -

a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” This statement replaces’ APB
Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim

Financial Statements,” and changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a’

voluntary change in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by an accounting
pronouncement in the instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions.
APB Opinion No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in eccounting principle be

recognized by including in net income of the period the cumulative effect of changing to the new ~

accounting prmc1ple SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application of changes in accounting

principle to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-, ..
specific-effects or the cumulative effect of the change. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 154 as .

of January 1, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 154 had no material impact on our financial position,
operating results or cash flows.

' Commitments and Contingencies T
Serrao v, Public Storage, Inc. (filed April 2003) (Superior Court of California — Orange County)

The plaintiff in this case filed a suit against the Company on behalf of a_putative class of
renters who rented self-storage units from the Company. Plaintiff alleges 'that the Company
misrepresented the size of its storage units, has brought claims under California statutory and common
law relating to consumer protection; fraud, unfair competition, and negligent’ nusrcprcsentanon, and is
seeking monetary damages, restltutxon, and declaratory and injunctive relief. ! . '

" Thé claim in this case is substannally similar to thosé in Henriquez v, Pubhg S;Q_r_age, Inc.,

"which was disclosed in pnor reports. In January 2003, the plaintiff causcd the Henriquez action to be

dlsm.lssed 7 '

’

\ Based upon the uncenamty inherent m any putat:ve class action, we cxmnot presenﬂy
determine the potential damag&e if any, or the ulmnate outcome of this litigation. Cn Novembcr 3,
2003, the court granted our motion to strike the p]amuff‘s nationwide class a]leganons and to limit any
putative class to California residents only. In August 2005, we filed a motion to remove the case to
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- . federal court, but the case has been remanded to the Supenor Court: We are vigorously comestmg ‘the
- claims upon which this lawsuit is based, including class certification efforts. S

_ Drake v. Shurgard Storage Ccntors, Inc. Iﬁled Sggtembcr 20!22) ;Supenor Court of Cahforma =
Orange County) . FEUCI

_ This is a companion case 1o, thc Serrao matter discussed above. The plamtlff alleges the same
set of operatlve facts and’ seeks the same rclref as in Serrag against Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc.
(“Shurgard”) whosc liability Public Storage assumed following the, merger. of Public Storage and
Shurgard on August 22, 2006. There is currently pending a motion for class certlﬁcauon which has.

“yet'to be ruled on. We cannot presently determine the potentral tota.l damages, ifa any, or the ultimate

outcome of the litigation. We vigorously contested the motion for class certification and will
vigorously defend this action. ' ) ’ ‘

. Potter, et al v. Hughes, et al !ﬁled Decembcr 2004) {United States District Court — Central District
of California) . L _, B . T,

In November 2002, a shareholder of the Company made a demand on the Board of Directors
challenging the fairmess of the Company’s acquisition of PS Insurance Company, Ltd. ‘(“PSIC”) and -
related-matters.- PSIC was previously owned by the Hughes Family. In Juné 2003, following the filing
by the Hughes Family of a complaint for declaratory relief asking the court to find that the acquisition
of PSIC and related matters were fair to' the Company, it was ruled that the PSIC transaction was just

. and reasonable as to the Company and holding that the' Hughcs Farmly was not requ1red 0 make any

payment to the Company . T

"At the end of, December +2004,- the same. sharcholder. referred to above and a second

" shareholder filed - this shareholder’s . derivative complaint naming as defendants the Company’s

directors {(and two former directors) and certain officers-of the Company: The matters alleged-in this
complaint relate to PSIC, the Hughes Family’s Canadian self-storage operations and the Company’s
19935 reorganization. In July 2006, the Court granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss the amended
Complaint without leave to amend. In August 2006, Plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the Court’s
decision. The appeal is currently pending. We believe the litigation will not have any financially
adverse effect on the Company (other than the costs and other cxpenses relatmg to the lawsmt)

. Brinkley v, Pubhc Storage Inc (ﬁled April 2005) (Suoonor Court of Cahforma = Los Angele
- County) .. . , ‘ . ) A

-'The‘plailr.ltiﬂ‘ sued the -Compauy on beﬁalf of a purported 'class of California non-exempt

. employees based on various- California wage and hour laws andrseeking monetary damages and

injunctive relief. In May 2006, -a -motion for class certification was filed secking to certify five
subclasses. Plaintiff sought certification for alleged “meal period violations, rest period- violations,
failure to pay for travel time, failure to pay for mileage reimbursement, and for wage statement
violations. In October 2006, the Court declined to certify three out of the five.subclasses. The Court
did, however, certify subclasses based on alleged meal period and wage statement viclations. The
maximum potential liability cannot.presently be estimated. - We intend to wgorously contest thc
substantive merits of the two remaining subclasses that were certified.

ry 2006 Su‘crlor Court of California — Oran e Count

The plaintiff brings this action against the Company on “behalf of a purported class who
bought insurance coverage at Company’s facilities alleging that the Company does not have a license
to offer, sell and/or transact storage insurance. The action was originally brought under California
Business and Professions Code Section 17200 and secks retention, monetary damages and injunctive
relief. The Company filed a demurrer to the complaint. While the demurrer was pending, Plaintiff
amended the complaint to allege a pational class and claims for unfair business practices, unjust
enrichment, money had and received, and negligent and intentional misrepresentation. Ultimately all
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claims. except . for unjust enrichment were .dismisséd. .There is currently a demurrer pending on
Plaintiff’s amended allegations-as to unjust enrichment. We are vigorously contesting the claims upon
which this lawsuit is based, including any efferm for class certification. .

- -

Other Items

We are a party to various claims,. complamts, and’ other legal actions that have arisen in the
" normal’ course of busmess from time-to time that are not described above. We believe_that it is
‘unlikely that the outcome of these othet pendmg legal proceedmgs including employment and tenant
claims, in the aggregate wﬂl have a material adverse 1mpact upon Our operations or financial position.

» P f T e

Insurance and Loss Exposure

We have historically carried comprehenswe insurance, including property, earthquakc,
general liability and workers compensation, through nationally recognized insurance carriers and
through our captive insurance programs. Our insurance programs also insure affiliates of the

.Company. Our maximum aggregate annual exposure for losses that are below the deductibles set forth
in the third-party insurance contracts, assuming multiple significant events occur; is approximately $35
million. In-addition, if losses exhaust the third-party insurers’ limit of coverage'of $125 million for
_property coverage {a maximum of $80,000,000 with respect to earthquake coverage) and $102 million
_for general liability, our éxposure could be greater. These limits are higher.than estimates of maximum
probable losses that could occur from individual catastrophic events (i.e. earthquake and wmd damage)
determined in recent engineering and actuarial studies.

. Our tenant insurance program-reinsures policies against-claims for losses to goods stored by
tenants at our self-storage facilities.” We have third-party insurance coverage for claims paid exceeding
$1;500,000 resulting from any individual event, to a-limit of $9,000,000. At December 31, 2006, we
" had- approximately 403,000 remsured pohcws outstandmg represcuung aggregate coverage of

'approxunately $1 billion. - wt

-

[ B

- ‘ N

Development and Acqmsnion of Real Estate Facllmes '

We currently have 56 pro_]ects in our development pipeline, including expansions and
enhancements to existing self-storage facilities. . The total estimated cost of these facilities (unaudited)
is approximately $266,081,000 of which $81,418,000 has been spent at December 31, 2006. These
projects are subject to contingencies. We expect to incur these expenditures over the next 12 — 24
months. As of February 28, 2007, we are under contract to purchase one self-storage facility in Hawaii
(total approximate net rental square feet of 79,000} at an aggregate cost of $22,500,000. We anticipate
that this acquisition will be funded entirely by us. This contract is suhject to significant contmgenmes, ‘
and there is no assurance that this fac1hty w1ll be acqmred ‘

[

Operatmg Lease Obhgations ' . ' .

1 © We lease trucks, land, equipnient and office space. As a result of the merger with Shurgard,
we obtained additional operating leases for land, buildings and equipment. . At December 31, 2006, the
future minimum rental payments required under our operatmg leases for the years ending December 31
dre as follows (amounts in thousands): -

-

2007 ot e e B e ereaenersne s e e aenirreren $21,747
i 2008 e Sereeeennensieens 18,980 - S
2009..... 15143 - . "
) 2010...... R ; 11,450, -« .~ . L ¢l
2011 ., e e 10,458
" Theresfter ) . v, 200,097
. " $277,875
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' We lease trucks, land, equipment and office space under various operating leases. Certain
leases are cancelable with substantial penalties. Amounts include leases for land, equipment and office
space under various operating leases that we assumed in the merger with Shurgard. Centain leases are
cancelable with substantial penalties. Certain of our European land operating leases have indefinite
terms or extension options exercisable at the discretion of the lessee. For such land leases we have
disclosed operating lease obligations over the estimated useful life of the related property.

: Expenses under operating leases were approximately $9.8 million, $6.3 million and $6.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Certain of our land
leases include escalation clauses, and we recognize related lease expenses on a straight-line basis.

Income Taxes

For all taxable years subsequent to 1980, the Company qualified and we intend. to continue 10
qualify the Company as a REIT, as defined in Section 856 of the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT,
the Company is generally not taxed on the portion of its REIT taxable income that is distributed to its
shareholders, provided that it meets certain organizational and operational requirements. We believe
that the Company has met these REIT requirements during 2006.

Domestic operations other than rental real estate are primarily conducted through taxable
REIT subsidiaries. Income of our taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local
income taxes. ' : E i

As of August 22, 2006, the date of the Shurgard merger, the Company started to consclidate
the income tax provision of the former Shurgard domestic and European activities, the latter of which
are subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions of the countries where they operate.

The provision'for income tax for the years ended December 31 is as foliows:

2006 7 2005
(Amounts in thousands)

s 5,100 $ -

’ Total CUTTENt. ... erooeeveorrrrreeee § 5,100 3 -
Deferred

State......... - -

Foreign........oeovrccncenremsmsnsessvnenas - -

Total Deferred.......oorvrrerrrereereressereses $ - 5 -

$ 5,100 $ -

Z Under SFAS No. 109, “dccounting for Income Taxes”, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and
are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. SFAS No. 109.provides for the recognition of deferred tax assets if realization of
such assets is more likely than not. Based on the weight of available evidence, a valuation allowance

" ‘may be provided against certain deferred tax assets. '
*  The foreign and domestic components of the Company’s net deferred tax assét are as follows:
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- ' S . : December 31, December 31,
’ " 2006 2005
j ¥ s (Amounts in thousands) '_"
' Federal $ .9953 $ 4342
State ° ' . 3,611 2,298
Foreign , 104,369 -
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 117,933 T 6,640
Valustion Allowance (117,933) (6,640)
Net deferred tax asset 3 - 8 .-

Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:’

December 31, December 31,
2006 ) 2005
Deferred Tax Assets: (Amounts in thousands)
» Current: . . . _
UNICAP ‘ . ' $ 6 . S$ 126 ;
Discounted Unearned Premium Reserves 210 180
. Discounted Unpaid Losses 928 603
:Other Current Deferred Assets -~ 1,094 - © 368
Noncurrent: ' : ' o
Partnership and Other Investments T 2,610 To2337
Asset Impairment ) 730 -
Accrued Closing Costs ) 161 ° ' -
Net Operating Loss Carryforward 133,944 3,935
Total Deferred Tax Assets A 139,743 7,549
Deferred Tax Llabl]ltlcs
Current:
Deferred Revenue - 350 353
State Deferred Taxes ‘ 211 134
Exchange Losses 6,419 . -
Noncurrent: ‘ .
Depreciation & Amortization ’ 14,830 422
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities - . ' 21,810 909
Net Deferred Tax Asset Before Valuation Allowance 117,933 6,640
Valuation Allowance , ) E ) (117,933) (6,640)
. Net Deferred Tax Asset .o S $ o 5 -

- At December 31, 2006 the Company had net opcralmg loss caxryforwards of $456.7 million
related 1o U.S. federal, ‘state and foreign jurisdictions. Of this total, $423.0 million originated from the
merger with Shurgard on August 22, 2006 ($14.4 million of U.S. federal, $11.1 million of state and
$397.5 million of foreign loss carryforwards). Utilization of net operating losses to offset future
taxable income may be subject to certain limitations under Sections 382 and 1502 of the Internal
Revenue Code, and other limitations under state and foreign tax laws. If these net operating losses are
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pot utilized, they expire at various times beginning in 2007. . As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we
had provided a full. valuation allowance against the-value.of the net deferred tax asset, because
sufficient uncertainty exists at this time regarding the future realization' of these tax benefits within
individual tax jurisdictions. The net increase in the valuation allowance for 2006 was $111.0 million.

v P
4 v . L P 4

19 Su : Icmcn. uarterly financial dafa unaudited . o .
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006
- (Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
ReVenues (8)........coverererevnrarsssesncenens $ 278518 $ 297,861 $ 371,359 $ 433917
Cost of operations (8) .....eoeceeeemrinnnas $ 102,978 $ 106,544 $ 128,038 $ 163,000
income (loss) from continuing $ 113,482 $ 128,752 £ 78926 $ (9321
operations......, .
Net income (T088) ceveveeecirarsicssssenss $ 114,216 $ 1283862 $ 81,181 $ (10,233)
Per Common Share (Note 2):
Net income (loss) - Basic............. $ 0.48 $ 0.55 $  (0.04) $ (0.48)
Net income (loss) - Diluted .......... $ 0.49 $ 0.55 $§ (0.0 § (048
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, Septemnber 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 © 2005
. {Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues (8) i rommraeecrecsercccecrens $ 250,779 § 262,609 $ 273,246 $ 273413
Cost of operations {a) .....ccc.covreurerruns $ 95899 $ 94835 $ 96,592 $ 90975
Income from continuing operations... F 95189 § 108,071 § 122,960 § 123377
NEt iCOME c..ovvirrieiiverrerrevrerrrerreenrens £ 96411 $ 108,266 $ 128,344 $ 123,372
Per Common Share (Note 2):
Net income — Basic..vreeceeeeenencnee $ 0.38 $ 0.47 3 0.62 3 0.51
Net income — Diluted........... $ 038 § 047 $ 062 $ 051

{a) Revenues and cost of operations as presented in this table differ from the revenue and cost of operations as
presented in our quarterly reports due primarily to reclassification of our truck rental, merchandise sales,
and property management operations which are now included, along with our tenant reinsurance
operations, under “Ancillary Operations” on our income statement. In previous presentations, the net
income from our truck rental, merchandise sales, and property management operations were reflected as a
component of “interest and other income.” This reclassification increased revenues and cost of operations
a total of $7,416,000, $8,597,000, and $8,557,000 in each of the first three quarters of 2003, respectively.
Revenues and cost of operations also differ due to the impact of discontinued operations accounting as
described in Note 4.

20. Subsg;‘ uent Events

As noted above, in December 2006, we called for redemption all of the outstanding shares of our
(i} 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T (total liquidation value of $152,150,000), at $25 per share,
plus accrued dividends and (ii) 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series U (total liquidation value of
$150,000,000), at $25 per share, plus accrued dividends. The Series T shares were subsequently redeemed
on January 18, 2007 and the Series U shares were subsequently redeemed on February 20, 2007.

On January 9, 2007, we issued 20,000,000 depositary shares, with each depositary share

representing 1/1,000 of a share of our 6.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M (catrying amount
totaling $500,000,000). '
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On January 2, 2007, we repaid the €325 million collateralized notes ($429 million at December 31,
2006) at our European operations that were otherwise payable in 2011, We also terminated the related
European currency and interest rate hedges..

On January 9, 2007, we repaid the reir.aining amounts outstanding under our bank credit facilities.
Subsequently, concurrent with our redemption of our Series U shares noted above, we borrowed
approximately $80,000,000 on our bank credit facilities.
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

. (Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Earnings Per Share:

NEEINCOME oo errvrssssressaseresesississsssasssas s sssss s s s ones $ 314,026 $ 456,393 - $ 366213
Less: Cumulative Preferred Stock Dmdends '
9.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D.....c.ocovcvesncirisnicncnviieines . - - (2,131)
10.00% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E.... - 457) (5,488)
9.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F...... - (1,884) (5,606)
8.25% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K....... . - - (501)
8.25% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series'L ... o - - (1,818)
8.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M ..o . - - (3,089) !
8.60% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Q...... - .. (742} (14,835) ‘(14,835)
8.00% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series R............. © . £30.255) (40,800) (40,800)
7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series S U (9,437) (11,320) - (11,320)
7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T (11,601) (11,601) (11,601)
7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series U (11,438) "(11,438) (11,438)
7.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series V... (12,938) (12,938) {12,938) -
6.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series W................ o (8,612) - (8,612) (8,612)
6.45% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series X......... : (7,740) (7,740 (7,740) -
6.850% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Y T (2,740) (2,740) (2,732)
6.250% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Z (7,031) (7,031) (5,801 -
*6.125% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series A (7,044) (7,044) (5302)
7.125% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series B.... (7,748) (7,748) (3,896) .
6.600% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series C.... (7,590} (7,590) (2,271 + .
6.180% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D.... (8,344) _(6,976) - .
6.750% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E.... (9,536) - (6,463) - ‘l'
6.450% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F 1(16,124) (5,430) -
7.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G (7,000) (370} -
6.950% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H (6,945) - -
7.250% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Serfes | ........ v (24,908) - -,
7.250% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K (13,340) - -
6.750% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L (3,108) .- -
Total preferred dividends .....c.ocivrversrre i o (214,218) (173,017) -(157,925) .
Allocation of income to preferred shareholders based on redemptions : " [
of preferred stock (application of EITF Topic D-42) T (31,493) ] (7,538) (8,724) ., |
Total niet income allocated to preferred sharé¢holders........ : $ (245,711) ¥ (180,555) $ (166,649) |
Total net income allocable to common shareholders.......oviininnrennenn. $ 68315 $ 275,838 $ 199,564
Allocation of net income to common shareholders by class: ‘ ’ o
Net income allocable to shareholders of the Equity Stock, Series A $ 21424 § 21,443 $ 21501
Net income allocable to shareholders of commen stock ......covmeren . 46,891 254,395 178,063
! $ 68315 .§ 275838 $ 199,564 |
Weighted average common shares and eguivalents outstanding: . |
Basic weighted average common shares outStanding.........c..ccoveiinns . 142,760 128,159 127,836 ,
Net effect of dilutive stock options - based on treasury stock method C .
using average MArket PriCe ...t rsssaense 955 660 845 .
Diluted weighted average common shares outstandmg ......................... ’ 143,715 128,819 128,681 °
Basic earnings per common and common equivalent share (8)......coceecees ' £§ 033 ‘3 1.98 $ 1.39
Diluted earnings per common and common equivalent share (a)......... e %, 0337 $ 1.97 $ 1.38 -

(a) See Note 2 to the Company's consolidated financial statements rcgardmg "Net Income per Common Share" and the

underlying dlscusswn on Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-42.

Note- There were no securities outstandmg which would have had an antl-dllutwc effect upon emmmgs per common share in

each of the three years ended December 31, 2006.
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EXHIBIT 12 - STATEMENT RE: COMPUTATION OF

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

For the Year Ended December 31,
. 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{Amounts in thousands) -

NE INCOME. ..o e iets e eess s sarersasienes - .$314026 $ 456,393 $366,213 $336,653 $318,738
Add: Minority interest in INCOME ......c.crrvurvarnennns 31,883 32,651 49,913 43,703 44,087
Less: Minority interest in income which do not } ) ‘ C

have fixed charges...........ccoeererieccsrvennneennans (16,014) (15,161) {17,099) (13,610) (14,307)
Less: Equity in eamnings of investments............ {11,395) (24,883) (22,564) (24,566) " {29,888)
Add: Cash distributions from investments......... 17,699 23,112 20,961 17,754 19,496
Less: Impact of discontinued operations............. (1,609) (6,796) 255 (4,478) ° 10,562

Adjusted net iNCOME...........cceervivreirivireresnseeenesrreranns 334,090 465,316 397,679 355,056 , 348,688
IDETESE EXPENSE. ..remsrreeerrvarasesssesesaarsserarronsens 33,062 8,216 760 1,121 C 3,809

Total earnings available to cover fixed charges ..... . $367,152 $473,532 $ 398,439 $356,177 $ 352,497

Total fixed charges - interest expense (@) .-----r-v-- " $ 35778 $ 11,036 § 4371 § 7131 ¥ 10322

Cumulative preferred stock dividends...........ooen.. $214218 $173,017 $157,925 $146,196 s ]48;926

Preferred partnership unit distributions.............c.... 19,055 16,147 30,423 26,906 , 26,906

Allocations pursuant to EITF Topic D-42 31,493 8412 10,787. . 7,120 6,888

Total preferred distributions..........cc.cceveceeeeneserieens § 264,766 $197.576 $199,135 - $180,222 $ 182,720

Total combined fixed charges and preferred stock S ’

HSITIDULONS .o vevveceereeceeeeeerecensrerensssre e s rnannes $ 300,544 $ 208,612 $203,512 " $187,353 $193,042
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges..........c.cocevuenen 10.26x 42.91x 91.03x 49.95x 34.15x

_ Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges ......... 1.22x 2.27x 1.96x 1.90x 1.83x

Supplemental disclosure of Ratio of Earnings before Interest, Taxes,

Depreciation and Amortization (“EB ) to fixed charges: : ’ ‘

Net INCOME......ccoenereerieraressiseren e eneesessserssssssnes $314,026 $456,393 $ 366,213 $ 336,653 $318,738 -

Add - Depreciation and amortization (including : :

discontinued OPETatioNS) ......ccouverecuemiverassencrsneesane 438218 196,485 184,345 - 188,003 181,648

Less — Depreciation allocated to minority interests ° (4,638) (3,403) (6,046) (6,328) (8,087

Add — Depreciation included in equity in earnings .

of real estate entities..........ccovvveerrrerrerescscscsccnnes 38,890 35425 33,720 27,753 27,078
Add — Minority interest — preferred 19,055 17,021 32,486 26,906 - 26,906
Add — Interest EXPENSE wovvviecciircess e 33,062 . 8,216 - 760 1,121 3,809
EBITDA available to cover fixed charges (b)........ ~ $838,613 -$710,137 $611,478 $£574,108 $ 550,002
Total fixed charges — interest expense (2).............. $ 35778 $ 11,036 - $ 43777 $§ 713 $ 10,322
Preferred stock dividends............cocvevuvnierierscenncns $214,218 $173,017 b 157,9_25 $146,196 $ 148,926
Preferred partnership unit distributions........ccovnv.os 19,055 16,147 30,423 26,906 26,906

Allocations pursuant to EITF Topic D-42.......... 31,493 8412 10,787 7,120 6,888
Total preferred distributions...........cccoverveneserenenens $ 264,766 $ 197,576 $199,135 $ 180,222 $182,720
Total combined fixed charges and preferred stock _

QISTIDULIONS .01 ieneseecreereree e s s eusveseresseareesseen $ 300,544 $208,612 $203,512, $187,353 $ 193,042
Ratio of EBITDA to fixed charges...........cocecenneennne 23.44x 64.35x 139.70x 80.51x 53.29x
Ratio of EBITDA to combined fixed chargts and

preferred stock distributions.........coivceieecrcreneans 2.79x 3.40x 3.00x 3.06x 2.85x

(2) “Total fixed charges - interest expense” includes interest expense plus capitalized interest.
b) EBITDA represents earnings prior to interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, gains on sale of real estate assets

and the impact of the application of EITF Topic D-42. This supplemental disclosure of EBITDA is included
because we believe that coverage ratios computed on a pre-depreciation basis are a useful measure of our liquidity
and financial enalysts and other members of the investment community consider coverage ratios for rea] estate
companies on a pre-depreciation basis. EBITDA should not be used as an alternative to net income or cash flow
from éperations in evaluating our liquidity or operating results. :
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Location of Formation
Connecticut Storage Fund ..........coorivvniciininnnns California

FS Co-Investment Partners...........ccooicecinns . California

PS Tinois Trust.....ccoeinsimssreserromeeereeeeerieseanans Delaware

'PS Insurance Company ~ Hawaii, Ltd Hawaii” "

. PS Orangeco, InC..cvvvnnnnnns it finnsssssivenenes * California
PS Partners, Ltd. oo California
PS Partners VIIL Ltd...........ocoivs s California
PS Tennessee, L.P. .. Tennessee
PS Texas Holdings, Ltd ..................................... Texas
PSA Institutional Partners, L.P...............ccc... e California '

. PSAC Developinent Partners, L.P...........L.....oc s California
Public Storage Properties IV, Lid........................ California
Public Storage Properties V, Lid. .............. S California
Public Storage Institutional Fund. ........... fenirvansnsan . California * -
Public Storage Institutional Fund Il ................... California
Public Storage Pickup & Delivery, L.P............. California
Secure Mini Storage. .. v * Minnesota
STOR-Re Mutual Insurance Corporanon Hawaii

"Storage Trust Properties, L.P. Delaware
Shurgard Storage Centers LLC - Delaware
Shurgard Texas Limited Parlmfrsth Texas

" SSC Property Holdings LLC................. Delawaré
SSCI Mimnesota LLC.................fcins Delaware
Shurgard Self- Storage SCA ................................ _ Belgium -

e
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by referenc;e in the ﬁegistration .Statemel;t on For;n S-8 (No. 33-
36004) of Public Storage, Inc., formerly Storagé Equities, Inc., peﬁaming to the 1990 Stock Option Plan,
the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 33-55541) pertaining to the 1994.Stock Option Plan, the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-13463) pertaining to the 1996 Stock Option and Incentive
Plan, the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-75327) pertaining to the 1994 Share Incentive Plan,
the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-50270) pertaining to the PS 401(k)/Pr6ﬁt Shaxjing Plan,
the Registration Staterment on Form S-8 (No. 333-52400) pertaining to the 2000 Non-Executive/Non-
Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan, the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (333-59?18) pertaining
to the 2001 Non-Executive/Non-Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan and the 2001 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan, the Registratjon Statement on Form S-3 (No.'333581041) and in the related prospectus, the
Registration Statement on Form' S-4 (No. 333-86899l) and in the related prospectus, the Registration
Statement on Form $-4 (No: 33'3—84126) and the related prospectus, in the chistration“Sta_tement on Form
S-3 (No. 333-101425) and m the related Prospectus, the Registration Statement on Form S-4 fNo. 333-
103190) and in the related pros;;cctus, the Registration Statement o Form S-3 (No. 333-115660) and in the
related prospectus, and the chisﬁau’on Statement oﬁ Form 8-3 (333-130137) and in th'é related prospectus,
the Registration Statement on l*;orm S-4 (No. 333-133438) including post — effective Amendment No.1 on
Form S-8 and related prospectus, and the Registration Statement on Form $-3 (No. 333-136169) and
related prospectus of our reports dated February 28, 2007, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements and related financial statement schedule of Public Storage, Inc., Public Storage, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Public Storage, Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Deceml:;er 31, 2006.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

February 28, 2007
Los Angeles, California
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RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Ronald L. Havner, Ir., certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Public Storage, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit.to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances-under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included.in this
- report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash

4, The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
¢ disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and

flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; . ’

internal control over financial reporting (a$ defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and lSd-lS(f))
for the registrant and have:

‘a)

’ b)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, .or caused such disclosure controls and

‘procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others wnhm those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

"designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal ‘control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance

- regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the finaricial statements for

lc).

-d)

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report’our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controlsand procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and :

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably" llkely to matena.lly
affect, the registrant’s internal contro] over financial reportmg, and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal controls over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
registrant's board of directors: !

2)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

‘over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to

record, process, summarize and report financial information;-and

.any fraud, whether or not material, .that involves management or other employees who have a

significant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting.

s/ Ronald L. Havner, Jr.

Name:

Title:
Date:

Ronald L. Havner, Ir.
Chief Executive Officer & President -
March 1, 2007 '
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RULE 13a:14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION

1, John Reyes, certify that:

1.

2.

3

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Public Storage, Inc.; - - . a1

Based on.my knowledge, this -annual report does not contain any untrue-statement of a material fact or
' omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to thie petiod covered by this report; -

Based on-my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
-.report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; -

The registrant's other certifying officers. and: T are responsible for establishing and maintaining

r disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange-Act Rules.13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and -
internal control over financial reporting:(as defined-in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(t) and 15d-15(f)
for the registrant and have:

-, a).designed such disclosure. controls and procedures, or- caused such.disciosure controls' and

‘procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
- - registrant; including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control .over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over

financial reporiing to be designed-under our supervision, to. provide reasonable assurance

.- regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c} . evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
- this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure-controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and '

d) .disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that

occwrred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an-annual report) that has materially affected, .or.is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and - .

- The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on ocur most recent evaluation of
. internal controls over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the aundit committee of
registrant's board of directors: 2

..a) .all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
" over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely ai’fect the l‘CngtI‘aIll'S ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and -

b)i . any fraud; whether or not material, that involves management -or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ John Reyes '
Name: John Reyes "

Title:  Chief Financial Officer ) - . .
Date:  March 1, 2007 ‘
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RULE l3a-l4(a)li5d-l4(a) CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Year-end Report on Form 10-K of Public Storage, Inc. (the “Company™) for the year
ended December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”}, Ronald L. Havner, Jr., as Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company and John
Reyes, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant io §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  ~

(1). The Report fuily complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Ronald L. Havner, Jr.

Name: Ronald L. Havner, Jr.

Title:  Chief Executive Officer & President
Date; = March 1, 2007

/s/ John Reyes

Name: John Reyes .

Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  March 1, 2007

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oiley Act of 2002 and shall
not, except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for
purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 134, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement required by §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been
provided to the Company, and will be retained and furnished to the SEC or its staff upon request.
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CORPORATE DATA (& of Mareh 23, 2007)

Directors

B. Wayne Hughes (1980)
Chairman of the Board

Ronald L. Havner, Jr. (2002)
Vice-Chairman of the Board, .
Chizf Executive Officer and President

Harvey Lenkin (1991)
Retired President and Chief Operating Officer

Dann V. Angeloff (1980)
Presidens of The Angeloff Company

William C. Baker (1991)
Principal, Baker & Associates

John T. Evans (2003)
‘ Partner, Osler, Hoskin ¢ Harconrs LLP

Uri I* Harkham {1993)
President and Chief Executive Officer

Harkham Industries

B. Wayne Hughes, Jr. (1998)
Vice President of American Commercial
Equities, LLC

Gary E. Pruite (2006}
Chief Executive Officer of Univar N.V.

Daniel C. Staton (1999)
Chairman of Staton Capital

{ ) = date director was elecred 1o the Board

Executive Officers

Reonald L. Havner, jr
Vice-Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President

John Reyes -
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

John E. Graul
Senior Vice President

John §. Bavmann
Senior Vice President and Chief
Legal Officer

David F. Doll
Senior Vice President

Candace N. Krol
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Professional Services

Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust
Company, N.A.

PO. Box 43078
Providence, R1 02940-3078
(781) 575-3120

www.computershare.com

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California

Certifications

The most recent certifications
by our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial
Officer pursuant to Sections
302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as
exhibits 1o our Form 10-K.
Qur Chief Executive Officer’s
maost recent annual certiftca-
tion to the New York Stock
Exchange was submitted on
May 15, 2006.

Corporate Officers

Drew J. Adams
Vice President and Direcror of Taxeés

Todd Andrews
Viee President and Conrroller

Mark B. Bilfield
Senior Vice President—Marketing

Capri L. Haga
Senior Vice President— Risk Management

James D. Hartung
Senior Vice President—Chief Marketing Officer

Stephanie G. Heim
Vice President, Corporate Counsel
and Secretary

Ken A, Kederian
Vice President of Internal Audir

A. Ammar Kharouf
Vice President and Litigation Counsel

Brent C. Peterson
Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer

A. Timothy Scott
Vice President and Tax Counsel

Clemente Teng
Vice President of Investor Services

Real Estate Group

David E Doll
President

David W. Marzocchi
Senior Vice President—Development and
Construction

Michael K. McGowan
Senior Vice President—Acquisitions and
Development

James E Fitzpacrick
Sentor Vice Pres:a'em—Emakmrms

Stock Exchange Listing

The Company’s common
stock trades under ticker
symbol PSA on the New York
Stock Exchange.

PSA
NYSE.

Self-Storage Operations

John E. Graul
President

Brian |. Devlin
Senior Vice President and Divisional Manager

Kim DeRuy}cr
Senior Vice President and Divisional Manager

Harvey A. Grindeland
Senior Vice President and Divisional Manager

Kenneth H. Morrison
Senior Vice President and Divisional Manager

Peter G. Panos

Senior Vice President and Divisional Manager

David D. Young
Sentor Vice President and Divisional Manager

Alan Grossman

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Ancillary Businesses

Themas Miller
President—2PS Orangeco

Obren B. Gerich

President—PS Insurance

Shurgard Self Storage 5.C.A. (Europe)

Steven De Tollenzere
President

John M. Sambuco
Vice President—Operations

Frank ).E. Boot
Marketing Director

Wim E.M. Van Beveren
Vice President—Development

Jean L.H. Kreusch
Chief Financial Officer

Kris S.A. Van Mieghem
General Counsel

David L. Coupez

Vice President—Information Systems

Additional Information Sources

The Company’s website, www.publicstorage.com,

contains financial information of inrerest to
sharcholders, brokers, cte.
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Public Starage, Inc. is a member and active
supporter of the National Associadon of Real
Estate [nvestmene Trusts,
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